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FORM NO. CAA. 2

[Pursuant to Section 230 (3) and rule 6 and 7)]
BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH
C.A. (CAA)/2926/MB/2019

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013;

AND
IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION
230 TO 232 READ WITH SECTION 66 AND SECTION 52 AND OTHER
APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
AND
IN THE MATTER OF COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN
ARSHIYA LIMITED AND ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS.

Arshiya Limited, a Company incorporated under the
provisions of Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered
office at 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate,
F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018
Maharashtra, India.

--First Applicant Company/ Demerged Company

NOTICE GIVEN PURSUANT TO THE ORDER DATED 09TH DECEMBER, 2019 OF THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI
BENCH

To,
The all the Secured Creditors (Including Debenture Holders) and Unsecured Creditors of Arshiya Limited (“Demerged
Company”)

TAKE NOTICE that by an order dated 09th December, 2019 (“Order”), the Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal has
directed a meeting to be held of the of secured creditors (Including Debenture Holders) and unsecured creditors of Arshiya Limited
(“Demerged Company”) for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving with or without modification, the arrangement
proposed to be made between the Arshiya Limited (“Demerged Company”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“Resulting
Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”) under Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

In pursuance of the Order and as directed therein, further notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Secured Creditors (Including
Debenture Holders) of the said company will be held at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai- 400018, Maharashtra on Tuesday, the 14th January, 2020 at 11:00 A.M at which time and place the said Secured
Creditors (Including Debenture Holders) are requested to attend.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE THAT, in pursuance of the said Order and as directed therein further notice is hereby given that a meeting
of the Unsecured Creditors of the said company will be held at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant
Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018, Maharashtra on Tuesday, the 14th January, 2020 at 2:00 P.M at which time and place the said Unsecured
Creditors are requested to attend.

At the meeting, following resolution will be considered and if thought fit, be passed, with or without modification(s):

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013, applicable rules and regulations made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force), the Securities and Exchange Board of India’s Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10,
2017 (as amended from time to time), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (as may be amended from time to time), No objection letter / observation letters dated 15th Day of July, 2019 and
12th Day of July, 2019 issued by the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and the BSE Limited, respectively, relevant provisions of
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, and subject to sanction/approval(s) of National Company Law Tribunal
(“NCLT”), and such other approvals, sanctions and permissions of other regulatory or government bodies /tribunals or institutions as
may be applicable, and subject to such conditions and modification(s) as may be prescribed or imposed by NCLT or by any regulatory
or other authorities, while granting such consents, approvals and permissions, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the
Company/Demerged Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”), the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya Limited




(“Demerged Company”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“Resulting Company”)(presently wholly owned subsidiary company of
the Demerged Company) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”), which provides for the demerger of the “Domestic
Business Undertaking” (as defined in the Scheme) and transfer and vesting thereof into the Resulting Company, a copy of which is enclosed
with this notice and placed before this meeting and initialled by the Chairperson or the Alternate Chairperson of the meeting, as the case
may be, for the purpose of identification, be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may, in its absolute
discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to this resolution and effectively implement the Scheme and
to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, which may be required and/or imposed by NCLT while
sanctioning the Scheme or by any authorities under law, including passing of such accounting entries and/or making such adjustments
in the books of accounts as considered necessary in giving effect to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper, and to settle any
question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in respect of aforesaid without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the
equity shareholders of Company or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly
by the authority of this resolution.”

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that in compliance with the provisions of Section 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Demerged
Company has provided the facility of voting by ballot/polling paper at the venue of the meeting to be held on Tuesday, 14th January,
2020.

NCLT has appointed Mr. Ajay Shankarlal Mittal, Managing Director of the Demerged Company as the Chairperson and failing him, Mr.
Ashishkumar Bairagra, Independent Director of the Demerged Company as the Alternate Chairperson of the said Meeting, including
for any adjournment or adjournments thereof.

Copies of the Scheme and of the Explanatory Statement, under Sections 230, 232 and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6
of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, along with the enclosures as indicated in the Index,
can be obtained free of charge at the registered office of the Demerged Company at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar
Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018, Maharashtra India or at the office of its Authorised Representative, Aabid &
Co, Company Secretaries, at 302, 3rd Floor, 22 Business Point, Opposite Andheri Subway, Next to DCB Bank, S. V. Road, Andheri (W),
Mumbai - 400 058, Maharashtra, India.

The above mentioned Scheme, if approved by the meeting, will be subject to subsequent approval of the NCLT.

A copy of the Explanatory Statement, the said Composite Scheme of Arrangement and other enclosures including the Form of Proxy and
Attendance Slip are enclosed and form part of the notice and can be obtained free of charge from the registered office of the Company.

For Arshiya Limited.
Sd/-
Ajay S Mittal
Chairman appointed for the meeting
Date: 10th December, 2019
Place: Mumbai
Registered Office: 302, Ceejay House, Level-3,

Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai - 400018




Notes:

1.

Only Secured Creditors (Including Debenture Holders) or Unsecured Creditors of the Applicant Company may attend and
vote (either in person or by proxy) at the Secured Creditors (Including Debenture Holders) or Unsecured Creditors meeting
respectively. The representative of body corporate which is a Secured Creditor (Including Debenture Holders) or Unsecured
Creditor of the applicant Company may attend and vote at Secured Creditors (Including Debenture Holders) or Unsecured
Creditors Meeting provided a certified true copy of the resolution of the Board of Directors or other governing body of the body
corporate is deposited at the registered office of the applicant company not less than 48 (forty eight) hours before the time fixed
for the aforesaid meetings.

All alterations made in the form of proxy should be initialed.

The Statement under Sections 230(3), 232(1) & (2) and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 is annexed hereto.

The notice, Explanatory Statement together with the accompanying documents, is being sent to the Secured and Unsecured
Creditors as on 30th September, 2019 in electronic form as well as the physical copy of the same by the permitted mode.

The quorum of the meeting of the Secured Creditors and Unsecured Creditors of the Company shall be Five (5). In case the
quorum as noted above for the Meeting is not complete at the scheduled time, then the meeting shall be adjourned by half an hour,
and thereafter, the person present at the meeting shall be deemed to constitute the quorum.

In terms of the directions contained in the Order and in compliance with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules 2014, the advertisement will be published in ‘Active Times’ in English language and translation thereof in
‘Mumbai Lakshadeep’ in Marathi Language, circulated in the State of Maharashtra indicating the day, date, place and time of the
meeting and stating that the copies of the Scheme can be obtained free of charge on all working days (except Saturdays, Sundays
and public holidays) during 10:00 AM to 5:00 PM from the registered office of the Company.

NCLT has appointed, Mr. Mohammed Akram, (ACS 22589 C.P. NO. 9411), Practicing Company Secretaries, as the Scrutinizer to
scrutinize the voting through e-voting process, through postal ballot and voting at the venue of the Meeting.

The Scrutinizer, shall on conclusion of the Meeting, unblock the votes in the presence of at least 2 (two) witnesses not in
employment of the Company. Thereafter, the Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairman of the Meeting, after completion
of scrutiny of votes cast by the creditors of the Company through Ballot. The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the votes shall
be final. The results of the voting on the resolution(s) set out in the Notice will be announced on or before 15th January,2020. The
results, together with the Scrutinizer’s report, will be displayed on the notice board of the Company at its registered office, on the
website of the Company viz. www.arshiyalimited.com, besides being communicated to BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange
of India Limited.




FORM NO. CAA. 2

[Pursuant to Section 230 (3) and rule 6 and 7)]
BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH
C.A. (CAA)/ 2926/MB/2019
IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013;
AND
IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 230
TO 232 READ WITH SECTION 66 AND SECTION 52 AND OTHER APPLICABLE
PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
AND
IN THE MATTER OF COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN
ARSHIYA LIMITED AND ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

Arshiya Limited, a company incorporated under the
provisions of Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered
office At 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate,
F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018
Maharashtra India

----First Applicant Company/ Demerged Company

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 230, 232 AND 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 6 OFTHE
COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 (“EXPLANATORY STATEMENT”)

1.

Pursuant to the order dated 09th December, 2019 (“Order”), passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai
Bench (the “NCLT”) in Company Application Number 2926 of 2019 filed jointly by Arshiya Limited (“Demerged Company”) and
Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“Resulting Company”), a meeting of the Secured Creditors (Including Debenture holders)
and Unsecured Creditors of the Resulting Company, is being convened and is to be held at the registered office of the Resulting
Company at 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018 Maharashtra
India at 11:00 A.M. and 2:00 P.M.on Tuesday, 14th January, 2020 respectively, for the purpose of considering and if thought fit,
approving, with or without modification(s), the proposed Composite Scheme of Arrangement between the joint applicants (that
is, the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company) and their respective shareholders and creditors (hereinafter referred to
as the “Scheme”) under Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
“Act”). A copy of the Scheme setting out details of parties involved in the proposed Scheme, Appointed Date, Effective Date, Share
Entitlement Ratio etc,, is enclosed as Annexure A.

Capitalised terms used herein but not defined shall have the meaning assigned to them in the Scheme, unless otherwise stated.

In terms of the Order, quorum for the said meeting shall be 5 members. In case the quorum as noted above for the meeting is not
complete at the scheduled time, then the meeting shall be adjourned by half an hour and thereafter, the person(s) present at the
meeting shall be deemed to constitute the quorum. For the purposes of quorum, valid proxies will also be considered, if the proxy
in the prescribed form, duly signed by the persons entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is filed with the registered office
of the Demerged Company at least 48 hours before the meeting. Further, in terms of the Order, the NCLT has appointed Mr. Ajay
Shankarlal Mittal, Managing Director of the Demerged Company as the Chairperson and failing him, Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra,
Independent Director of the Demerged Company as the Alternate Chairperson of the said meeting, including for any adjournment
or adjournments thereof.

This Explanatory Statement is being furnished as required under Sections 230(3), 232(1) & (2) and 102 of the Act read with Rule
6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANIES

Arshiya Limited, (herein after called the “The Demerged Company” or “AL”) is a Listed Public Company, originally incorporated
under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956 on 3rd July, 1981 as a Private Company under the name and style of IID Forgings
Private Limited. In the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 24th day of August, 1982 consent of the Members of the Company
has been accorded to change the name of the Company pursuant to conversion from Private Company to Public Company under
the name and style of “IID Forgings Limited”. Further in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 4th day of May, 2006




consent of the Members of the Company has been accorded to change the name of the Company under the name and style
“Arshiya Technologies International Limited”. Further the Company on 28th day of September;, 2007 has changed the name
to “Arshiya International Limited”. Further the Company on 5th day of September, 2013 the Company has changed the name
under the name and style of “Arshiya Limited”.

The Registered Office, email and website address of the Demerged Company is 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar
Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018 Maharashtra India, Email:info@arshiyalimited.comand Website: www.
arshiyalimited.com, respectively.

The main objects for which the Company was formed as set out in the Memorandum of Association are as following:

I.  To carry on all or any of the business of designing, manufacturing, developing, improving, hiring, repairing, buying, selling
and dealing in forgings and castings of ferrous and non-ferrous materials and in any weight for any industry whatsoever,
including chilled and malleable castings, special alloy castings. Gunmetal castings, steel castings, gunmetal, copper, brass
and aluminium castings and foundry work.

II. To carry on the business of providing integrated supply chain and demand chain management services which interalia
includes services of air and ocean freight forwarding, cargo consolidation, project logistics air, sea and surface transportation,
shipping, chartering of vessels, warehousing, development and providing hubbing facilities at ports and strategic locations
development and providing port facilities, container freight stations, inventory and order management services, storage,
drumming, consignments at customs, development and providing import and export documentation services, distribution
services, analysis and consulting services to enhance supply chain/demand chain logistics, providing information technology
services to logistics and value added activities and for the aforesaid purposes to acquire or develop software solutions,
acquire on ownership or lease airplanes and ships, trucks, railway wagons and to build or acquire or take on lease tank
farms, warehouses, distriparks, container freight stations or develop infrastructure for above services including knowledge
Centre for imparting educational training for persons to attain, enhance professional competency in global logistics services.

[II. To carry on the business of developing, operating and maintaining special economic zones (SEZs)/free trade and
warehouse zones (FTWZs), inland container depots (ICDs), industrial parks, logistic parks, warehouses, infrastructure or
infrastructure projects; and to act as contractors, builders, town planners, estate developers, engineers, land developers,
land consolidators, land scapers, estate agents, immovable property dealers and other allied and/or ancillary activities;
and to acquire, build, operate, buy, sell, lease, sub-lease, long lease, leave and license basis, consolidate, exchange, hire or
otherwise; lands, buildings, immovable property of any tenure or any interest in the same, SEZs, FTWZs, ICD, warehouses,
houses, flats, bungalows, commercial complexes, shopping malls, multiplexes, food courts and other ancillary and/or allied
activities, on the land of the company or other land or any immovable property whether belonging to the company or not;
and to pull down, rebuild, enlarge, alter any other conveniences and to deal with and improve, in India or abroad either by
company or with joint venture or in partnership or on sub-contract basis or otherwise.

IV.  To carry on the business of any type of transport/ logistic services including but not limited to setting up of rail infrastructure
/ network within India and abroad including buy, construct, sale ,operates including movement of containers / goods trains
using any rail network; and also to acquire, procure, obtain, trade, lease/license or otherwise: container trains, rakes,
wagons, boggies; and to create, develop, sale, Purchase, trade or obtain on lease/license basis railway sidings, rail yards,
warehouses required for the business of the company and all allied and ancillary services / products related to that.

V. To carry on the business developing and maintaining container freight stations, warehousing infrastructure and services,
facilities for customs examination or any other regulator/ regulatory authority or department, EDI, empty container yard for
storage of shipping containers and other containers or materials; and to carry out repairs and refurbishment of containers,
truck, cargo and material handling equipment; and to provide transportation, warehousing, IT & IT infrastructure and
services, cold storage and other allied activities; and to provide services of distribution, reverse logistics, forward logistics,
supply chain management, value added services, repair and maintenance, manufacture, transportation, consultancy services;
and also to provide system/ software solutions, data analytics, acquire, take on lease, hire or otherwise, distribution centres,
trucks and material handling equipment as may be necessary to carry on the aforesaid business in India or abroad.

During the last 5 (five) years, there has been no change in the name, however the registered office of the Company was changed
to Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018 registered office 29th
September, 2015. Also, the object clause of the Demerged Company was altered by insertion of addition in object clause on 7th
November, 2016 which is as stated in point no. 6 above.

It may be noted that the Demerged Company is a public limited company and its securities are listed on BSE Limited (“BSE”) and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”).




9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

The capital structure of the Demerged Company as on March 31, 2018 is as under:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital

Authorized capital

24,75,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2 each 49,50,00,000
1,10,00,000 Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 11,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

22,82,16,776 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid-up 45,64,33,552

There is no change in the Total Authorised Share Capital of the Company. However on 23rd July, 2019 with the approval of
shareholders the Authorised capital of the Company is re-classified from Rs. 60,50,00,000 (Rupees Sixty Crores Fifty Lakhs only)
comprising of 24,75,00,000 (Twenty-Four Crore Seventy - Five Lakhs only) equity Shares of Rs. 2 (Rupees Two only) each and
1,10,00,000 (One Crore Ten Lakhs only) Zero Percent Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten
only) each to Rs. 60,50,00,000 (Rupees Sixty Crores Fifty Lakhs only) divided into 28,75,00,000 (Twenty - Eight Crores Seventy
Five Lakhs only) Equity Shares of Rs.2 (Rupees Two) each and 30,00,000 (Thirty Lakhs) Zero Percent Optionally Convertible
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten only) each.

The capital structure of the Demerged Company as on 6th December, 2019 is as under:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital

Authorized capital

28,75,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2 each 57,50,00,000
30,00,000 Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 3,00,00,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

24,60,44,665 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid-up 49,20,89,330

The names and addresses of the Promoters of the Demerged Company is provided below:

NAMES ADDRESS
Ajay S Mittal Mittal Bhavan 2, 3rd Floor, 62-A, Peddar Road, Mumbai 400026
Archana A Mittal Mittal Bhavan 2, 3rd Floor, 62-A, Peddar Road, Mumbai 400026

The list of directors of the Demerged Company as on 06th December, 2019 along with their names and addresses is provided
below:

List Of Director
SR | Name Of Director DIN Designation Address
No.
1 [Ashishkumar Bairagra 00049591 |Independent Director |44, Sadhana Building, B Road, Churchgate Mumbai

400020 Maharashtra India

2 | Tara Sankar Bhattacharya | 00157305 |Independent Director [8e, B-1, Harbor Heights, N A Sawant Road, Colaba,
Mumbai 400005Maharashtra India

3 | Ajay Shankarlal Mittal 00226355 Managing Director |Mittal Bhavan 2, 3rd Floor, 62-A, Peddar Road, Mumbai
400026 Maharashtra India
4 | Rishabh Pankaj Shah 00694160 | Independent Director | Saranam Building, Block No. 7, 7th Road, Prabhat
Colony, Santacruz (East), Mumbai 400055 Maharashtra
India
5 | Archana Ajay Mittal 00703208 Joint Managing Mittal Bhavan 2, 3rd Floor, 62-A, Peddar Road, Mumbai
Director 400026 Maharashtra India

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited, (hereinafter referred to as “The resulting Company” or “ARIL") is a Public Limited Company
originally incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on 7th April, 2008.

The Registered Office, email and website address of the Demerged Company is 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar
Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018 Maharashtra India, Email:info@arshiyalimited.com and Website: www.
arshiyalimited.comrespectively.




14. The main objects for which the resulting Company was formed as set out in the Memorandum of Association are as following:

15.

16.

L

IL.

I1L

To carry on the business of setting up of Rail Infrastructure/Network within India and abroad including operations/
movement of Container/Goods Trains using Indian Railway Network and also to acquire, procure, obtain on lease/licence or
otherwise Container Trains, Rakes, Wagons, Boggies and Create, Develop or Obtain on lease/licence basis Railway Sidings,
Rail Yards, Warehouses required for the business of the Company.

To carry on the business predominantly in the Northern Region of India, of container freight stations which, inter-alia includes
setting up of bonded warehousing infrastructure and services, facilities for customs examination, EDI, empty container yard
for storage of shipping containers, repairs and refurbishment of containers, truck, cargo and material handling equipments,
transportation, non-bonded warehousing, IT & ITES infrastructure and services, warehousing, cold storage and other cargo
related activities.

To carry on the business of Transport & Handling of Containers/ Goods/ Network within India and abroad including
operations/movement of Container/Cargo/Goods Trains using India Railway Network and also to acquire, procure, obtain
on lease/licence or otherwise Container Trains, Rakes, Wagons, Boggies and Create, Develop or obtain on lease/ licence
basis Railway Sidings, Rail Yards, Warehouses required for the business of the Company.

There is no change in the name of the Resulting Company, however the registered office was changed on 27th October, 2015 to
302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018 and the objects of the
Resulting Company was altered on 28th July, 2016 and thereafter on 9th March, 2017 by insertion of additional object clause. The
altered object clause of the Company is as stated in point No. 14 above.

It may be noted that the Resulting Company is a public limited company and its securities are not listed on any stock exchange.

17. The capital structure of the Resulting Company as on the 31st March, 2018 is given below:

18.

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital

Authorized capital

45,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 450,000,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

42,384,417 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 423,844,170

After March 31, 2018, there has been no change in the authorized, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the Resulting

Company.

The proposed capital structure of the Resulting Company post the completion of demerger will be as under:

Particulars

Amount (Rs.)

Equity Share Capital

Authorized capital

32,52,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2 each

65,05,00,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

12,30,22,333 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid-up

24,60,44,666

The name and address of the Promoter(s) of the Resulting Company is provided below:

NAMES ADDRESS

Arshiya Limited 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018




19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

The list of Directors of the Resulting Company is provided below:

List Of Director
SR | Name Of Director DIN Designation Address
No.
1 [Ashishkumar Bairagra 00049591 Director 44, Sadhana Building, B Road, Churchgate Mumbai 400020
Maharashtra India
2 |Navnit Jugal Kishore| 00613576 Director Flat No 114, Aakash Wing, Indraprasth Complex, Satya Nagar,
Choudhary Borivali West, Mumbai 400092 Maharashtra India
3 | Ajay Shankarlal Mittal 00226355 Director Mittal Bhavan 2, 3rd Floor, 62-A, Peddar Road, Mumbai 400026
Maharashtra India
4 | Rishabh Pankaj Shah 00694160 Director Saranam Building, Block No. 7, 7th Road, Prabhat Colony,
Santacruz (East), Mumbai 400055 Maharashtra India

RELATIONSHIP SUBSISTING BETWEEN PARTIES TO THE SCHEME

The Resulting Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Demerged Company.

BOARD MEETING OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY AND THE RESULTING COMPANY FOR APPROVAL OF THE SCHEME

The Scheme has been unanimously approved by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company vide resolution passed in the
meeting held on 24th May, 2018. Out of total 6 (Six) Directors of the Demerged Company, 5 (Five) directors were present in the

Meeting, all of whom voted in favour of the resolution.

The details of voting by Directors on the resolution is as under:

NAME OF THE DIRECTORS DESIGNATION VOTED IN FAVOR | VOTED AGAINST | ABSTAINED FROM
VOTING
Ashishkumar Bairagra Independent Director Yes NA NA
Tara Sankar Bhattacharya Independent Director Yes NA NA
Ajay Shankarlal Mittal Managing Director Yes NA NA
Mukesh Kacker Independent Director Yes NA NA
Archana Ajay Mittal Joint -Managing Yes NA NA
Director

The Scheme has been unanimously approved by the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company vide resolution passed in the
meeting held on May 24, 2018. Out of total 4 (Four) Directors as on that date, 3(three) Directors of the Resulting Company were
present in the meeting, and voted in favour of the resolution. The details of voting by directors on the resolution is as under:

NAME OF THE DIRECTORS DESIGNATION VOTED IN FAVOR | VOTED AGAINST | ABSTAINED FROM
VOTING
Ashishkumar Bairagra Independent Director Yes NA NA
Navnit Jugal Kishore Choudhary | Director Yes NA NA
Ajay Shankarlal Mittal Director Yes NA NA
DETAILS OF THE SCHEME

The parties to the Scheme are the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company along with their respective shareholders and
creditors.

The “Appointed Date” of the Scheme is April 1, 2019. “Effective Date” means the last of the dates, if applicable, on which the
certified or authenticated copy of the order(s) sanctioning the Scheme passed by the National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”)
of Judicature at Mumbai, is filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. This date in only drawn to capture references to all
transactions undertaken between the Appointed Date and date of filing of the NCLT order with Registrar of Companies (“ROC”).
Thus, the same is not to be construed as the effective date for the purpose of Section 232(6) of the Act.
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25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

Share Exchange Ratio

The Resulting Company shall, without any further application or deed, for every 2 (two) fully paid-up equity shares of the
Demerged Company, issue and allot to each member of the Demerged Company whose name appears in the register of members
of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date or to his/her heirs, executors, administrators or the successors-in-title, as the
case may be, 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share of Rs 2 each, of the Resulting Company (‘New Equity Shares’).

Rationale for the Scheme and benefits of the Scheme as perceived by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company are:

e  Tointegrate / consolidate its DWA, RAIL, PFT & ICD business into ARIL, which would enable Arshiya to focus solely on FTWZ
Business ;

e To provide more flexibility in terms of creating business synergies in the Resulting Company i.e. ARIL, enable cost savings,
rationalizing capital requirements and optimizing utilization of valuable resources which will enhance management focus
on the different businesses being housed under separate entities, thereby leading to higher operational efficiency;

. To enhance value for the shareholders and allow focused strategy on expansion/ operation of both the FTWZ and the
Domestic Business independently;

. To achieve and fulfill their objectives more efficiently and economically and the same is also in the interest of all the
stakeholders.

Salient Features of the Scheme:

The Scheme provides for the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) to the Resulting Company.
There will be no change in the shareholding pattern of the Demerged Company. Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in
consideration of the demerger including the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking in the Resulting Company, the
Resulting Company shall, without any further application or deed, for every 2 (two) fully paid-up equity shares of the Demerged
Company, issue and allot to each member of the Demerged Company whose name appears in the register of members of the
Demerged Company as on the Record Date or to his/her heirs, executors, administrators or the successors-in-title, as the case
may be, subject to the provisions of Clause 7.4 of the Scheme, 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share of Rs 2 each, of the Resulting
Company (‘New Equity Shares’).Further, upon issue of the new equity shares to the Shareholders of the Demerged Company
on the record date, all existing equity shares held by the existing shareholders of the Resulting Company (i.e. not including the
shareholders of the Demerged Company on the record date), shall stand cancelled, without any further act or deed.

The equity shares to be issued pursuant to the Scheme in the Resulting Company will be listed with BSE Ltd. and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

Details of capital or debt restructuring, if any: Basis the share exchange ratio mentioned above, the shareholders of the Demerged
Company shall be provided with shares of the Resulting Company in the ratio of 2:1 and the shares held by the Demerged Company
in the Resulting Company shall be extinguished.

Amount due to unsecured creditors as on 30th September, 2019:

CREDITORS NO. OF CREDITORS AMOUNT DUE
Secured Creditors 17 9,98,83,92,045
Unsecured Creditors 128 12,12,96,050

APPROVALS/ SANCTIONS/NO-OBJECTIONS FROM REGULATORY OR GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITY RECEIVED OR PENDING

The BSE Limited was appointed as the designated stock exchange by the Demerged Company for the purpose of co-ordinating
with the SEBI, pursuant to the SEBI Circular.

The Demerged Company received “no adverse observation letter” and “no-objection letter” from BSE and NSE respectively, each
dated 12th Day of July, 2019 and 15th Day of July, 2019 respectively, conveying their “no adverse observations” and “no-objection”
for filing the Scheme with NCLT.

Copies of the aforesaid “no-objection letter” and “no adverse observations letter” of NSE and BSE, respectively, are enclosed as
Annexure B (I) and Annexure B (II).
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32.

33.

34.

Asrequired by the SEBI Circular, the Demerged Company had filed the complaint report with BSE and NSE on. The reportindicated
that the Demerged Company has not received any complaints. A copy of the complaint report submitted by the Demerged
Company to BSE and NSE, dated 17th Day of November, 2018 and 14th Day of May, 2019 is enclosed as Annexure C.

The Demerged Company has also filed the compliance report with BSE and NSE and is enclosed as Annexure D.

Effect of Scheme on various Parties

A.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)

None of the Directors and key managerial personnel of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company or their
respective relatives have any interest in the Scheme except to the extent the (i) equity shares held by them in the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company directly or as a nominee; and/or (ii) Director(s) are common director(s) in the
two companies; and/or (iii) the Director(s), key managerial personnel and their respective relatives are the director(s),
partner(s), member(s) and/or beneficiary(ies) of the companies, firms, association of persons, bodies corporates and/or
trust, as the case may be, that hold shares in the Demerged Company/ Resulting Company. There will be no adverse effect of
the Scheme on the directors and key managerial personnel of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company.

Promoters and Non - Promoter equity shareholders of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company

In compliance with the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company, in their meetings held on May 24, 2018, have adopted a report, inter alia, explaining the effect of the
Scheme on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel, directors, promoters and non-promoter shareholders.
Copy of the reports adopted by the respective Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are
enclosed as Annexure El and EII respectively.

Depositors
Neither the Demerged Company nor the Resulting Company have accepted any deposits.
Creditors and Debenture - Holders /Debenture Trustees

The debts pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking are taken over by the Resulting Company. Any charge, security interest,
lien, statutory lien or statutory charge pertaining to any assets of the Demerged Undertaking shall continue to have effect
only on the assets of the Demerged Undertaking in the Resulting Company and shall cease to have effect on the assets of the
Remaining Business. The debts pertaining to the Remaining Business (as defined in the Scheme) continue to be the debts
or liabilities of the Demerged Company. Accordingly, if any creditor has any charge, security interest, lien, statutory lien
or statutory charge on any of the assets or properties of Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company, such creditor
shall continue to enjoy and hold such charge, lien or security interest upon the properties of Demerged Undertaking in the
Resulting Company.

The rights of the creditors of the Demerged Company or the Resulting Company shall not be affected by the scheme. There
will be no reduction in their claims on account of the Scheme. The creditors will be paid in the ordinary course of the
business as and when their dues are payable. There is no likelihood that the creditors would be prejudiced in any manner as
a result of the Scheme being sanctioned. The Demerged Company or the Resulting Company has not issued any debentures
and accordingly, do not have any debenture holders.

Employees

[.  Onand from the Effective Date, all permanent employees relating to the Demerged Undertaking, as were employed by
the Demerged Company, immediately before such date, shall become the employees of the Resulting Company with the
benefit of continuity of service and without any break or interruption in service. It is clarified that the employees of
the Demerged Undertaking, who become employees of the Resulting Company by virtue of this Scheme, shall continue
to be governed by the same terms of employment as were applicable to them immediately before the demerger. The
Resulting Company undertakes to abide by any agreement/settlement, if any, entered into by the Demerged Company
with any of its respective employees thereof. The Resulting Company further agrees that for the purpose of payment
of any retrenchment compensation, or any other benefits and incentives, if any, such past services with the Demerged
Company shall be taken into account.

II. It is expressly provided that, on the Effective Date, the provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation fund created
or any other special fund existing for the benefit of the employees of the Demerged Company, in relation to the

12



35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

IL

Demerged Undertaking shall become the funds of the Resulting Company, for all purposes whatsoever in relation
to the administration or operation of such fund(s) or in relation to the obligation to make contributions to the said
fund(s) in accordance with the provisions thereof as per the terms provided in the respective trust deeds, if any, to the
end and intent that all rights, duties, powers and obligations of the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged
Undertaking in relation to such fund(s) shall become those of the Resulting Company. These funds shall, subject to the
necessary approvals and permissions and at the discretion of the Resulting Company, either be continued as separate
funds of the Resulting Company for the benefit of the employees of the Demerged Undertaking or be transferred to
and merged with other similar funds of the Resulting Company. It is clarified that the services of the employees of
the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking shall be treated as having been continuous for the
purpose of the said fund(s); and

With effect from the date of filing of this Scheme with the NCLT and up to and including the Effective Date, the Demerged
Company shall not vary or modify the terms and conditions of employment of any of its employees, except with the
prior written consent of the Resulting Company.

There are no investigations or proceedings, pending against the Company under the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the directors and KMPs or their respective relatives have any material interest in respect of the Scheme.

A copy of the Scheme has been filed by the Company with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.

The following documents will be open for obtaining extract from or for making or obtaining copies of or inspection by the Equity
Shareholders at the Registered Office of the Demerged Company, during 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., on all working days (except
Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) upto the date of the Meeting:

a.  Draft of the Scheme which is enclosed as Annexure A.

b.  Copy of the Share Entitlement Ratio Report obtained from ZADN & Associates Chartered Accountants, dated May 24, 2018
which is enclosed as Annexure F.

c.  Statutory Auditor’s certificate in respect of the accounting treatment proposed in the Scheme which is enclosed as Annexure

G.

d. The Fairness opinion obtained from the merchant banker which is enclosed herewith as Annexure H.

e. The audited Accounts of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019
which are enclosed as Annexure I - [ and Annexure [ - Il respectively.

f.  Copy of the Order of the National Company Law Tribunal pursuant to which the meeting is to be convened which is enclosed
as Annexure J.

The applicable information of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited in the format specified for abridged prospectus as provided in
Part D of Schedule VIII of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation,
2018 which is enclosed as Annexure-K.

Dissected Financials (List of Assets and Liabilities of Demerged Company which will be transfer to the Resulting Company) is
enclosed herewith as Annexure L.

The Pre - Scheme and proposed Post-Scheme share capital structure of the Resulting Company is enclosed as Annexure M.

Copy of Annual Report of the Demerged & Resulting Companies for the Financial Year 2016-2017, 2017-2018, 2018-2019.

Contracts or agreements material to the compromise or arrangement - N/A

Any other information or document as the Board believes is necessary - N/A.

It is confirmed that the copy of the Scheme has been filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai by both the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company.

In view of the information provided hereinabove, and the documents attached alongwith this notice and explanatory statement,

13



the requirement of Section 232(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with.

47. After the Scheme is approved by the equity shareholders and creditors of the Demerged Company, it will be subject to the
approval/sanction by NCLT.

For Arshiya Limited.

Sd/-
Ajay S Mittal
Chairman appointed for the meeting

Date: 10th December, 2019
Place: Mumbai

Registered office: 302, Ceejay House,
Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block,
Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli,
Mumbai- 400018
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1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

Annexure A
SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

BETWEEN
ARSHIYA LIMITED
AND
ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 READ WITH SECTION 66 AND SECTION 52 AND OTHER

APPLICABLE PROVISONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

INTRODUCTION

Arshiya Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Demerged Company” or “Arshiya”), a company incorporated under the Companies
Act, 1956 (CIN - L93000MH1981PLC024747) and has its registered office at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar
Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018. Arshiya Limited is listed on the BSE and NSE.

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Resulting Company” or “ARIL”) is a wholly owned subsidiary
of Arshiya Limited. ARIL is a company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 (CIN - U93000MH2008PLC180907), and
has its registered office at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400
018;

This Scheme of arrangement (“Scheme”), inter alia, provides for demerger of the Demerged Undertaking (hereinafter defined
in Part I1I) of the Demerged Company and transfer and vesting thereof into the Resulting Company and utilization of securities
premium of the Demerged and Resulting Company (hereinafter defined under Part II) including consequential or related
matters integrally connected therewith.

PREAMBLE

The management of Arshiya Group intends to reorganize its corporate structure spread across various group companies in
order to integrate/ consolidate its operations by housing different businesses into two different entities/ separate verticals.

As part of the aforesaid overall Group reorganization, the management had also filed a separate scheme of amalgamation of two
of Arshiya’s wholly owned subsidiaries, i.e. Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited (‘AIDHL’) and Arshiya Transport and
Handling Limited (‘ATHL’) into ARIL (‘merger scheme’) with National Company Law Tribunal and is awaiting its approval. The
appointed date for the said merger scheme is October 1, 2015. Accordingly, this scheme of arrangement is conditional upon the
aforesaid merger scheme becoming effective first. In case the said merger scheme is withdrawn or ARIL ceases to be a wholly
owned subsidiary as on the Record Date (defined hereunder), this Scheme will also be withdrawn.

Further, this Scheme is presented under Sections 230 to 232 read with Sections 66 and 52 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 for demerger of Domestic business (as defined hereinafter) of Arshiya Limited (hereinafter referred
to as ‘Arshiya’ or the ‘Demerged Company’) into Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘ARIL or
‘Resulting Company’) and utilization of securities premium of both the entities.

BACKGROUND AND RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME

a. Arshiya, a flagship company of Arshiya Group, is engaged in the business of developing Free Trade Warehousing Zones
(‘FTWZ’) and Domestic Warehousing Areas (‘DWA’) as mentioned below to improve logistics infrastructure in India.

FTWZ Business - FTWZ at Panvel offers over 800,000 Sq. ft. of warehousing space with best in class infrastructure
which is suitable for clients across industries. The facility is well connected to the National and State Highways and
situated only 24 kms from the country’s busiest container port and also close to the proposed International Airport in
Navi Mumbai.
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1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

Domestic Business - Domestic Business comprises of Domestic Warehousing activities being carried out by Arshiya at
land admeasuring 43.42 acres of land situated at Khurja (UP) and investments held in the Resulting Company pertaining
to Private Freight Terminal (‘PFT’), Rail Transportation Services (‘RAIL") businesses being carried in the Resulting
Company and Inland Container Depot (‘ICD’), DWA business being carried in AIDHL.

b. Brief description of the above mentioned business :

PFT: ARIL currently under a PFT license operates Indian Railways traffic business for various customers catering to
bulk goods movement and bagged cargo at sidings specifically earmarked for the same.

RAIL: ARIL holds category-I license to run container trains pan-India and is one of the largest Private Container Train
Operator (PCTO’s) with a rail fleet of 18 rakes and 3,200 owned containers equipped to handle a wide-range of cargo,
with a pan India presence. ARIL's service is completely equipped to provide efficient movement of cargo between
terminals, hubs and warehouses.

ARIL’s infrastructure consists of rail siding, rail terminal equipped with three loop / blast rail lines and three non-ballast
rail lines with a capacity to handle up to 20 rakes per day.

ICD: The Khurja ICD is co-located with a state-of-the-art Rail Terminal and FTWZ. ICD-Khurja is the only private ICD in
the country to have exclusive connectivity with 6-lane private rail siding offering regular and prompt rail connectivity
through owned rakes to all the major gateway ports that service the northern region of India. ICD Khurja is located
strategically with multiple road approaches from the major 4/6 lane highways providing a congestion-free movement
of cargo and containers.

The Group intends to reorganize its corporate structure and integrate / consolidate its operations by housing the
following businesses into two different entities / separate verticals:

1.3.1. FTWZ business in Arshiya
1.3.2. Domestic business (includes DWA, ICD, Rail and PFT business) in ARIL

Though the businesses of all the Group companies complement each other, the Group believes that in the industry, there
are other companies who are doing consolidated business of offering rail infrastructure, cargo/container handling services,
providing ICD and Domestic warehousing services. The demand in the market for the entities providing consolidated services
is higher than the entities providing individual services. In order to earn higher revenue and to cater to the needs of the market,
the management intends to consolidate the rail infrastructure, transport handling business, DWA and ICD business. Hence, the
management envisages the transfer of Domestic business of Arshiya into ARIL.

Accordingly, the proposed demerger of the Domestic Business (as defined hereinafter) envisaged in this Scheme (‘the
Demerger’) would be in order to integrate / consolidate its DWA, RAIL, PFT & ICD business into ARIL, which would enable
Arshiya to focus solely on FTWZ Business. This would provide more flexibility in terms of creating business synergies in the
Resulting Company i.e. ARIL, enable cost savings, rationalizing capital requirements and optimizing utilization of valuable
resources which will enhance management focus on the different businesses being housed under separate entities, thereby
leading to higher operational efficiency.

Further, the Scheme would be in the bestinterests of the shareholders, creditors and employees of Arshiya and ARIL, respectively
as it would result in enhanced value for the shareholders and allow focused strategy on expansion/ operation of both the FTWZ
and the Domestic Business independently. Pursuant to this Scheme all the shareholders of Arshiya will get shares in ARIL and
there would be no change in the economic interest for any of the shareholders of Arshiya pre and post implementation of this
Scheme.

Apropos, the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are of the view that the transfer and
vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined hereinafter) of the Demerged Company with the Resulting Company will
enable both the companies to achieve and fulfill their objectives more efficiently and economically and the same is also in the
interest of all the stakeholders.

The Scheme has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

The transfer of the Demerged Undertaking shall be on a going concern basis.

16



PARTS OF THE SCHEME

2.1.  This Scheme of Arrangement is divided into the following parts:
2.1.1. PART I deals with the definitions and share capital of the Demerged Company (defined hereinafter) and the Resulting
Company;
2.1.2. PART II deals with the utilization of securities premium of the Demerged and the Resulting Company and the
corresponding accounting treatment in connection therewith;
2.1.3. PART III deals with the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking of Demerged Company and its vesting in the Resulting
Company;
2.1.4. PART IV deals with the Remaining Business (defined hereinafter) of the Demerged Company (defined hereinafter);
2.1.5. PART V deals with the consideration for the demerger and accounting treatment for the demerger in the books of the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company consequent to the demerger; and
2.1.6. PART VI deals with general terms and conditions applicable to this Scheme.
PART -1
DEFINITIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL
1. DEFINITIONS
In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the subject or context or meaning thereof, the following expressions shall have the meanings
as set out herein below:
1.1.  “Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, including any statutory modifications, re-enactments or
amendments thereof for the time being in force as the case may be.
1.2.  “Appointed Date” means 01 April 2019.
1.3. “Demerged Company” or “Arshiya” means Arshiya Limited, a company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, and
having its registered office at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai -
400 018.
1.4. “Domestic Business Undertaking” or “Demerged Undertaking” or “Domestic Business” means Arshiya’s entire

undertaking, business, activities and operations and domestic business activities pertaining to the DWA Business (including
Arshiya’s investment in its subsidiary, namely ARIL pertaining to PFT, RAIL businesses being carried ARIL). The term Domestic
Business Undertaking shall include the following:

1.4.1. All assets (whether movable or immovable, real or personal, corporeal or incorporeal, present, future or contingent,
tangible or intangible) wherever situated and of whatever nature, pertaining thereto through which Arshiya carries on
the business, activities and operations relating to the Domestic Business.

1.4.2. All the debts, duties, obligations, loans and liabilities, whether present or future, whether secured or unsecured, of the
Demerged Company in relation to the Domestic Business as on the Appointed Date comprising of:

1.4.2.1.All the debts, duties, obligations and liabilities, including contingent liabilities which arise out of the activities or
operations of the Demerged Company in relation to the Domestic business and all other debts, liabilities, duties
and obligations of the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking which may accrue or arise
after the appointed date but which related up to the date immediately preceding the Appointed Date;

1.4.2.2.Specific loans and borrowings raised, incurred and / or utilized solely for the activities or operation of the
Demerged Company in relation to the Domestic Business;
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1.4.2.3.Liabilities other than those referred in clauses 1.4.2.1 and 1.4.2.2 above and not directly relatable to the Domestic
Business, being the amounts of general or multipurpose borrowings of the Demerged Company as stand in the
same proportion which the value of the assets transferred under this clause of Domestic Business bears to the
total value of the assets of the Demerged Company immediately before the Appointed Date.

1.4.3. Without prejudice to the generality of the above, the Domestic Business shall also include in particular:

1.4.3.1.All assets and properties including land, building, plant and machinery, capital work in progress, equipment,
furniture and fixture, vehicles, computers, electrical installations and any other fixed asset in relation to the
Domestic Business;

1.4.3.2.All current assets, inventory, stock-in-trade, account receivables, loans and advances, prepaid expenses and
other assets in relation to the Domestic Business;

1.4.3.3.Cash and cash equivalents, bank balances and bank accounts relating to the Domestic Business including fixed
deposits;

1.4.3.4.Security deposits, advances, earnest monies, balances, advance lease rentals or other payments made to or
received from the lessors or suppliers or service providers in relation to the Domestic Business and includes
deposits and balances with Government, Semi-Government, local and other authorities and bodies, including
all tax balances or balances with any tax authority or other statutory body pertaining to the Domestic Business,
customers and other persons earnest moneys and/or security deposits paid or received by Arshiya in connection
with the Domestic Business;

1.4.3.5.All agreements (including but not limited to agreements with respect to immoveable properties by way of lease,
license and business arrangements), rights, contracts, entitlements, permits, licenses, registrations, insurance
policies, approvals, consents, engagements, arrangements, subsidies, concessions, exemptions and all other
privileges and benefits of every kind, nature and description whatsoever (including but not limited to benefits
of tax relief including under the Income-tax Act, 1961 such as credit for advance tax, taxes deducted at source,
etc., unutilized deposits or credits, benefits under the VAT/ Sales Tax law / Goods and Services Tax (GST), VAT /
sales tax set off, unutilized deposits or credits, benefits of any unutilized MODVAT / CENVAT / Service tax / GST
credits, etc.) relating to the Domestic Business;

1.4.3.6.Investments, held by Arshiya in ARIL;
1.4.3.7.All permanent employees of Arshiya excluding those who are engaged in relation to the Remaining Business;

1.4.3.8.All records, files, documents, reports, papers, computer programs, manuals, data catalogues, quotations, sales
and advertising materials, list of present and former customers and suppliers, customer credit information,
customer pricing information and other records, whether in physical form or electronic form in connection with
or relating to the Domestic Business;

1.4.3.9. All intellectual property (if any) including but not limited to technical know-how, assignment of trademarks and
other related rights, title and interest vested thereto rights owned or licensed, records, files, papers, data and
documents in the name of Arshiya and in relation to the Domestic Business, Brand name and domain name;

1.4.3.10.All pending litigations or proceedings filed by or against the Demerged Company pertaining to the Domestic
Business;

1.4.3.11.All loans and cash credit facilities availed of by the Demerged Company for the purposes of the Domestic
Business and other liabilities incurred in connection therewith;

Any question that may arise as to whether a specified asset or liability pertains or does not pertain to the Domestic Business
or whether it arises out of the activities or operations of the Domestic Business shall be decided by mutual agreement between
Arshiya and ARIL. Further, it is clarified that the Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Share - I (‘OCRPS-I’) issued
by Arshiya does not relate to Domestic Business and unless converted into equity shares on or before the Record Date, no
additional / proportionate consideration shall be payable to its holders pursuant to this Scheme becoming effective. However,
any Corporate Action relating to the Outstanding OCRPS-I shall be kept in abeyance till the last date upto which the option for
conversion is exercisable.
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1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

3.1.

The expressions which are used in this Scheme and not defined in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the
context or meaning hereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the Act and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
bye-laws, as the case may be, or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof from time to time.

“Effective Date” means the last of the dates, if applicable, on which the certified or authenticated copy of the order(s)
sanctioning the Scheme passed by the National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”) of Judicature at Mumbai, is filed with the
Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. This date in only drawn to capture references to all transactions undertaken between the
Appointed Date and date of filing of the NCLT order with Registrar of Companies (“ROC”). Thus, the same is not to be construed
as the effective date for the purpose of Section 232(6) of the Act.

“Governmental Authority” or “Appropriate Authority” means any applicable central, state or local government, legislative
body, regulatory or administrative authority, agency or commission or any court, tribunal, board, bureau, instrumentality,
judicial or arbitral body having jurisdiction over the territory of India.

“National Company Law Tribunal” or “NCLT” or “Tribunal” means the competent authority under the provisions of Sections
230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act and specifically refers to the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai
Bench in respect of Arshiya and ARIL having their registered offices located in Mumbai, Maharashtra.

“Record Date” means the date to be fixed jointly by the Board of Directors of Demerged and Resulting Company for the purposes
of determining the shareholders of Arshiya to whom shares would be issued in accordance with Clause 7 of this Scheme.

“Remaining Business” or “Remaining Business of Arshiya” shall mean all undertakings, businesses, activities and operations
including assets and liabilities of Arshiya pertaining to the FTWZ business and excludes the Domestic Business.

“Resulting Company” or “ARIL” means Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited a Company incorporated under the Companies Act,
1956 and having its registered office at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli,
Mumbai - 400 018.

“Scheme” means this Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya and ARIL, in its present form and / or with any modifications
and amendments thereto made under Clause 22 of this scheme as approved or directed by the Tribunal.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE

This Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s) and amendment(s) made under Clause 23 of
this Scheme duly approved or imposed or directed by the Tribunal shall be effective from the Appointed Date but shall be
operative from the Effective Date. Therefore, for all regulatory and tax purposes, the Demerger would have been deemed to be
effective from the Appointed Date of this Scheme as per Section 232(6) of the Companies Act 2013. Notwithstanding the above,
the accounting treatment to be adopted to give effect to the provisions of the Scheme would be in consonance with Indian
Accounting Standards 103 (“IND AS 103”) and the mere adoption of such accounting treatment will not in any manner effect
the vesting of the Demerged Undertaking from the Appointed Date.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of Arshiya Limited as on 30" April 2018 is as under:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital

Authorized capital

247,500,000 Equity Shares of Rs 2 each 495,000,000
11,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 110,000,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

229,716,776 Equity Shares of Rs 2 each 459,433,552
OCRPS -1

57,64,619 OCRPS-I of Rs 10 each 5,76,46,190

Subsequent to 30" April 2018, there has been no change in the authorized, issued and paid up share capital of Arshiya Limited.
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3.2

The share capital of the Resulting Company as on 30" April 2018 is as under:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Equity Share Capital

Authorized capital
45,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 450,000,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
42,384,417 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 423,844,170

Subsequent to 30% April 2018, there has been no change in the authorized, issued and paid up share capital of Resulting
Company.

PART 11

UTILISATION OF SECURITIES PREMIUM

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

UTILISATION OF SECURITIES PREMIUM OF DEMERGED COMPANY AND RESULTING COMPANY

It is proposed to write off the aggregate of the balance in Profit and Loss Account as on Appointed Date and the excess of assets
over liabilities as provided under clause 8.1.3 (‘Arshiya Aggregate Book Losses), against the securities premium account of
Arshiya.

It is also proposed to write off the balance in Profit and Loss Account and any excess of consideration over net assets acquired
as provided under clause 8.2.4 as on Appointed Date (‘ARIL Book Losses’), against the securities premium account of ARIL.

Consequent upon the re-organization / utilization of securities premium, as mentioned in clause 4.1 and 4.2 above, the Arshiya
Aggregate Book Losses and ARIL Book Loss as on Appointed Date shall be reduced to NIL.

The utilization of Securities Premium as aforesaid of Arshiya and ARIL respectively, shall be effected as an integral part of and in
terms of this Scheme in accordance with the provisions of Section 230(2)(a) and shall constitute sufficient compliance in terms
of Section 52 and Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 without carrying out separate compliance thereof. Further, the same
does not involve either diminution of liability in respect of unpaid share capital or payment to any shareholder of any paid-up
share capital. Accordingly, the order of the Tribunal sanctioning the Scheme shall be deemed to be an order under Section 66
of the Act as well as other applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013 confirming the reduction of share capital pursuant to
utilization of the securities premium as aforesaid.

The accounting effect of the above sub-clauses shall be directly given in the balance sheet of Arshiya and ARIL respectively.
The utilization of securities premium as aforesaid of Arshiya and ARIL as envisaged in the Scheme shall not affect or impair in
any manner the rights and interests of any of the creditors of Arshiya or ARIL, since Arshiya and ARIL shall, post such reduction,
continue to be in a position to honor the dues of their respective creditors. Therefore, Arshiya and ARIL seeks liberty of the
NCLT for dispensation of words “and reduced” to be added as suffix to its name, as contemplated in Section 66 (2) and 66 (3)
of the Act.

PART - III

DEMERGER OF DOMESTIC BUSINESS UNDERTAKING

5.1.

TRANSFER AND VESTING OF THE DOMESTIC BUSINESS UNDERTAKING

On or after the Effective Date and subject to the provisions of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, the Domestic
Business Undertaking (including all the estate, assets, rights, claims, title, interest and authorities including accretions and
appurtenances of the Domestic Business Undertaking) pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and with other
applicable provisions of the Act shall stand transferred to and vested in or deemed to be transferred to and vested in the
Resulting Company, as a going concern without any further act, deed, matter or thing in the following manner:

Assets

5.1.1. The whole of the Domestic Business Undertaking shall without any further act, deed, matter or thing, stand transferred
to and vested in and / or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company so as to vest in the
Resulting Company all rights, title and interest pertaining to the Domestic Business Undertaking;
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5.1.2.

5.1.3.

5.1.4.

All assets, investments, right, title or interest acquired by the Demerged Company after the Appointed Date but prior
to the Effective Date in relation to the Domestic Business Undertaking shall also, without any further act, instrument or
deed, be and stand transferred to and vested in and be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Resulting
Company upon the Effective date pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and with other applicable provisions
of the Act; and

All the movable assets of the Domestic Business Undertaking and the assets which are otherwise capable of transfer by
physical delivery or endorsement and delivery, including cash in hand, shall be so transferred to the Resulting Company
and deemed to have been physically handed over by physical delivery or by endorsement and delivery, as the case
may be, to the Resulting Company to the end and intent that the property and benefit therein passes to the Resulting
Company with effect from the Appointed Date. Such delivery and transfer shall be made on a date mutually agreed upon
between the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company. However such date of delivery shall be such date as may
be mutually agreed upon by the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

Pursuant to the Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date, all immovable property (including as per
Schedule I to this scheme), whether freehold or leasehold, (including but not limited to land, buildings, offices, factories,
sites and any other immovable property, including accretions and appurtenances) relating to the Domestic Business
Undertaking of the Demerged Company, and any document of title, rights, interest and easements in relation thereto
shall stand transferred to and be vested in the Resulting Company, without any act or deed to be done by the Demerged
Company and/ or the Resulting Company and/or any other Appropriate Authority. The Resulting Company shall be
entitled to exercise all rights and privileges and be liable to pay all taxes and charges and fulfil all obligations, in relation
to or applicable to such immovable properties. The mutation and/ or substitution of the title to the immovable properties
shall be made and duly recorded in the name of the Resulting Company by the appropriate governmental authorities
and third parties pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme by the Tribunal and upon the Effective Date in accordance with
the terms hereof without any further act or deed on part of the Demerged Company and/ or the Resulting Company. It is
clarified that the Resulting Company shall be entitled to engage in such correspondence and make such representations
as may be necessary for the purposes of the aforesaid mutation and/or substitution.

5.2. Contracts

5.2.1.

5.2.2.

All contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements and other instruments of whatsoever nature in
relation to the Domestic Business Undertaking to which the Demerged Company is a party or to the benefit of which
the Demerged Company may be eligible, and which are subsisting or have effect immediately before the Effective date,
shall continue in full force and effect against or in favour of, as the case may be, the Resulting Company in which the
Domestic Business Undertaking vests by way of demerger hereunder and may be enforced as fully and effectually
as if, instead of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company had been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto or
thereunder; and

Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding the fact that vesting of the Domestic
Business Undertaking occurs by virtue of this Scheme itself, the Resulting Company may, at any time after the Effective
date in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required under any law or otherwise, take such actions and execute
such deeds (including deeds of adherence), confirmations or other writings or tripartite arrangements with any party
to any contract or arrangement to which the Demerged Company is a party or any writings as may be necessary in
order to give formal effect to the provisions of this Scheme. The Resulting Company shall, under the provisions of this
Scheme, be deemed to be authorized to execute any such writings on behalf of the Demerged Company in relation to the
Domestic Business Undertaking and to carry out or perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on the
part of the Demerged Company to be carried out or performed.

5.3. Liabilities

5.3.1.

5.3.2.

All debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations of every kind, nature and description of the Domestic
Business Undertaking shall also, under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and all other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Act, without any further act or deed, be transferred to or be deemed to be transferred to the Resulting
Company, so as to become from the Appointed Date the debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations
of the Resulting Company and it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent of any third party or other person who
is a party to any contract or arrangement by virtue of which such debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and
obligations have arisen in order to give effect to the provisions of this sub-clause;

Where any of the loans raised and used, liabilities and obligations incurred, duties and obligations of the Demerged
Company as on the Appointed Date deemed to be transferred to the Resulting Company, have been discharged by the
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5.4.

Demerged Company after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, such discharge shall be deemed to have
been for and on account of the Resulting Company; and

5.3.3. All loans raised and used and all liabilities and obligations incurred by the Demerged Company for the operations of
the Domestic Business Undertaking with prior approval of the Resulting Company after the Appointed Date and prior
to the Effective Date, shall, subject to the terms of this Scheme, be deemed to have been raised, used or incurred for and
on behalf of the Resulting Company and to the extent they are outstanding on the Effective Date, shall also without any
further act or deed be and stand transferred to and be deemed to be transferred to the Resulting Company and shall
become the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Resulting Company which shall meet, discharge and satisfy
the same.

Licenses and Permissions

Any statutory licenses, permissions or approvals or consents held by the Demerged Company required to carry on operations
of the Domestic Business Undertaking shall stand vested in or transferred to the Resulting Company without any further
act or deed, and shall be appropriately mutated by the statutory authorities concerned therewith in favour of the Resulting
Company and the benefit of all statutory and regulatory permissions, environmental approvals and consents, registration or
other licenses, and consents shall vest in and become available to the Resulting Company as if they were originally obtained by
the Resulting Company. In so far as the various incentives, subsidies, rehabilitation schemes, special status and other benefits
or privileges enjoyed, granted by any Governmental Authority or by any other person, or availed of by the Demerged Company
relating to the Domestic Business Undertaking, are concerned, the same shall vest with and be available to the Resulting
Company on the same terms and conditions as applicable to the Demerged Company;, as if the same had been allotted and/or
granted and/or sanctioned and/or allowed to the Resulting Company.

PART - IV

REMAINING BUSINESS

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

REMAINING BUSINESS OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY

The Remaining Business of the Demerged Company and all other assets, liabilities, incentives, rights and obligations pertaining
thereto shall continue to be vested in and managed by the Demerged Company in the manner as provided below.

Alllegal and other proceedings including any insurance claims by or against the Demerged Company under any statute, whether
pending on the Appointed Date or which may be instituted in future, whether or not in respect of any matter arising before
the Effective date and relating to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company (including those relating to any property,
right, power, liability, obligation or duty, of the Demerged Company in respect of the Remaining Business of the Demerged
Company) shall be continued and enforced by or against the Demerged Company.

With effect from the Appointed Date:

6.3.1. The Demerged Company shall be deemed to have been carrying on and to be carrying on all business and activities
relating to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company for and on its own behalf;

6.3.2. The Demerged Company may enter into such contracts as the Demerged Company may deem necessary in respect of
the Remaining Business;

6.3.3. All profits accruing to the Demerged Company thereon or losses arising or incurred by it relating to the Remaining
Business of the Demerged Company shall, for all purposes, be treated as the profits, or losses, as the case may be, of the
Demerged Company;

6.3.4. All assets and properties acquired by the Demerged Company in relation to the Remaining Business on and after the
Appointed Date shall belong to and continue to remain vested in the Demerged Company; and

6.3.5. All liabilities (including contingent liabilities) loans, debts (whether secured or unsecured) raised or incurred, duties
and obligations of every kind, nature and description whatsoever and howsoever arising or accruing in relation to the
Remaining Business shall belong to and continue to remain vested in the Demerged Company.
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PART V

CONSIDERATION AND ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

7.7.

7.8.

CONSIDERATION

In consideration of the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking in accordance with the provisions of this Scheme, the
paid-up share capital of the Resulting Company shall be increased in the manner set out in this Clause.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the demerger including the transfer and vesting of the Demerged
Undertaking in the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall, without any further application or deed, for every 2
(two) fully paid-up equity shares of the Demerged Company, issue and allot to each member of the Demerged Company whose
name appears in the register of members of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date or to his/her heirs, executors,
administrators or the successors-in-title, as the case may be, subject to the provisions of Clause 7.4 below, 1 (one) fully paid-up
equity share of Rs 2 each, of the Resulting Company (‘New Equity Shares”).

In case of any member’s shareholding in the Demerged Company is such that such member becomes entitled to a fraction of 1
(one) equity share of the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall not issue fractional share certificate to such member
and shall consolidate such fractions and issue the consolidated shares to a trustee nominated by the Board of Directors of the
Demerged Company in that behalf, who shall sell such shares and distribute the net sale proceeds (after deduction of expenses
incurred) to such members in proportion to their respective fractional entitlements. During consolidation of fractional shares,
if the sum of fractional shares is not a whole integer, the Resulting Company shall issue such additional fractional share to
the trustee, such that the total shares so issued shall be rounded off to the next whole integer. The issue of fractional share by
the Resulting Company to the Trustee, shall form an integral part of the consideration to be paid under the Scheme and that
no separate process as may be applicable under the Applicable Law, to that extent, shall be required to be followed by the
Resulting Company.

The New Equity Shares issued in terms of clause 7.2 above, shall be listed and / or admitted to trading on the relevant stock
exchange/s in India where the equity shares of the Demerged Company are listed and / or admitted to trading.

Upon the Scheme coming to effect, the shares to be allotted to the members of the Demerged Company by the Resulting
Company shall be listed and / or admitted to trading on the relevant stock exchange/s in India where the equity shares of
the Arshiya are listed and / or admitted to trading as on effective date. Accordingly, the Resulting Company shall take steps
for listing simultaneously on all such stock exchange(s) within a reasonable period of the receipt of the final NCLT order
sanctioning the Scheme. The Resulting Company shall make necessary applications with the provisions of Applicable Laws,
including, as applicable, the provisions of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015, SEBI Circular
No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/105 dated September 21, 2017,
SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2018/2 dated January 03, 2018 and as amended from time to time. The equity shares allotted
pursuant to this Scheme shall remain frozen in the depositaries system till relevant directions in relation to listing / trading are
provided by the stock exchanges. The Resulting Company shall apply to Securities and Exchange Board of India through Stock
Exchange for seeking relaxation under Section 19(2)(b) of Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957.

The New Equity Shares of the Resulting Company to be issued to the members of the Demerged Company pursuant to Clause
7.2 above shall be subject to the memorandum and articles of association of the Resulting Company and shall rank pari-passu
in all respects, including dividend, with the existing equity shares of the Resulting Company.

The issue and allotment of New Equity Shares by the Resulting Company, to the shareholders of Demerged Company as provided
in Clause 7.2 is an integral part of the Scheme and shall be deemed to have been carried out as if the procedure laid down under
Section 62(1)(c) of the Act and all other relevant Rules, Regulations and Laws for the time being in force were duly complied
with.

Upon the scheme becoming effective, the existing equity shares held by the Demerged Company or its nominee in the Resulting
Company shall stand cancelled, extinguished and annulled and from the Effective Date. The cancellation, as aforesaid, which
amounts to reduction of share capital of the Resulting Company, shall be effected as an integral part of this Scheme itself in
accordance with the provisions of Section 66 of the Act and the order of the Tribunal sanctioning the scheme shall be deemed
to be also the order under Section 66 of the Act for the purpose of confirming the reduction. The reduction would not involve
either a diminution of liability in respect of unpaid share capital or payment of paid-up share capital. Notwithstanding the
reduction as aforesaid, the Resulting Company shall not be required to add “and reduced” as suffix to its name and the Resulting
Company shall continue in its existing name.
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8.1.

8.2.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall account for the Scheme in their respective books / financial
statements in accordance with applicable Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time including as provided herein below:

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF DEMERGED COMPANY

8.1.1.

8.1.2.

8.1.3.

8.1.4.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the value of assets, liabilities, profits/losses or reserves pertaining to the
Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company as appearing in the books of accounts of the Demerged Company are
to be transferred to the Resulting Company in terms of clause 2 of this Scheme and shall be reduced from the respective
book value of assets and liabilities of the Demerged Company.

Inter-company balances and investments (including Demerged Company’s investment in Resulting Company), if any,
between Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall stand cancelled. Further, any receivables or payables,
which pertains to the Demerged Undertaking, arising thereon between the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company, inter-corporate loans or balances pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking as arising between the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company or vice-versa shall also stand nullified upon the Scheme becoming effective and
the Demerged Company shall pass necessary entries in its books of accounts;

The excess of assets over liabilities transferred under clause 8.1.1 and after giving effect to clause 8.1.2 above shall be
adjusted against Retained Earnings. In case of deficit, the same shall be credited to capital reserve.

Notwithstanding the above, the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company are authorized to account for any of these
balances in any manner whatsoever, as may be deemed fit, in accordance with accounting principle generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF THE RESULTING COMPANY

Upon the Scheme coming into effect and with effect from the Effective Date:

8.2.1.

8.2.2.

8.2.3.

8.2.4.

8.2.5.

8.2.6.

The Resulting Company shall record all assets and liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking vested in it pursuant to this
Scheme, at the respective values thereof, as appearing in the books of account of the Demerged Company with effect
from the Effective Date.

Any receivables or payables, which pertains to the Demerged Undertaking, arising thereon between the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company, inter-corporate loans or balances pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking as
arising between the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company or vice-versa shall also stand nullified upon the
Scheme becoming effective and the Resulting Company shall pass necessary entries in its books of accounts;

Upon cancellation of the shares held by the Demerged Company in the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company
shall debit to its equity share capital account, the aggregate face value of existing equity shares held by the Demerged
Company, which stands cancelled hereof. Further, the Resulting Company shall credit the aggregate face value of the
new equity shares issued by it to the members of the Demerged Company pursuant to this Scheme to the share capital
account in its books of accounts;

The surplus / deficit arising on recording of the assets and liabilities as per clause 8.2.1 and 8.2.2 over the shares
cancelled and consideration recorded as per clause 8.2.3 above shall be transferred to Capital Reserve / Goodwill in the
balance sheet of the Resulting Company;

In case of any differences in accounting policies between the Resulting Company and the Demerged Company, the
impact of such differences shall be quantified and adjusted in accordance with the applicable accounting principles;

To the extent there are any obligations of the Resulting Company towards the Demerged Undertaking, the obligations
in respect thereof shall come to an end and corresponding effect shall be given in the books of account of the Resulting
Company.
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8.2.7. All costs and expenses incurred by the Resulting Company in connection with the Scheme and to put it into operation
and any other expenses or charges attributable to the implementation of the Scheme shall be debited to the profit & loss
account of the Resulting Company. However, costs pertaining to issue of equity shares shall be directly debited to the
reserves of the Resulting Company.

8.2.8. Notwithstanding the above, the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company are authorized to account for any of these
balances in any manner whatsoever, as may be deemed fit, in accordance with accounting principle generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016.

PART VI

GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

10.

10.1.

10.2.

11.

11.1.

11.2.

11.3.

RECLASSIFICATION OF AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

Upon the Scheme being effective, the Authorised Share Capital of the Resulting Company existing on the Effective Date, without
any further application, act, instrument or deed, shall be reclassified from equity shares of face value of Rs 10/- each into
corresponding number of equity shares of face value of Rs. 2/- each.

Consequent upon the reclassification of Authorised Share Capital under Clause 9.1 above and upon the Scheme being effective,
Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company (relating to the Authorised Share Capital) shall, without any
further act, instrument or deed, be and stand altered, modified and amended pursuant to Sections 13, 14, 61 and 230-232 and
other applicable provisions of the Act.

It is hereby clarified that for the purposes of clause 9.2 above, the consent of the shareholders to the Scheme shall be deemed
to be sufficient for the purposes of effecting the above reclassification in Authorised Share Capital of the Resulting Company,
and no further resolution would be required to be separately passed. Upon the Scheme being effective, the Company shall file
necessary form for the reclassification of the Authorised Share Capital with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. Further, there
would be no requirement for any further payment of stamp duty and/or fee (including registration fee) by the Company for the
reclassification to the Authorised Share Capital.

TAX ASPECTS

It is intended that this Scheme will be in compliance with the conditions relating to “Demerger” as specified under Section
2(19AA) and Section 72A(4) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 such that:

The transfer of the Domestic Business Undertaking will be on a going concern basis with effect from the Appointed Date.

Subject to clause 10.1 above, if any terms or provisions of the Scheme is/are inconsistent with the provisions of Section 2(19AA)
and Section 72A(4) of the Income-tax Act, 1961, the provisions of Section 2(19AA) and Section 72A(4) of the Income-tax Act,
1961 shall prevail and the Scheme shall stand modified to the extent necessary to comply with Section 2(19AA) and Section
72A(4) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 as on the Appointed Date; such modification shall not affect other parts of the Scheme.
Upon the Effective Date, the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are expressly permitted to file / revise their
income-tax, service tax, GST, value added tax, withholding tax and other statutory returns, notwithstanding that the period
for filing / revising such returns may have lapsed. Each of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are expressly
permitted to amend tax deduction at source and other statutory certificates and shall have the right to claim refunds, advance
tax credits, set offs and adjustments relating to their respective incomes / transactions from the Appointed Date.

LISTING AGREEMENT AND SEBI COMPLIANCE
Since the Demerged Company is listed company, this scheme is subject to the compliances by the Demerged Company of all
requirements under the Listing Regulations and all statutory directives of the Securities Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI")

through its circulars insofar as they relate to sanction and implementation of the scheme.

The Demerged Company in compliance with Listing Regulations shall apply for the “Observation Letter” to BSE and NSE where
its shares are listed.

The Demerged Company shall also comply with the directives of SEBI contained in circular no CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated
March 10, 2017 (as amended from time to time) issued by SEBI in terms of Regulations 37 of the Listing Regulations.
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12.

12.1.

13.

13.1.

13.2.

14.

14.1.

14.2.

14.3.

14.4.

15.

15.1.

15.2.

LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES OF RESULTING COMPANY

Scheme of Demerger is in conformity with the requirements as laid down in sub-rule 19(7) of Securities Contract (Regulation)
Rules, 1957 and in terms of the said sub-rule after allotment of New Equity Shares in Resulting Company, Resulting Company
shall comply with relevant provisions under SEBI Regulations, as may be applicable in relation to listing of shares allotted,
simultaneously on all stock exchanges where the equity shares of Demerged Company are listed.

Resulting Company shall make application to the SEBI in terms of Rule 19(7) of Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957 for
listing of equity shares at all the stock exchanges where the equity shares of Demerged Company are listed on the Appointed
Date without complying with the requirements of Rule 19(2)(b) of Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957.

ARIL shall enter into such arrangements and give such confirmations and / or undertakings as may be necessary in accordance
with the applicable laws or regulations for complying with the formalities of the aforesaid stock exchanges. On such formalities
being fulfilled, the stock exchanges shall list and / or admit such New Equity Shares also for the purpose of trading. The New
Equity Shares allotted by ARIL, pursuant to this Scheme, shall remain frozen in the depositories system till the listing / trading
permission is given by the BSE.

APPROVAL OF SCHEME BY PUBLIC SHAREHOLDERS

The Approval to this Scheme of Arrangement shall be obtained from the shareholders of the Demerged Company i.e. Arshiya
in accordance with SEBI circular no CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (as amended from time to time) issued by
SEBI in terms of Regulations 37 of the Listing Regulations.

The Scheme shall be acted upon only if the votes cast by the public shareholders in favor of the proposal are more than the
number of votes cast by the public shareholders against it.

SECURITY

The transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking as aforesaid shall be subject to the existing securities, charges, mortgage
and other encumbrances if any, subsisting over or in respect of the property and assets or any part thereof to the extent
that such securities, charges, mortgages, encumbrances are created to secure the liabilities forming part of the Demerged
Undertaking. It is agreed by and between the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company, that pursuant to the demerger,
necessary steps shall be taken in order to effect the change/ modification of charges, if any, in the records of the Registrar of
Companies.

It is clarified that unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company, in so far as the assets
comprising the Demerged Undertaking are concerned the security or charge relating to loans or borrowings of the Demerged
Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking, shall without any further act or deed continue to relate to the said assets
only after the Appointed Date and the said assets shall not relate to or be available as security in relation to any other borrowings
of the Demerged Company;

14.2.1. Similarly, the security or charge relating to loans or borrowings of the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged
Undertaking, shall continue to relate to the said assets only after the Appointed Date and shall not relate to or be
available as security in relation to any other borrowings of the Resulting Company and vice-versa;

The other assets of the Demerged Company shall not relate to or be available as security in relation to the said borrowings of
the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking; and

The Demerged Company may enter into such alternate arrangements with the lenders pursuant to the release of security as per
the provisions mentioned herein.

EMPLOYEES

On and from the Effective Date, all permanent employees relating to the Demerged Undertaking, as were employed by the
Demerged Company, immediately before such date, shall become the employees of the Resulting Company with the benefit
of continuity of service and without any break or interruption in service. It is clarified that the employees of the Demerged
Undertaking, who become employees of the Resulting Company by virtue of this Scheme, shall continue to be governed by the
same terms of employment as were applicable to them immediately before the demerger. The Resulting Company undertakes
to abide by any agreement/settlement, if any, entered into by the Demerged Company with any of its respective employees
thereof. The Resulting Company further agrees that for the purpose of payment of any retrenchment compensation, or any
other benefits and incentives, if any, such past services with the Demerged Company shall be taken into account.

It is expressly provided that, on the Effective Date, the provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation fund created or any other
special fund existing for the benefit of the employees of the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking
shall become the funds of the Resulting Company, for all purposes whatsoever in relation to the administration or operation
of such fund(s) or in relation to the obligation to make contributions to the said fund(s) in accordance with the provisions
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15.3.

16.

16.1.

16.2.

16.3.

16.4.

16.5.

16.6.

16.7.

17.

17.1.

18.

thereof as per the terms provided in the respective trust deeds, if any, to the end and intent that all rights, duties, powers and
obligations of the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking in relation to such fund(s) shall become those
of the Resulting Company. These funds shall, subject to the necessary approvals and permissions and at the discretion of the
Resulting Company, either be continued as separate funds of the Resulting Company for the benefit of the employees of the
Demerged Undertaking or be transferred to and merged with other similar funds of the Resulting Company. It is clarified that
the services of the employees of the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking shall be treated as having
been continuous for the purpose of the said fund(s); and

With effect from the date of filing of this Scheme with the NCLT and up to and including the Effective Date, the Demerged
Company shall not vary or modify the terms and conditions of employment of any of its employees, except with the prior
written consent of the Resulting Company.

BUSINESS AND PROPERTY IN TRUST
During the period between the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date:

The Demerged Company shall be deemed to have been carrying on all the business and activities relating to the Demerged
Undertaking and shall be deemed to hold and stand possessed of the entire business and undertakings in relation to the
Demerged Undertaking for and on account of and in trust, on behalf of the Resulting Company.

All the income or profits accruing or arising to the Demerged Company and all costs, charges, expenses or losses incurred by
the Demerged Company, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking shall for all purposes of this demerger be treated as the
income, profits, costs, charges, expenses and losses of the Resulting Company, as the case may be.

Any of the rights, powers, authorities, privileges, attached, related or pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking exercised by the
Demerged Company shall be deemed to have been exercised by the Demerged Company for and on behalf of, and in trust for
and as an agent of the Resulting Company; and

The Demerged Company shall carry on the business pertaining to the Domestic Business Undertaking with reasonable diligence
and business prudence and shall not alter or diversify business within the Domestic Business Undertaking nor venture into
any new business (except for Remaining Business), nor alienate, charge, mortgage, encumber or otherwise deal with the assets
or any part thereof except in the ordinary course of business without the prior written consent of the Resulting Company or
pursuant to any pre-existing obligation undertaken prior to the date of acceptance of this Scheme by the respective boards of
directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

The Demerged Company shall not utilize the profits or income in relation to the Demerged Undertaking for the purpose of
declaring or paying any dividend in respect of the period falling on and after the Appointed Date, without the prior written
consent of the Resulting Company.

The Resulting Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to the Governmental Authorities or
other appropriate forums as may be required under any applicable law, for such consents, approvals and sanctions which the
Resulting Company may require.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

All legal, administrative and other proceedings, of whatsoever nature pending in any court or before any authority, judicial,
quasi-judicial or administrative or any adjudicating authority and/or arising after the Appointed Date and relating to the
Demerged Undertaking, or its respective properties, assets, debts, liabilities, duties and obligations shall be continued and/
or enforced until the Effective date by or against the Demerged Company; and from the Effective Date, shall be continued
and enforced by or against the Resulting Company in the same manner and to the same extent as would or might have been
continued and enforced by or against the Demerged Company, had the Scheme not been made. On and from the Effective
Date, the Resulting Company shall have the right to initiate, defend, compromise or otherwise deal with any legal proceedings
relating to the Demerged Undertaking, in the same manner and to the same extent as would or might have been initiated by the
Demerged Company as the case may be, had the Scheme not been made; and if any suit, appeal or other proceedings relating to
the Demerged Undertaking, of whatever nature by or against the Demerged Company be pending, the same shall not abate or
be discontinued or in any way be prejudicially affected by reason of the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking or by anything
contained in this Scheme but the proceedings may be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Resulting Company
in the same manner and to the same extent as it would or might have been continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against
the Demerged Company as if this Scheme had not been made.

SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

The transfer of properties and liabilities and the continuance of proceedings by or against the Resulting Company, as envisaged
under this Scheme, shall not affect any transaction or proceedings already concluded by the Demerged Company, in relation
to the Demerged Undertaking on or after the Appointed Date till the Effective Date, to the end and intent that the Resulting
Company accepts and adopts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by the Demerged Company, in relation to the
Demerged Undertaking, as done and executed on behalf of itself.
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21.1.
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22.

23.

23.1.

23.2.

24.

VALIDITY OF EXISTING RESOLUTIONS, ADJUSTMENTS ETC.

All resolutions passed by the Demerged Company so far as they relate to or to be done or caused to be done in relation to the
Demerged Undertaking, shall be deemed to have authorized any Director of the Resulting Company or such other person(s)
as authorized by any two Directors of the Resulting Company to do all acts, deeds, things as may be necessary to give effect to
these Resolutions.

DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND

For the avoidance of doubt, itis hereby declared that nothing in the Scheme shall prevent the Resulting Company from declaring
and paying dividends, whether interim or final, to its equity shareholders.

APPLICATION TO THE TRIBUNAL

The Demerged Company shall and the Resulting Company, if required, shall make applications/ petitions to the NCLT for
sanction of this Scheme, under Sections 230 to 232 read with Sections 66 and 52 and other applicable provisions of the Act; and

Any dispute arising out of this Scheme shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the NCLT, Mumbai Bench.
MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company (acting through their Board of Directors, Committee thereof or any director
or any other person authorized by the Board of Directors, Committee thereof to this effect) may assent to any modifications
or amendments to this Scheme or to any conditions or limitations that the Tribunal may deem fit to direct or impose or
which may otherwise be considered necessary, desirable or appropriate by the respective Demerged Company and Resulting
Company, including pursuant to the orders of the NCLT and/or any other authorities as they may deem fit to direct or impose
or which may otherwise be considered necessary or desirable for settling any question or doubt or difficulty that may arise
for implementing and/or carrying out the Scheme. The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company (acting through their
Board of Directors, Committee thereof or any director or any other person authorized by the Board of Directors, Committee
thereof to this effect) shall be authorized to take such steps and do all acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, desirable or
proper to give effect to this Scheme and to resolve any doubts, difficulties or questions whether by reason of any orders of the
Tribunal or of any directions given by any other appropriate authorities or for any reason otherwise arising out of this Scheme
and/or any matters concerning or connected herewith.

If any part of the Scheme is held invalid or is ruled illegal by the Tribunal or becomes unenforceable for any reason, whatsoever
whether under present or future laws, then it is the intention of the Companies that such part in the opinion of the board of any
companies, shall be severable from the remainder of the Scheme and the remaining part of this Scheme shall not be affected
thereby, unless the deletion of such part, in the opinion of Board of either of the companies, shall cause this Scheme to become
materially adverse to either of the companies in which case companies shall attempt to bring about a modification in this
Scheme, which will best preserve the benefits and obligations of this Scheme for companies, including but not limited to such
part.

EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS

In case the Scheme is not approved by the Tribunal or any of the approvals or conditions enumerated in the Scheme have not
been obtained or complied with, or for any other reason, if this Scheme cannot be implemented, then the board of directors
of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall mutually waive such conditions as they consider appropriate
to give effect, as far as possible, to this Scheme and failing such mutual agreement, the Scheme shall become null and void
and in such event no rights or liabilities whatsoever shall accrue to or be incurred by either the Resulting Company or the
Demerged Company and each party shall bear their respective costs, charges and expenses in connection with this Scheme
unless otherwise mutually agreed upon.

If any part of this Scheme hereof is invalid, held illegal by Tribunal, or unenforceable under any present or future laws, then it
is the intention of the parties that such part shall be severable from the remainder of the Scheme, and the Scheme shall not be
affected thereby, unless the deletion of such part shall cause this Scheme to become materially adverse to any party, in which
case the parties shall attempt to bring about a modification in the Scheme, as will best preserve for the parties the benefits and
obligations of the Scheme, including but not limited to such part.

COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES

Save and except as provided otherwise, all costs, charges, expenses, taxes including duties, levies in connection with the Scheme
and its implementation thereof, and matters incidental thereto, shall be borne by the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company respectively.
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Annexure Bl

Ref: NSE/LIST/18881_| July 15, 2019

The Company Secretary
Arshiya Limited
302, Level-3, Ceejay House,
Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block,
Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai - 400018
Kind Attn.: Ms. Savita Dalal
Dear Madam,

Sub: Observation Letter for Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya Limited and Arshiya
Rail Infrastructure Limited

We are in receipt of Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya Limited (“Demerged Company” or
“Arshiya”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“Resulting Company” or “ARIL”). The
Scheme of Arrangement provides for Demerger of Domestic Business Undertaking which includes
Domestic Warehousing activities (Demerged Undertaking) from Arshiya Limited (“Demerged
Company” or “Arshiya”) into Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (“Resulting Company” or
“ARIL”).

Based on our letter reference no Ref: NSE/LIST/18881submitted to SEBI and pursuant to SEBI
Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (‘Circular’), SEBI vide letter dated
July 12, 2019, has given following comments:

a. The Company shall ensure that additional information, if any submitted by the Company, after
filing the Scheme with the Stock Exchange and from the date of the receipt of this letter is
displayed on the website of the listed company.

b. The Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular.

c. The Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be incorporated
in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) and the company is
obliged to bring the observations to the notice of NCLT.

d. Itisto be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence,
the company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section
230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments/observations/ representations.

It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence, the
company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 to National Stock Exchange of India Limited again for its
comments/observations/ representations.

This Document is Digitally Signed
Signer: Rajendra P Bhosale

Date: Mon, Jul 15, 2019 19:00:11 IST
Location: NSE

Mational Stock Exchangs of India Limited | Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra Kura Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051,
India +91 22 26596100 | www.ns=india.com | CIN U6T120MH199 2PLLOGGTES
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Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to
the shareholders, while seeking approval of the Scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted
companies involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the circular
dated March 10, 2017.

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including undertaking
given in terms of Regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we hereby convey our “No-
objection” in terms of Regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, so as to enable the
Company to file the draft scheme with NCLT.

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information
submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any
contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations,
Guidelines / Regulations issued by statutory authorities.

The validity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from July 15, 2019, within which the
scheme shall be submitted to NCLT.

Yours faithfully,
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Rajendra Bhosale
Manager

P.S. Checklist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following
URL http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further issues.htm

This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: Rajendra P Bhosale
Date: Mon, Jul 15, 2019 19:00:11 IST
Location: NSE
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ANNEXURE- EI

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ARSHIYA LIMITED AT ITS MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY THE 24th DAY
OF MAY, 2018 EXPLAINING THE EFFECT OF SCHEME ON EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS
AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDER

Background:

1. The proposed Scheme of arrangement is between Arshiya Limited (“Demerged company”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure
Limited (“Resulting company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”) had been approved by the board of
directors of the Demerged Company (“Board”) vide the resolution passed at its meeting on May 24, 2018.

2. The provision of Section 230(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 requires the Board to adopt a report explaining effect of the
Scheme on each class of Shareholders, Key Managerial Personnel, Promoters and Non-Promoter Shareholders, laying out in
particular share exchange ratio and specifying and special valuation difficulties. The said report adopted by the Board is required
to be circulated to the shareholders and creditors along with the notice convening the meeting of members/creditors.

3. This report of the Board is accordingly prepared in accordance with the requirements specified under Section 230(3) (c) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

4.  The following documents were considered by the Board for the purpose of issuing this report:

a.  The draft of the Scheme

b.  Report by ZADN & Associates, Chartered Accountants in respect of share entitlement ratio.

c.  Fairness opinion dated May 28, 2018 provided by the Marchant Banker in respect of the fairness of the share entitlement
ratio.

d. Report of the Audit Committee of the Demerged Company, recommending the draft scheme to the Board for approval.

e. Certificate dated 24" day of May, 2018 issued by Chaturvedi & Shah, Chartered Accountants the statutory auditors of the
company as required under section 232(3) of the companies Act, 2013 certifying that the accounting treatment in the draft
scheme is in accordance with the accounting standards and applicable law.

Report:

1. The Scheme provides for the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the scheme) to the Resulting Company. There
will be no change in the shareholding pattern of the Demerged Company.

2. Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the demerger including the transfer and vesting of the Demerged
Undertaking in the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall, without any further application or deed, for every 2 (two)
fully paid-up equity shares of the Demerged Company, issue and allot to each member of the Demerged Company whose name
appears in the register of members of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date or to his/her heirs, executors, administrators
or the successors-in-title, as the case may be, 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share of Rs 2 each, of the Resulting Company (‘New
Equity Shares’).

Eff f th heme on the Equi hareholder: he only cl f Shareholder: n romoter nd Non-Promoter
hareholders of the Demer mpany:

1.  Basis the share exchange ration mentioned above, the Resulting Company shall issue shares to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company in the ratio of 2:1 and the shares held by the Demerged Company in the Resulting Company shall be extinguished.

2. Upon the Scheme coming to effect, the shares to be allotted to the members of the Demerged Company by the Resulting Company
shall be listed and / or admitted to trading on the relevant stock exchange/s in India where the equity shares of the Arshiya
are listed and / or admitted to trading as on effective date. Accordingly, the Resulting Company shall take steps for listing
simultaneously on all such stock exchange(s) within a reasonable period of the receipt of the final NCLT order sanctioning the
Scheme.

3. Pursuant to the Scheme, all shareholders of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date (as defined in the scheme) will receive
equity shares in the Resulting Company and subsequently, such shareholders of the Demerged Company will hold equity shares
in both, the Demerged Company and Resulting Company, it will give such shareholders of the Demerged Company the ability to
continue to remain invested in both or either of the Companies, giving them greater flexibility in managing and/or dealing with
their investments.
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4.  The Scheme is beneficial to the respective shareholders, creditors, employees and all stakeholders of the Demerged Company and
Resulting Company. The Scheme is expected to contribute in furthering and fulfilling the objectives of both the companies and in
the growth and development of their respective businesses.

Basis the aforesaid, we understand that there will be no adverse effect of the scheme on the equity shareholders, directors,
promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the Demerged Company.

Eff f th heme on the Dir rs and Key Managerial personnel of the Demer; mpany:

5. None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Demerged Company and their respective relatives have any interest in
the scheme except to the extent the (i) equity shares held by them in the Demerged Company and the resulting Company directly
or as nominee; and /or (ii) Director(s) are common director(s)in the two companies; and/or (iii) the Director(s), key managerial
personnel and their respective relatives are the director(s), partner(s), members(s) and/or beneficiary(ies) of the companies,
firms, association of persons, body corporates and/or trust, as the case may be, that hold shares into the Demerged Company/
Resulting Company. There will be no adverse effect of the scheme on the directors and key managerial personnel of the Demerged
Company

For Arshiya Limited.

Sd/-
Ajay S Mittal
Chairman appointed for the meeting

Date: 10" December, 2019
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE- EIl

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED AT ITS MEETING HELD ON
THURSDAY THE 24th DAY OF MAY, 2018 EXPLAINING THE EFFECT OF SCHEME ON EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDER

Background:

1.

The proposed Scheme of arrangement is between Arshiya Limited (“Demerged company”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure
Limited (“Resulting company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”) had been approved by the board of
directors of the Demerged Company (“Board”) vide the resolution passed at its meeting on May 24, 2018.

The provision of Section 230(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 requires the Board to adopt a report explaining effect of the
Scheme on each class of Shareholders, Key Managerial Personnel, Promoters and Non-Promoter Shareholders, laying out in
particular share exchange ratio and specifying and special valuation difficulties. The said report adopted by the Board is required
to be circulated to the shareholders and creditors along with the notice convening the meeting of members/creditors.

This report of the Board is accordingly prepared in accordance with the requirements specified under Section 230(3) (c) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The following documents were considered by the Board for the purpose of issuing this report:

a.  The draft of the Scheme

b.  Report by ZADN & Associates, Chartered Accountants in respect of share entitlement ratio.

c.  Fairness opinion dated May 28, 2018 provided by the Marchant Banker in respect of the fairness of the share entitlement
ratio.

. Report of the Audit Committee of the Resulting Company, recommending the draft scheme to the Board for approval.

e. Certificate dated 24th day of May, 2018 issued by Chaturvedi & Shah, Chartered Accountants the statutory auditors of the
company as required under section 232(3) of the companies Act, 2013 certifying that the accounting treatment in the draft
scheme is in accordance with the accounting standards and applicable law.

Report:

The Scheme provides for the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the scheme) to the Resulting Company. There
will be no change in the shareholding pattern of the Demerged Company.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the demerger including the transfer and vesting of the Demerged
Undertaking in the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall, without any further application or deed, for every 2 (two)
fully paid-up equity shares of the Demerged Company, issue and allot to each member of the Demerged Company whose name
appears in the register of members of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date or to his/her heirs, executors, administrators
or the successors-in-title, as the case may be, 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share of Rs 2 each, of the Resulting Company (‘New
Equity Shares’).

Basis the share exchange ration mentioned above, the Resulting Company shall issue shares to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company in the ratio of 2:1 and the shares held by the Demerged Company in the Resulting Company shall be extinguished.

Upon the Scheme coming to effect, the shares to be allotted to the members of the Demerged Company by the Resulting Company
shall be listed and / or admitted to trading on the relevant stock exchange/s in India where the equity shares of the Arshiya
are listed and / or admitted to trading as on effective date. Accordingly, the Resulting Company shall take steps for listing
simultaneously on all such stock exchange(s) within a reasonable period of the receipt of the final NCLT order sanctioning the
Scheme.

Pursuant to the Scheme, all shareholders of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date (as defined in the scheme) will receive
equity shares in the Resulting Company and subsequently, such shareholders of the Demerged Company will hold equity shares
in both, the Demerged Company and Resulting Company, it will give such shareholders of the Demerged Company the ability to
continue to remain invested in both or either of the Companies, giving them greater flexibility in managing and/or dealing with
their investments.
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4.  The Scheme is beneficial to the respective shareholders, creditors, employees and all stakeholders of the Demerged Company and
Resulting Company. The Scheme is expected to contribute in furthering and fulfilling the objectives of both the companies and in
the growth and development of their respective businesses.

Basis the aforesaid, we understand that there will be no adverse effect of the scheme on the equity shareholders, directors, promoters
and non-promoter shareholders of the Demerged Company.

Eff f th heme on the Dir rs and Key Managerial personnel of the Resultin mpany:

5. None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Resulting Company and their respective relatives have any interest in
the scheme except to the extent the (i) equity shares held by them in the Demerged Company and the resulting Company directly
or as nominee; and /or (ii) Director(s) are common director(s)in the two companies; and/or (iii) the Director(s), key managerial
personnel and their respective relatives are the director(s), partner(s), members(s) and/or beneficiary(ies) of the companies,
firms, association of persons, body corporates and/or trust, as the case may be, that hold shares into the Demerged Company/
Resulting Company. There will be no adverse effect of the scheme on the directors and key managerial personnel of the Resulting
Company.

For Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited.

Sd/-
Ajay S Mittal
Chairman appointed for the meeting

Date: 10th December, 2019
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE-I-I
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019

ANNEXURE-I-II

Rupees in kakhs

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 5 44,322.37 47,856.82
(c) Intangible Assets 6 2,825,28 3,223.16
{d} Financlal Assets
{f} Other Financial Assets 7 663,64 818.60
(e} Other Non-Current Assets 8 1,335.26 1,227.72
49,136.55 53,126.30
Current assets .
{a} Inventories 9 - 15.66
(b} Financial Assets .
{i} Trade Recelvables 10 1,323.33 ' 666.59
{ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 120.24 37535
(i1} Bank Batances Other than {il) above 12 267.30 386,15
{iv} Other Financial Assets 13 322,37 348.59
{c} Other Current Assets 14 133.81 308.46
2,167.0% 2,100.81
TOYAL ASSETS 51,313.60 55,227.11
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 1
{a) Equity Share capital 15 4,238.44 4,238.44
(b} Other Equity 16 11819713 {14,073.62)
{13,958.69) (9,835.18)
Liabllitles ¥ o
Non Current Liabilities "
{a) Financial Uabliitles
{1} Borrowings 17 31,902.67 33,538.04
{b} Provisions 18 12052 ~1632
{c} Other Non-Current Liabllities 19 1,632.32 1,723.69
33,655.51 35,278.15_
Current Uabiiitles i
{a) Financial Llabilitles ‘
{i) Borrowings 0 304.38 202526
{ii) Trade Payables 21
{A) Total cutstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 15.77 5.24
{BJTotal cutstanding dues of creditors Other than Micro and t
Small Enterprises 1:307.04 520‘83:
{iil) Other Financial Liabilities 22 28,103.68 25,206.84
(b} Gther Cumvent Liabliitles 23 1,874,90 1,918,23
{c} Provisions 24 10.61 3.69
31,616.78 29,724.14
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 51,313.60 55,227.11
Mates to the financlal statements 1-57
As per our Report of even date s
For Chaturved) & Shah LLP For and on hehalf of Board of Directors of =,
Chartered Accountants Arshlya Rall Infrastructure Limited //’%“_;'1?3};&\
Firm Registration Number 101720W/W100355 y 0 AR
i, HE( tumm 8

op

Vija¥ Napawaliya
Partner
fembership Number. 109859

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2018
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Navnit Choudhary .

Ajay § Mittal

Director Director

DIN : 00226355 DIN ; 00613576

Am upta pakkumar Lakhan)
Chlef Financial Officer Company Secretary
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

INCOME

Revenue from operations 25 13,614.83 13,598.32

Other income 26 641.87 1,459.3%
Total iIncome () : 14,256.70 15,057.71
EXPENSES

Cost of operations 27 11,400.27 11,507.38

Employee benefits expenses 28 1,121.91 826.79

Finance costs 23 7.015.57 8,018.94

Depreciation and amortization expenses 30 4,099.64 4,130.61

Other expenses 31 1,253.59 89543
Total Expenses (It} 24,890.98 25,379.20
Loss before exceptional items and tax (1-11) {10,634.28) {10,321.458}
Exceptional items {Net) 32 {6,475.16) 424.26
Loss before tax (4,159.12) {10,745.75}
Tax expense: a5

Current tax . -

Deferred tax - .
Loss for the year {4,159.122} {10,745.75)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {OC1}

Item not 1o be reclassified to profit and loss :

Remeasurement of gains/ {losses) on defined benefit plans 37 {24.39) 7.19
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR {4,183.51) {10,738.56
Earnings per Equity shares [Face Value Rupeas 10 each) 23
Basic/ Diluted earnings per share (In Rupees}) {9.81} {25.35)
Notes to the financlal statements 1.57
As per our Report of even date

For Chaturved] & Shah LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arshlya Rail infrastructure Lisnited
Firm Registration Number 101720W/W100355
e;(”'”‘ ALy 4
\)j Q\w\,\\ . 31 " Lol taOIes
Vijay Napawallya Ajay § Mittal Navnit Choudhary
Partner Diractor Director

Membership Number, 109859

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2019

DIN : 00226355

Chief Firianclal Officer

DIN : 00613576

 Prions

Rvani Dipakkumar Lakhani
Company Secretary
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

A Equity Share Capital {Rafer Note 15)

(Rupees in lakhs

A .

RE TP Y

Equity Shares of Rupses 10 each issued, subscribed and paid up

As at Aprll 1, 2017
Equlty Shares 4,233.44
Issue of equity share during the year -

As at March 31, 2018 4,238.44
Equity Shares 4,238.44
Issue of equity share during the year .

As at March 31, 2019 4,238.44

B Other Equity {Refer Note 16)

(Ru ees in lakhs)

[As at April 1, 2017 ' | (43,129.57)| 1 (3,330.44)

Loss for the year - {10,745.75) - - {10,745.75}
Other comprehenslve income - 7.19 - - 7.19
Total comprehensive income for the year - {10,738.56} - - {10,738.55)
Falr valuation of financial guarantees given - (4.62} - - (4.62)
As at March 31, 2018 38,123.31 (53,932.75) 1,564.45 17137 |  {14,073.62)
Loss far the year - {4,159.12) - - (4,159.12)
Other comprehensive income - 124.39} - - {24.39}
Total comprehensive Income for the year - {4,183.51) . - {4,183.51)
Fair valuation of financial guarantees given - - 60.00 - 60.00
As at March 31, 2019 38,123.31 {58,116.26 1,624.45 17137 |  {18,197.13)
Nates to the financlal statements 1-57
As per our Report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Arshiya Rall Infrastructure Limited

Firm Registration Number 101720W/W100355
W Naasasr OIS
i Ee———e |

Vijay Napawallya Alay S Mittal Navnit Choudhary

Partner Director Director

Membership Number. 102859 DIN : 00226355 DIN : 00613576

Place ; Mumbal Amardedfi Gupta Avani Dipakkumar Lakhani
Date: May 27, 2019 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss for the year bafore tax (4,159.12) {10,745.75)
Adjustmants for ;

Depredation and amortizatlon expensas 4,095.64 4,130.61
Interest Income {2110 {29.28)
Lass on satefdiscarded Property, plant and equipment _ 182.79
Gain an sale of Investment - (5.00)
Sundry Balances Written Back [net) [245.67) {614.53)
Finance Expense 7,018 57 8,018.94
Bad Debts Written off - 101.36
Settlernent of Claims (6,475.16) 302,54
Unwinding of interest on loan to related party - {476.14)
Fair value of financial Instruments [5.76) {1.28)
Government grant - income (365.49) (365.49)
Financial Guarantee Incomnea {3.85), (0.77}
Advance rent 6.13 145
OPERATING PROFIT / {LOSS) BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES {154.81) 499,35
AdJustments for

Trade & other payables 640,92 {8172.42)
Inventorles 1566 0.07
Trade & ather receivables (483.73) 1,532.56
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 18.04 1,214.56
Direct Tax {Paid)/ Refunds {113.22) 24.58
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Total (A} [95.18} 1,239.14 |
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment {167.78} {295.31)
Purchase of intanglble assets - (500.00)
Purchase of Investrnent [77.69) -
Proceeds from Sale of Investment 156.55 31.85
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.47 .
Interest Incamea 2110 29.38
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Total {(8) {27.35) {734.08)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Praceeds from barrowlngs - Non current 2,9€0.00 3,220.74
Repayment of borrowings - Non current £1,060.00} {3,756.60)
Borrowing - current {Net} {1,788.58} 1,402,08
Interest paid oh borrowings (244.00) {1,172.85)
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Total (C) {132.58} [306.63}
Net \ncrease/iDecrease) In cash and cash equivalents {A+8+L] {255.11) 198.43
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 37535 176.92
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 120.24 375.35
Cash and Cash Equivalents a1 the end of the year 120,24 37535
*Note:- Changes in Habilitles arlsing from financing activities :

Particulars March 31, 2018 Cash flow INDAS impact Cthet non cash March 31, 2019

adjustrnant

Long term borrowing (Refer Note no. 17 & 23} _42,469.34 __1,900,00 144.94 996,38 43,517.90
$hort term horrowing (Refer Note no. 20} 2029.26 {1,788.58 63.70 . 304.38
Notes to the financlal staternents 157
As per our Report of even date /f-\ﬂp—-\F@@%

For Chatusvedi B Shah LLP For and on behalf of Bosrd of Directors of TN
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

CORPORATE INFORMATION:

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited {CIN : U93000MH2008PLC180807) 1s a public company domiciled in India and Is Incorporated on April 7, 2008 under
the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in Indla. The vegistered office of the company s located at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate
F-Block, Dr, Annle Besant Road, Worll, Mumbal- 400 018. '

Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (ARIL) Is a subsidiary of Arshiya Limited (AL} ALis listed on Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange. In
April 2008, AL acquired a Category-l flcense to operate a pan-Indla rail loglstic service, giving rise to ARIL. ARIL is a specialized entity of AL, offering
unprecedented rall Infrastructure, including private maodern rakes, customized contalners, Private Frelght Terminal {PFT), pan-India network and
superior cannectlvity. The company 1s engaged In Private Container Train Operator [PCTO) business and Is holding Category-1 license which allows the
company to operate on Indian Rall network on pan Indla basls both Domestic and Exim Trafflc. ARIL's unique offering provide unparalleled efficiencies
with capabllity of large scale evacuation of cargo from Ports, Domestic Distriparks, Free Trade and Warehousing Zones, Inland Container Depot (ICD}
and customer Sidings.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2019 were approved and adapied by board of directors in their meeting held
on 27th May 2018.

BASIS OF PREPARATION:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies
{indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act™).

The Company prepared its financlal statements in accordance the Indian Accounting Standards {IND AS) are notifled under the section 133 of the
Companles Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP),

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for certain financlal assets and liabilities, which are measured at
falr value/ amortised cost,

The financlal statements are presented in Indlan Rupees [Rs.}, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency and all values are rounded
1o the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATE AND JUDGEMENT:

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes purchase
price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to the bringing the assets to its working condition for its Intended use.

Depreclation on the property, plant and equipment Is provided using straight Hne method over the useful llfe of assets as specifled in schedule i to the
Companies Act, 2013. Depreclation on property, plant and equipment which are added / disposed off during the year, Is provided on pro-rata basis
with reference to the date of addition / deletlon. Freehold land is not depreciated and under the previous GAAP land was revalued.

The asset's residual values, useful llves and methed of depreclation are reviewed at each financial year end and are adjusted prospectively, If
appropriate.

Capltal work-in-progress Includes cost of praparty, plant and equipment under installation / under development as at the halance sheet date.

Leasehold Improvements are depreciated over the period of lease.
Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from financlal statement, elther on disposal or when retired from active use, Profits / losses arlsing in
the case of retirement / disposal of property, plantand equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year of occurrence.

The Company has opted to continue with the carrying values of all of Its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the Indian GAAP financial
statements as deemed cost at the transition date Le. Aprll 1, 2016.

Intangible Assets :

Intangible assets are carrled at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impaimment lasses, If any. Cost includes expenditure that 15
directly attributable to the acquisition of the Intangible assets.

tdentifiable Intangible assets are recognised when it Is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the
cost of the asset ¢an be reliably measured.

Railways License fees is amortlsed over a period of twenty years being the license perlod as per agreement,

Computer softwares are capitalised at the amounts pald to acquire the respective license for use and are amortised over the peried of five years. The
assets’ useful llves are reviewed at each financial year end, *

Gains or lossas arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The Company has opted to continue with the carrying values of all of its intangible assets as recognised In the Indlan GAAP financlal statements as
deemned cost at the transition date i.e, April 1, 2016,

Leases:
Alease Is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to gwnership to the Company Is classified as a finance lease.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

The Company as a lessee

{a) Finance lease
Assets acquired under finance lease are capltalized and the corresponding lease liabllity 1s recognised at lower of the fair value of the leased assets and
the present value of minimum lease payments at the Inception of the lease. initial costs directly atuributable to lease are recognised with the asset
under leasa.

{b} Operating lease
Lease of assets under which all risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retalned by the lessor are classifled as operating lease. Lease payments
under operating lease are recognised as expenses on accrual basls In accordance with the respective lease agreements.

The Company as a lessor

{a) Financelease
whan assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments is recagnised as a recefvable, The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable |s recognised as uneamed finance income. Lease income 15 recognised aver the
term of the lease using the net investment method before tax, which reflects a constant perlodic rate of return.

The lessor derecognises the leased assets and recognlses the difference between the carrying amount of the leased assets and the finance lease
recelvable In the statement of Profit and Loss when recognising the finance lease receivable.

{b) Opersting lease
Rental income from operating leases Is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a stralght |ine basis over the term of the relevant lease unless
anather systematic basls is more representative of the time pattern in which economic beneflts from the leased assets is diminished.

Intial indirect costs Incurred in negotiating and arranging as operating lease are added to carvying value of the leased asset and recognised on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

3.4 Inventories:
Inventories are valuad at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventorles comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their respective present location and conditlon, Cost is computed on the First in first out basls.

3.5 Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term deposlts with an original maturity of three months
or less, which are subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpase of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equlvalents consist of cash and shori-term deposlts, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are consldered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

3.6 Impalrment of assets:
An asset Is considered as impalred when at the date of Balance Sheet, there are indications of impairment and the carrying amount of the asset, or
where applicable, the cash generating unit to which the asset helongs, exceeds its recoverable amount {l.e. the higher of the net asset selling price and
value in use).The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the reduction Is recognized as an impairment loss In the statement of
profit and less. The impairment loss recognized in the prior accounting period Is reversed If there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable
amount. Post impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying value of the impalred asset over Its remaining useful life.

3.7 Financial instruments — Inftial recognition, subsequent measurement and Impairment:
A financiat Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financlal asset of one entity and a financlal llability or equity Instrument of another entity.

I} Financlal assets -Inftial recognition and measurement;
All financial assets are initlally recognized at fair value. Transactlon costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financlal assets,
which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. Financlal assets are classifled, at Initial recognltion,
as financial assets measured at fair value or as financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Financlal assets - Subsequent measurement:

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:-
a) Financlal assets at fair value

b) Financial assets at amortlsed cost
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions Is measured at amortisad cost {net of any write down for impairment) unless the asset is
designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option,

a} Business model test: The objective of the Campany's business model is to hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flow.
b} Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flow that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions Is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income unless the asset Is designated
at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option.

a) Business model test: The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective Is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flow and
selling financial assets,

b) Cash flow charactaristics test: The contractual terms of the financial assat give rise on specifled dates to cash flow that are solely payments of
principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial asset Is measured at falr value through profit or loss.

Financial assets - Equity Investment in subsidlarles
The Company has accounted for its equity investment in subsidlaries at cost.

Financial assets - Derecognition

A financlal assets (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of simllar financial assats} is primarily derecagnised (Le. removed
from the Company's statement of flnancial position) when:

a) The rights to recelfve cash flows from the asset have explred, or
b) The Company has transferred its rights to recelve cash flow from the asset,

Financial Habilities - initisl recognition and measurement:
The financial Ilabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, In the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

Financial liabilltles - Subsaguent measurement:
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one
year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts are approximate at their falr value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Financial Liabilitles - Financial Guarantee contracts:

Flnancial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payrment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because the specified debtor falls to make a payment when due In accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised Initlally as a liabliity at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the Habllity 1s measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined and the amount recognised less cumulative
amortlsation.

Financial Liabllities - Derecognition:

A financlal liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or explres. When an existing financlal liability is
replaced by another, from the same lender on substanially different terms, or the terms of an existing liabllity are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new llabllity, The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Compound Instruments

n 1ssued financlal Instrument that comprises of both the llabllity and equity components are accounted as compound financial instruments. The fair
value of the liability component is separated from the compound Instrument and the residual value is recognised as equity component of other
financial instrument. The liability component is subsequently measured at amortised cost, whereas the equity component Is not remeasured after
initial recognittion. The transaction costs related to compound Instruments are allocated to the liability and equity components in the proportion to the
allocation of gross proceeds. Transaction costs related to equity companent is recognised directly in equity and the cost related to liability companent
is included in the carrying amount of the liability component and amortised using effectlve interest method.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Provisions, Contingent Ulabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive] as a result of a past event. it Is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the #me value of money Is materfal, provisions are discounted using equivalent period government securities interest rate.
Unwindlng of the discount is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
are ad)usted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there s a possible obligation arlsing from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-cecurrence of one or more uncertain future avents not wholly within the contro! of the Company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where It is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made, [nformation on contingent {labllity [s disclosed In the Notes to the Financial Statements, However, when the realisation of Income Is virtually
certaln, then the related assat is no longer a contingent asset, but it Is recognised as an asset.

Revenue recognition

Revenue Is recognized upon transfer of control of goods {equipment) or rendering of services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects to recefve in exchange for those goods or services.

Income from services Is recognized upon completion of services as per the terms of contracts with the customers.
Revenue |5 measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, price concesslons and Incentives, If any, as specified in the contract
with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers, .

Amounts bllled for services In accordance with contractual terms but whare revenue is not recognized, have been classifled as unearned revenue and
disclosed under current liabliitles

Contract assets are recognized when there Is excess of revenue earned over blllings on contracts. Contract assets are classified as unbllled recelvables
{onty act of involcing Is pending} when there is unconditional right o recelve cash, and only passage of time Is required, as per contractual terms.
Unearned revenue (“contract llabllity™] Is recognized when there is billing In excess of revenues.

Revenue I measured at the amount of consideration which the company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring distinct goods or
services to a customer as specified in the contract, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example taxes and dutles collected on
behalf of the government). Consideration is generally due upon satisfaction of performance wbligations and a recelvable is recognized when it
becomses unconditional.

revenue fron sale of services e.g rail freight Income recognised as per the terms of contracts with customers based on stage of completion when the
outcome of the transactions Involving rendering of services can be estimated reliably. For Fixed-price contract, revenue Is recognised hased on the
actual service provided to the end of the reporting perlod as a proportion of the total services to provided {Percentage of completion method)

Measement of revenue ; Estimates of revenues, cost or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change.Any resuiting
increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or foss in the period In which the circumstances that give rise to the
revision become known by management,

Revenue from handling and other ancillary services Is recognised at the time of rendering of service which i5 at the time of loading/unloading of
container/cargo.

Contract balances
Trade recelvables
A recelvable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

Contract liabllities

A contract liability Is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration {or an amount of
conslderatlon is due} from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability Is recognised when the payment is made. Contract liabllities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Interest Income:

Interest Inoome from a financial asset is recognised when it 1s probabie that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income s accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective Interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash recelpts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrylng amount on initial recognition.

Dividend Intome:
Dlvidend Income Is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established.
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Forelgn currency relnstatement and translation:

Transactions In foreign currendles are initially recorded by the Company at rates prevailing at the date of the transaction, Subsequently monetary
ltems are transiated at closing exchange rates as on balance sheet date and the resulting exchange difference recognised in statement of profit and
loss. Differences arising on settlemént of monetary items are also recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured In terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transaction. Non-monetary items carried at falr value that are denominated in forelgn currencles are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value Is treated In line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e,, translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in 0C1 or profit or loss, respectively).

Forelgn exchange differences regarded as an ad)ustment to borrowing costs are presented In the statement of profit and foss, within finance costs. All
other finance galns / losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basls.

Employee Benefits:
Short tarm employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss of the year in which the related services are rendered.

Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to Provident Fund, a defined contribution plan, is made in accordance with the statute, and Is recognised as an expense in the year in
which employees have rendered services.

Defined Benefit Plan

Leave encashment belng a defined benefit plan Is accounted for using the projected unit credit methad, on the basis of actuarlal valuations carrled out
by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarlal gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes In actuarial
assumptlans are charged or credited to other comprehensive income In the year in which they arlse. Other costs are accounted in statement of profit
and loss.

Tha cost of providing gratulty, a defined benefit plans, Is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, on the basis of actuarial valuations
carried out by third party actuarles at each Balance Sheet date, Actuarlal gains and losses arlsing from experlence ad]ustments and changes In actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to other comprehensive income in the perlod in which they arise. Other costs are accounted in statement of
profit and loss.

Remeasurements of defined benefit plan in respect of post employment and other long term benefits are charged to the other comprehensive income
in the year In which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Taxes on Income:

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax {including MAT and income tax for eaddier years) and deferred tax . Tax is recognlsed in the
statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to ltems recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in such cases the
tak Is also recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive Income, Any subsequent change In direct tax on items initially recognised in equity
or other comprehenslve Income is also recognised in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax provision Is computed for income calculated after considering allowances and exemptlons under the provisions of the applicable Income
Tax Laws. Current tax assets and current tax liabllities are off set, and presented as net.

Deferred tax Is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 8alance sheet and the correspending tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances to the extent that it Is probable that future
taxable profits will be avallable against which those deductlble temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilitles are measured at the applicable tax rates. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avallable against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Credit of MAT is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal Income tax during
the speclified perlod, i.e., the period for which MAT credit s allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be
recognlsed as an asset, the sald asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. The
Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no
longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal Income tax during the specified perlod.
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Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs specifically relating to the acquisition or construction of qualifylng assets that necessarily takes a substantlal period of time to get
ready for its Intended use are capitalized (net of income on temporarily deployment of funds) as part of the cost of such assets. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that the Company incurs In connection with the borrowing of funds. For general borrowlng used for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capltalization is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalization rate s the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Company that
are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the purpase of obtalning a qualifylng asset. The amount of borrowing
costs capitalized during a period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that period. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the pericd In which they occur.

Earnings per share:

Baslc earnings per share Is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders’ and welghted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted eamings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the shargholders’ and weighted average number of equity and
potentlal equity shares outstanding during the year including share options, canvertible preference shares and debentures, except where the result
would he anti-dilutive. Potential equity shares that are converted during the year are included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share, from the
beginning of the year or date of issuance of such potential equity shares, to the date of conversion,

Current and non-current classification;

The Company presents assets and liabllitles in statement of financial position based on current/non-current classification.

The Company has presented non-current assets and current assets before equity, non-current liabilities and current liabllitles In accordance with
Schedule III, Division 11 of Companies Act, 2013,

An asset Is classified as current when it Is:

a} Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

b} Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting perlod, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from belng exchanged or used to settle a Hability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All ather assets are classified as non-current.

A llability is classitfied as current when It is:

a) Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

b} Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Thera is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period,

All gther liabilitles are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their reallsation in cash or cash equivalents. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and Habilities, The Company has identified twelve months as Its normal operating cycle,

Falr value measurement;

The Company measures financial instruments at falr value at each balance sheet date.

Falr value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabllity in an erderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
elther:

a) In the principal market for the asset or |labllity, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous market for the asset or fiability.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in
Its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable Inputs.

All assets and liabillties for which fair value is measured or disclosed In the financial statements are categorized within the falr value hlerarchy.

Off-setting financial Instrument:

Finanicial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount Is reported In the balance sheet where there Is a legally enforceable rights to offset the

recognised amounts and there Is an intention to settle on a net hasis or realise the asset and settje the lability simultaneously. The legally enforceable

rights must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and In the event of default, Insolvency or
ph he Company or counterpanty.
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Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at thelr fair value where there Is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the company
willl comply with all attached conditions. Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current llabilitles as deferred Income and are
credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other income.

Segment Reporting - identification of Segments

An operating segment Is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenuaes and incur expenses, whose
operating results are regularly reviewed by the company's chief operating declslon maker to make decisions for which discrete financial informatlon is
available, Based on the management approach as defined In Ind AS 108, the chief operating decision maker evaluates the Company’s perfarmance and
allocates rescurces based on an analysis of various performance Indicators by business segments and geographlc segments.

Contributed Equity
Equity Shares are classified as equity, Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equlty as deduction,
net of tax from the proceeds.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any
deferrals or accruals of past or future cash recelpts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated based on the avallable information.

Dividend Distribution

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a llability in the period In which the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any
interim dividend paid Is recognised on approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable and corresponding tex on dividend distribution is recognised
directly In other equity.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS:

The preparation of the flnanclal statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanylng disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabllitles. Uncartainty about these
assumptlons and estimates could result In outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or llabllities affected in future
perlods. The key assumptions concarning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertalnty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrylng amounts of assets and llabilities within the naxt financlal year, are described below. The Company
based on its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the flnancial statements were prepared. However, exlsting circumstances and
assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arlsing that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are refiected In the assumptions when they occur,

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets:

Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values as per schedule Il of the Companles Act, 2013 or are based on the Company's
hlstorical experience with similar assets and taking into account antlcipated technalogical changes, whichever is more appropriate.

Income Tax:
The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used In estimates may differ from actual
outcome which could lead to an adjustment to the amounts reported In the financial statements.

Contingencies:
Management has estimated the possible outflow of resources at the end of each annual reporting financial year, if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations agalnst the Company as it is hot possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Impairment of financlal assets:

The Impairment provislons for financlal assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss. The Company uses judgementin
making these assumptions and selecting the Inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company's past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
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Impalrment of non-financial assats:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an Indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Corpany estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or Cash Generating Units {CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and Its value in use. It Is determined for an Individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent to those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the camying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds Its recoverable amount, the asset Is considered impalred and Is written down to its recoverable amount.

in assessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the Ume value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. if no such transactions can be identifled, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples or other avallable fair value indicators.

Definad benefits plans:

The Cost of the defined benefit plan and the present value of such obligatlon are determined using actuarlal valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary Increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexitles involved in the valuatlon and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation s highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Recoverabliity of trade receivable:

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a provision against those recelvables Is
required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty, the amount and timing of anticlpated future payments and any possible
actlons that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.

Provisions:

Provisions are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events
and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of
judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change, Since the cash outflows can take place many years in the future, the
carrylng amounts of provisions and llabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

Fair value measurement of financial Instruments :

when the fair value of financial assets and financlal llabllitles recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices In active
markets, their fair value is measured using valuation technlques including the Discounted Cash Flow {DCF} model, The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this Is not feaslble, a degree of judgement is required In establishing falr values. judgements
includie conslderations of inputs such as liquldity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptlons about these factors could affect the reported
fair value of financlal instruments. .
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Gross Carrying Value

As at Aprll 1, 2017 213,31 3,208.33 3,421.64
Additions 500,00 -
Disposals - - 500:00
As at March 31, 2018 713.31 3,208.33 3,921.64
Additlons - - -
Disposals . . _
As at March 31, 2059 713.31 3,208.33 3,921.64
' Actumulated Amortisation
As at April 1, 2017 84,03 250,00 334.03
Amortisation for the year 114.61 249.54 364.45
Deductions - - -
As at March 31, 2058 158.64 4599.84 698.48
Amartisation for the year 148.04 249.84 397.88
Deductions - - _
As at March 31, 2019 346.63 749.68 1,096.36
Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2019 365.63 2,458.65 2,835,28
Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2018 514.67 2,708.49 3,223,16
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7 OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Unsecured, considered good uniess otherwise stut
Financial assets carrled at amortised cost

57.88

Security Deposits 14.21
Financlal Guarantee 605.76 804.39
Total 663.64 818.60

8 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

Unsecred, r.onside good unless otherwise stated

{Rupees in lakhs)

Capltal Advances 869.64 864.64

Advances other than Capital advances
- Other Advances - gratulty (Refer Note 37} - 10,05
- Prepaid Rent 1.89 3.79
- TDS Recelvable 458,59 345.37
- Service tax pald under protest 5.14 3,87
Total 1,335.26 1,227.72

9  INVENTORIES

Stores and Spares

{Rupess in lakhs}

15.66

Total

15.66

10 CURRENT ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade Receivables consldered good - Sacured - .

Trade Recelvables considered good - Unsecured 1,323.33 666.59

Trade Receivable which have Significant Increase in Credit Risk 2%.11 4.39
Trade Receivable -credit Impaired - .

1,352.44 670.98

Less: Provision for expected credit loss 29.11 4.39

29.11 4.39

Total 1,323.33 666.59
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11 CURRENT AS

galances with banks in current accounts 119.96 375,29
Cash on hand 0.28 o‘ 05
Total 120.24 375.35

12 CURRENT ASSETS - OTHER BANK BALANCES

Deposits with banks to the extent held as margin money 258.12 357,68
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit 9.18 28'48
Total 267.30 386.16

13 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Finzncial assets carrled at amortised cost
Security Deposits 73.44 111.83
Financial Guarantee 248.93 236.76
Total 322.37 348.59

14 QTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Advances other than Capital advances
- Advances to Related Parties . 0.23
- Advances to Suppllers 39.84 81.34
- Advances to Employees 2.87 - 16.58
-Others 16.54 15.55

Others

- Other recetvable 35.66 35.66
- Prepaid expenses 1.54 2.02
- Balance with Government Authorlty 37.36 157.08
Total 133.81 308.46
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
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(Rupees in lakhs}

15

i} Authorisad Share Capital
Equity Shares
4,36,50,000 {As at March 31, 2018: 4,36,50,000) Equity shares of Rupees 10 each 4,365.00 4,365.00
Preference Shares
13,50,000 (As at March 31, 2018: 13,50,000) Preference Shares of Rupees 10 each 135.00 135.00
Total 4,500.00 4,500.00

i) Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid up
4,23,84,417 |As at March 31, 2018: 4,23,84,417) Equity Shares of Rupees 10 each 4,238.44 4,238.44

Total 4,238.44 4,238.44

i} Reconciliation of number of Eguity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Equity Share Capltal
Equity shares of Rupees 10 each Issued, subscribed and fully pald
At Aprll 3, 2017 4,23,84,417 4,238.44
Issued durlng the year -
At March 31, 2018 4,23,84,417 4,238.44
Issued during the year - .

At March 31, 2019 4,23,84,417 4,238.44

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par valug of Rupees 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share, The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees, The dividend proposed by the Board
of Directors Is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

in the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.

Jii. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

BT R PO prr T N

Equity
paid
Arshiya Limited {Holding Company }
Shares held by Nominee and jointly
shareholders

shares of Rupees 10 each fully

4,23,83,817 4,23,83,817

600
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Rupeses in lakhs)

Securities Premium Account 38,123,321 38,123.31
Retalned Earnings (58,116.26) {53,932.75)
Equity Component of Guarantee given by Parent Company 1,624.45 1,564.45
Equity Component of loan from Parent Company 171.37 171.37

Total {18,197,13) {14,073.62)

a) Securities Premium Account

Rupees in lakhs)

Opening batance 38,123.31 38,123.31
Add: On fssue of Equity shares .

Closing Balance 38,123.31 38,123.31

b) Retained Earning ] Rupees in lakhs

Opening balance {53,932.75) (43,189.57)

Add/[Less):

Net Profit/{Loss) for the year {4,159.12}) {10,745.75)

Other comprehensive income {24.39) 7.19

Equity component of Guarantee given - {4.62)
Closing balance {58,116.26) (53,932.75)

by Parent Company _ Rupees in lakhs)

Equity Compaenent of Guarantee glven by Parent Company

Opening balance 1,564.45 1,564.45
Add/f{Less): Transaction during the year 60.00 .
Closing balance 1,624.45 1,564.45

{d} Nature & purpose of Reserves

Securltles Premium Account:
Securities premium reserve represents the amount recelved in excess of the face value of the equity shares. The utilisation
of the securities premium reserve is governed by the Provision of Companles Act, 2013.

Retained Earnlngs :
Retained Earnings are the profits/losses of the Company earned till date net of appropriations.

Equity Component of Guarantes given by Parent Company:
The fair value of financlal guarantees given to the lenders of the Company by the Parent Company Is recognised as a
deemed equity component,

Equity Component of loan from Parent Company:
e difference between the fair value of Interest free loans on the date of Issue and the transition price is recognised as a
Pamed equity component by the Parent Company. // =ma
o
mputaﬂon of the falr value benefit, the Company has estimated the fair value of the finag k 3
£ jf considering complete market Interest rates adjusted to the facts and ¢ircumstances rel (ﬁ
L2
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
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17 NON CURRENT BORROWINGS _ {Rupaes In lakhs)

Secured

-Term Loans
From Others (refer note 17.1 below) 31,902.67 33,538.04

Total 31,902.67 33,538.04

17.1 Rupee term loan from other parties :-
- Rupee term loans {including current maturity) of Rupees 33,647.31 lakhs {March 31, 2018 : Rupees 33,538.04
lakhs) are securad by
{1) Details of Security
i. First charge on ali movable assets (including rakes, containers, equipment's) and immovable properties of the
company both present and future on pari passu basis.
ii. Second charge by way of Hypothecation of the entire current assets of the company on pari passu basis.
ili. Pledge of 100% equity shares of the Company held by Promoters.
Iv. Personal guarantees from Promoters of Holding Company.
v, Corporate Guarantee from Holding Company.

{2} Terms of Interest rate:
- on Term Loans from others 10% p.a. compounded quarterly,

(3} Terms of repayment :-

({Rupees in lakhs)

O TTa T

2019-2020 ' 1,744.63 |

2020-2021 6,139.19
2021-2022 2,276.52
2022-2023 23,954.16

Total 34,114.50

{4) The amortised cost disclosed above is net off of incidental cost of borrowings aggregating to Rupees 467.19
lakhs for March 31, 2019 and Rupees 612.13 lakhs for March 31, 2018.
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18 NON CURRENT LIABIUTIES - PROVISIONS

Provislon for employee beneflts

Rupees In lakhs)

Gratuity {Refer Note 37) 7205 .
Leave encashment {Refer Note 37) 48.49 16.42
Total 120.52 16.42

13 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Government Grants

1.632.32

1,723.69

Total

1,632,32

1,723.69

20 CURRENT BORROWINGS

RS IPRTTATS

[Rupees in kakhs)

" Unsecured
Loans from Holding Company (refer note 20,1 below & Note 41) 304.38 2,029.26
Total 304.38 2,029.26
20.1 Interest free loan upto 1 year and repayable on demand.
"/'x'“ ®agn \

\\\(?'_
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ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

CURRENT LIABILITIES- TRADE PAYABLES

Total outstantling dues of Micro and Small Enterprises {Refer note 39 & 52)
Total outstanding dues of creditors Other than Micro and Small Enterprises

{Refer Note 52}

15,77
1,307.44

Total

1,323.21

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilitias at amortised cost
Current maturities of long term borrowings
Term Loans from banks {Refer Note 22.1)* 6,910.60 8,931,320
Tern Loans from others {Refer Note 17.1 8 22.2) 4,704.64 -
Interest accrued and due on borrowings** 11,710.49 13,183.84
Interest acerued but not due on borrowlngs 3,280.15 1,370.35
Security Deposit 41,44 57.64
Financial Guarantee - 3.85
Others
Project Creditors{ Refer Note 35 & 52} 959.28 1,054.01
Employee's Dues *** 218.98 103.55
Payable for Expenses 280.10 502.26
Total 28,103.68 25,206.84

* [nclude Loan aggregating to Rupees 6,910.60 lakhs {March 31, 2018: Rupees 8,931.30 lakhs) recalled by banks.

**Include Interast accrued and due on Term Loans aggregating to Rupees 8,289.98 lakhs {March 31, 2018: Rupees 11,893.70 lakhs)

recalled by banks,

*#include Interest accrued and due on Term Loans aggragating to Rupees 390,64 lakhs recalled by others.

*#+¥nefude Full and Final settlement of Rupees 25.28 lakhs {March31, 2018 Rupees 14.04 lakhs)

22.1 Rupee term loan from Banks :-
- Rupee term loans of Rupees 6910.60 lakhs (March 31, 2018 : Rupees 8931.30 lakhs} are secured by

{1} Details of Security

i. first charge on all movable assets (including rakes, contalners, equipment's) and immovable propertles of the company both

prasent and future on pari passu basis.

li. Second charge by way of Hypothecatlon of the entlre current assets of the company on parl passu basls.

iii. Pledge of 100% equity shares of the Company held by Promaters,
iv. Personal guarantees from Promoters of Halding Company.
v. Comporate Guarantee from Holding Company/ Promoter.

{2} Terms of Interest rate:
- on Term Loans from Banks from 10.45% p.a - 16.25% p.a.

{3) Terms of repayment :-

chy et T

2012-2013

2013-2014 75.00

2014-2015 277.50

2015-2016 3,685.60

2018-2019* 2,840.00
Total 6,910.60
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{4) Amount and period of default In repayment of borrowings

{Rupess in lakhs

Current maturity of Rupee Term loans 22,50 2012-13
75.00 2013-14
277.50 2014-15
3,695.60 2015-16
2,840.00 2018-19
Total 6,910.60

22.2 Rupee term loan from Others :-
- Rupee term loans of Rupeas 2,960.00 lakhs are secured by
(1) Details of Security
1. First parl passu charge on all present and future cash flows of the Company
ii.First parl passu charge on all movable assets and immovable assets of the company.
fll. Charge on cash flows and movable assets by deed of Hypothecation,
Iv. Personal guarantees from Promoters of Holding Company.
v. Corporate Guarantee from Helding Company.

{2) Terms of Interest rate:
- on Term Loans from others @ 20% p.a payable quarterly

(3} Terms of repayment ;-
Rupees in lakhs

2022-2023* 2,960.00
Total 2,960.00

* During the year the loan has been recalled by others.

{4) Amount and perlod of default in repayment of borrowlngs

{Rupees in lakhs)

Current maturity of Rupee Term loans 2,960.00 2018-19

Total 2,960.00
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** Amount and perlod of default in payment of Interest an borrowlings**

{Rupees in lakhs)

Interest accrued & due on borrowing 2013-14 965.05 -
2014-15 876,51 -
2015-16 1,035.94 -
2016-17 1,287.23 -
2017-18 1,512.65 1,373.00
2018-19 2,612.60 2,042.51
Total 8,289.98 3,420.51

23 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(Rupees in lakhs)

Advance recelved from Customers 107.02 151.12
Other Advances 0,51 1.74
Government Grants 365.49 639.61

Others
Statutory Liabilitles* 811.31 698.99
\nterest on Delayed payment of Statutory dues 590.57 426.77
Total 1,874.90 1,918.23

* Statutory liablities Include TDS,Goods & Service Tax, Service tax,PF,ESIC payable,Employee professional tax

GOVERNMENT GRANTS Rupges In lakhs)
Opening balance 2,363.30 2,728.79
Released to statement of profit and loss {365.49) {365.49)
Closing balance 1,997.81 2,363.30
Current 365.49 639,61
Nan Current 1,632.32 1,723.69
24 CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS {Ru

vison formployee benefits
Leave encashment {Refer Note 37]

RIAES [

ees In lakhs)

Total
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25 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Rall Frelght Income 12,098.57 12,338.16
Road Freight income 722,70 440.86
Handling Income 626,06 643.90
Terminal Income 167.50 175.40
Total 13,614.83 13,598.32
26 OTHER INCOME _ : {Rupees In fakhs)
. : . i
Interest income on Flnancial assets carrled at amortised cost
Unwinding of interest on loan to related party - 168.45
Unwinding of interest on Security deposit 5.76 1.28
Other interest Income
Interest on Bank fixed deposits 21.10 29.38
interest income on income tax refund . 16.92
Income on derecognistion of related party loan - 307.69
Other Income
Government Grants 365.49 365.49
Financial Guarantse Income 3.85 0.77
Sundry Balance/ Excess provislon Written Back 245.67 553.46
Gain on sale of investment - 5.00
Miscellaneous Income - 10.95
Total 641.87 1,459.39
27 COST OFOPERATIONS _ _ ______ (Rupees In lakhs

Rail Freight Expenses 9,434.84 10,172.63
Road Freight Expenses 687.64 448.10
Handling Expenses 227.76 231,86
Terminal Expenses 357.55 304.26
Other operating expenses 692.48 350.53

Total 11,400.27 11,507,38
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28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

{Rupees in Ikhs)

29 FINANCE COST

ERTLIETI R B

Salaries, wages and bonus 1,037.47 776.16
Contribution to provident and other funds 23.21 15.09
Staff welfare expenses 61.23 35,54
Total 1,121.91 826.79

(Rupees in lakhs)

Interest expense on Financial Ifabilities measurad at amortised cost

Interest expense on borlfowlngs 6,476.59 7,451.08

Unwinding of interest for loan from related party {Refer Note 41} 63.70 ' 56.88

Interest expense on Security Deposit 1.24 1.24

Interest expense others

interest on Delayed Payment of Statutory Dues 167.51 263.01

Interest on MSME vendors 0.5¢ ' -

Other borrowlng costs

Guarantee Commission Expense 246.46 240,56

Interest Charges Others 53,33 .

Bank charges 5.84 6.17
Total 2,015.57 8,018.94

30 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

Depreciation on tangible assets 3,701.76 3,766.16
Amortisation on intangible assets 397.88 3564.45
Total 4,099.64 4,130.61
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31 OTHER EXPENSES

Repalrs and maintenance
- Bullding 16.73 17.97
- Others 58.25 46.10
Advertisement 35.62 38.79
Payments to Auditors (Refer note below) 12,50 £.50
Bad Debts written off - 101.36
Electricity charges 33.81 28.54
Insurance 21.45 18,41
Legal and professional fees 176.32 75.54
Rates and taxes 15.89 7.36
Rent 472.99 374.08
Printing and Statlonary 15.08 7.82
Office Expenses 32.26 13.38
Security charges 59.11 45.14
Telephone and internet expenses 25.47 18,07
Travelling & conveyance expenses 185.37 46.98
Vehicle Expenses 44,54 28.18
Allowance for doubtful debts and advances 24.71 .
Miscellaneous expenses 22,19 18.86
Loss on sale of scrap 0.30 -
Total 1,253.59 £95.48
(ai Detalls of Payments to auditors {Rupees In lakhs)

As Statutory Auditor

Audilt Fee 12.50 8.50
Total 12.50 8.50

32 EXCEPTIONALITEMS

{Rupees In lakhs)

Sundry Balance / excess provision written back - (6107}
Loss on sale/discarded of Property, plant and equipment - 182,79
Settlement of Claim {6,475.16} 302.54

Total {6,475.16) 424.26
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83 Earnings par share (Basic and Diluted)

Profit availuble to equity hold

Profit/(Loss} after tax (A) [Rupees In Lakhs} {4,159.12) (10,745,75)
Mumber of aguity shares

Welghted average number of equity shares outstanding (Baslc and Diluted] (B) 4,23,84,417 4,23,34,417
Baslc & Diluted sarnings per share{A/0} (Rupees) \ (2535
Neminal Value of an equity share {Rup2es] 10

34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENT
{To the axtent not provided for]

7 Capltal Commitments
i Rupees In lakhs)

Estimated ar of contracts T ' g 10 be d on :apl account and not provided for {net ai
of advances pald)
Cash outflaw expected on execution on such capltal contracts

{Il} Contingant Wabillties:

al Carrler Bond (Bond has been givan to Principal of custem for the safeguarding duty labliity on geods 675.00

|movemant from respactive ports to 1ICD Khurja}
{ b} Bank Guarantee 101.25 152.00
{¢] Letter of Credlt { Letter of Credit ghven In favour of Railways for avalling e-freight facifity for haulage 100.00 100,00
payment]}
d} Claims Against the Company not acknowledged as Debt 2338 23,39
e} Service tax Demand 51,55 51,55
No Cesh outfiow is expected In near future

35 Certaln creditors have initlated legal proceadings against the company and its directors and the pany has defaulted In pay t of instalments of
ponsant terms for which the company is In process of negotlating and flnalising the revised consent terms, Majority of the ereditors have been tettled
over the past faw years and seme of the credlitors have also shown interest and faith not anly In logistics and infrastructure sector but also in the
Company and are belng aliotted equlty shares of Holding Company.

3 Op g bease -G as lessee
The company has taken office on lease under non-cancellable operating lease explring at the end of 3 years. The leases have varying terms, escalation
clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotlated.

The company has paid Rupees 340.65 lakhs (March 31, 2018: Rupees 278,56 lakhs)during the year towards minimum lease payment.

Rupees In lakhs)

Commitments for minlmum lease payments In refation to non cancellable operating leases are as|
Tollows
[Future Lease Payment:
a) Within one Year 351.92 340.65
b) Later than one year but not later than five years 699.19 1,051.11
<} Later than flve years - N

Total 1,051.11 1,391,76

Lease rents recognised as expense in the year | 340.65 278.56 |

37 EMPLOYEE BENEAT
37.1 Disclosure pursuant to Indlan Accounting Standard {IND AS) 19 - Employee Benefits

{a) Defined contribution plans
Contrbutlon to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expenses for the years are as under:

{Rupees in lakhs)

Eplover's {ontributlon to Provident Fund
Employer's Contribution to Penslon Scheme
Employer's Contribution te ESIC
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(s} Bried deseriptions of the plans

The Company's defined contribution plans ara Provident Fund and Emplayees State Lnsurance where the Company has no furthar cbllgation beyond

king the contributl The C ¥'s definad benefit plans Include gratuity. The employees are also entitled to leave encashment as par the
Company’s policy.
{c} Leava Obligations

Provisions for Leave encashment

Curvent 10.61
Non-Current 43.45

Total 59,10 20.11

{d} Definad banefit plan — Gratuity:
The employee's Gratulty fund Is managed by the Life insurance Corporation of Indla. The present value of abligation is determined based on actuarlal
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognised each perlod of services as giving rise to additional unit of employee benafit
entitiement and measures each unit sepearately ta build up ta final obligation.

Parilculars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
I. Actuarial assumptions
Mortality Table Indian Assured llves|indlan Assured lives|

Mortality {2006-08) Ul |Mortality {2006-08] Ult

Discount rate 6.95%) 7.40%
Expected return on plan assats 6.95% 7.40%|
Salary Escalation Rate 9.00%) 7.00%
Withdrawal Rate 17.00%) 15.00%
Retirement Age 58 Years 58 Years|
11, Change in Present valua of dafined banefit obligations

Liabllity as at the beginning of the year 47.31 37.19
Interest cost 3.50 2.30
Currant service cost 19.62 7.78
Benefits paid (2.95) {0.93}
Actuarizl (gain}/loss on obligations 24.39 0.98
Acquisition adjustment 41.75 -
Liability a5 at the end of the year 133.62 47.31
I, Change in Fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the year 57.35 46,28
Expected retum on plan assets 4.23 14.01
actual Enterprise’s Contributions B 0.93
Benefits paid - {0.93)
Actuarlal gain/{loss} on plan assets - (2,98}
Falr value of plan assets as ot the end of the year 6158 5735
IV. Actual retum on plan assets

Expected return on plan assets 4.23 14.01
Actuarial galn/{loss} on plan assets . {2.93}
Actual return on plan assets 4,23 11.08
V. Liability recognized in the Balance Shaet

Liability a5 at the and of the year 133.62 47,5t
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 61,58 57.35
Liability/ {Asset) recognlsed in the Balanoca Sheet 7203 {10.05)
VI, Per of sach gory of plan assets to total fair value of plan assets

Insurer managed funds 1005 100%/
VI, Ameunt recognised In the St of Profit and Loss

Current service cost 19.62 7.78
Intarest cost - 2.30
Expacted return an plan assets {0.74) {14.01}
Net actuarial {gain}/loss 1o be on obligation . N
Expense/ (ncome} recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 18,88 {3.93)
Vil Amgunt recognised In the Other Comprehensive Incoma {OC1)

‘Amaount recognised In OC|, beginning of the yaar {7.29} {0.10)
omponents of actuarial galnflosses on obligations

to Change in financlal assumptions 16.19 {1.18)
o Change In demographic assumption {1.82) .

eHo Change in experience assumption 10.02 213
ed return on plan assets - (2.93)

ge In Asset Celling - -
#lal remasurement recognised in OCI 2432 {7.19)

gnised in OCl, end of year 17.10 {7.29)
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DL Balance Shaet reconclilation

Opening net liability (10.05} {9.09)
Expanses racognised In Profit & Loss 18.88 7.16
Actual Employer Contribution (2.84) {0.93)
Total irement recognised In OC1 2439 {719
Acquisitlon adjustment 4175 -
Closing net llability 72.03 {10.05)

{e] Salary escalation assumption has been set in discussions with the enterprise based on their estimates of overall long-term salary growth rates after
taking inte consideration expected earnings Inflation as well as performance and seniority related increases.

37.2 Sensithity analysis:

Effect on Gratulty
Changes in
|Particul
rticulars assumiptions obligation [Rupess in
lakhs}
For the year ended 31st March, 2018
Salary growth rate +(}.50% 47.66
-0.50% 45,40
Discount rate +2.50% 45,41
-0.50% 47.66
For the year ended 31st March, 2019
Salary growth rate +0.1% 140.38
0.1% 127.32
Discount rate +0.1% 127.26
-0.1% 140,58
The above senslitivity analysls is based on a changa in an ption while halding all other ptions constant. In pratics, this is unlikely to ocour,

and changes in some of the assumptlens may be correlated, In preseanting the above sensitivity anaysls, the present value of defined benefit obligation
has been cateulated using the projected unit eredlt method at the end of reparting perlod, which Is the same as that applied in calculating the defined
obligation llability recognised in the balance sheet.

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarlal risks such as: longevity risk and salary risk.

{A) Interest risk - A decrease in the discount rate will increase the plan ilabllity.
{8) Longevity risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan liability ls calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants
both durlng and after thair employment. An Increase In the Iife expectancy of the plan participants. As such, an increase the plan’s llability.

(€} Salary risk - The present vatue of the defined pian liability Is caloulated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, as increasa in the
salary of the plan participants wili increase the plan's liakility.

37.3 The welghted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period Is 5 years (31st March, 2018 - 6 yaars).
38  Disclosure pursuant 10 Indain Accounting Standard 108 - Operating Segment

The company Is engaged in Private Container Train Oparator (PCTO) business and is holding Category-l license which allows the company to operate on
Indlan Rall network on pan India basls both Demestic and Exim Trafflc. in the oplnion of the company, the entire operations are governed by the same
sat of risks and returns and hence the same has baen considered as representing a single primary segment.

The company provides services within Indla and hence does not have any operation In economic environments with different risks and returns. Hence,
it is considered that tha cempany is operating In a single geagraphical segment.

Custorners individuatly contributes te more than 10% of revenue ;-

There are 2 customers [ March 31, 2018 - 3 customers) aggregating to Rupees 8,179.24 lakhs | March 31, 2018 Rupees 8,61%.29 lakhs) constituting 60% {
March 31, 2018- 64%) of Revenue.

39 DISCLOSURES UNGER MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELDPMENT ACT, 2006 (MSMED ACT, 2006)
To the extentthe company has received intimation from the “suppliers’ regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, the details are provided as under

Rupees [n lakhs]

[il] Pnncigal amount remaimns Jaid

(ii} interest due thereon remaining unpaid
[0} Interest pakd by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises -
Develapment Act 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the

S ) Interest due and payable for the period of defay in making payment {which have ean paid but - -
ond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro,
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

g unpaid (net of tax deducted at source) 0.50
erest remaining due and pavable even In the succeeding years, until such date when the interest -
#hs above are actually paid to the small enterprise,
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40 RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE

©On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA} has notified Ind AS 116 - Leases and certaln amendment to existing Ind AS. These
amendmaents shall be applicable to the Company from April 01, 2019, )

A) ISSUE OF IND AS 116 - LEASES

Ind A5 116 wili supersede the current standard on leases i.e. Ind AS 17- Leases, As per Ind AS 116, the lessor will have to bring to books all the non-
[ lizble portion of leasing arrang 14

B} AMENDIMENT TO EXISTING STANDARD

The MCA has also carried out amendments of the following accounting standards
I ind AS 101- First time adoption of indlan Accounting Standards

11, Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations

HL. Ind AS 109 - FAinanclal Instruments

. Ind AS 111 - Joint Arrangements

v. Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

Wi, Ind AS 19 - Employae Banefits

vl Ind AS 23 = Borrowing Costs

Vil Ind AS 28 - Investment In Asscciates and Joint Ventures

Application of above standards are not expected to have any significant Impact on the Company’s financlal statements.
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REIATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Ust of related parties as per the requirerents of Ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

| Arshiva Limited Holding Company

g8

arshiva Rall Siding and Infrastructusre Limited {4t February 3, 2018) beidiary

indla

Arshiya Supply Chain Managament Private Limited {til March 21, 2018}
Arshiya Northern FTWE Limited

Arshiya industrial & Distribution Hub Limited Fellow Subsidiarles \ndla
Arshiva Logistics Services Limited {formerly known as Laxmipat] Balajl Exim Trading Limited}

Mr. Ajay 5. Mittal - Director

Mr. Nawnit Choudhary - Director

Mr, Ashish Kumar Balragra - Independent Director

Wr. Rishabh Pankaj Shah - Independent Director

Mr. Siddarth Kasturia - Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f, March 26, 2013}

Ms. Avani Dip Lakhanl - C y {w.a.f. March 26, 2019)
Mr. Vinad Jain - Chief Finandial Officer [till March 25, 2019)

Mr. Amacdmep Gupta « Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. March 26, 2019}

Key Managerial Personnal {KMP)

brs. Archana A Mittal
Mr. Ananya A Mittal [ Relative of Key Managerial
Personnel

0]

The nature and amount of transactlons with the above related parties are as follows

Loang ghven - 376.05
t ]
Arshiya Industrial & Distribution Hub Limited | Loan repayments - {1,312.83
_w Income 749.45 23.443-l
Unwinded Interest Income on - 67.20
Loan to subsidiaries
Loans glven - S43.84
Arshiya Northern Umited Loan repayments** - {2,354.81)
Frwz Unnwinded interest Income on - 101.22
Loan to subsidlaries
Logns taken®* {798.31) [4,831.75)
Loan repayments 2,996.44 3,751.60
Hocatlon of cost and {419.55) {418.25)

by Holling Company*

Arshlya Limited

Unwinded interest expanse on [63.70} [56.88}
Loan from holding company
FInanclal Guarantees {246.46} (240.58)
Loans given .
Arshl Chaln Management Private Limited 1181
ya Supply Chal ag Loan repayments** - {11.81)
Arsh Ies Services Umited (formerly known as Laxmipati Balaji Exim Trading Limited | Loans ghven - 0.23
fya Logistics Se {farmerly Ip i rading Limited) Loan repayments EE] .
* During the year, the Holding C has all d certain cost and exp incurred by it, ta the company aggregating to Rupees 419.55 lakhs (315t March, 2018 - Rupees
418.25 lakhs} based on Holding Company's estimates of such cost and exp attributable to the Hence, Employee henefit exp [ Refer Note No. 28) and certain expenses

stated under other expenses (Refer Note No. 31) ave presented as Inclusive of such allocation of certain common costs and expenses,

** The Company has ad d bad lvabl of Arshiya Industrial, Distribution & Hub Limited (AIDHL) on Marth 31, 2019 Rupees NIL {March 31, 2018 Rupees 1,269.42 lakhs),
receivable amoum of Arshiys Northersn FTWZ Limited (ANFTWZ) on March 31, 2013 Rupees NIL {March 31, 2018 Rupees 2,026.74 lakhs), recevable amount of Nshltfa Supply Chain
Management Private Limited {ASCM) an March 31, 2019 Rupees NIL (March 31, 2018 Rup#es 4.45 fakhs } with Arshiya Umited.
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Closi i lakhs
Arshiya Loglstics Services Urnited {f why known as Lsamipat) Balajl Exlm Trading Limited) - 0.23
Arshiya Limited 304.28 2,029.26
Arshiya industrial Distribution & Hub Limited 4 289.58 .

Arshiya Limited [ 854,69 1,041.15
|Ajey § Mittal 54,120.00 51,120.00
Archana A Mital 54,120.00 51,120.00
Arshtya Limited 51,200.19 48,200.19
’Arshlya Limtted ( 550.00 -

Key managerial personnel compeansation

Mr. Vinod Jain - Chief Financial Officer (tll March 25, 2019
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FInanclal Instruments by Categ

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Amaortised cost
Trade Receivables 1,323.33 666.59 1,323.33 666,59
Cash and Cash Equlvalents 120.24 375.35 12024 375.35
Securlty Deposits 131.32 126.04 131.32 126.04
Other Bank Balances 267.30 386.16 267.30 386,16
Financial Guarantee 854,69 1,041.15 854.69 1,041.15

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Amortised cost
Borrowings 43,822.29 44,498.60 43,822.29 44,498.60
Trade Payables 132321 626.12 1323.21 626.12
Other financlal liabilities 16,438.44 16,275.54 16,488.44 16,275.54

Falr Valuation techniques used to determine fair value

The Company malntains procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data available,
The fair values of the financial assets and liabllities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a labllity In an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The foliowlng methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The Company assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade recelvables, trade payables, and other current financial
assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these Instruments.

The falr values for security deposits and other financlal labilities were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a currant
lending rate. They are classifled as level 3 falr values in the Falr value hierarchy dua to the Inclusion of unobservable inputs including
counterparty cradit risk.

The fair values of non current borrowlngs are based on discounted cash flows using a current barrowing rate. They are classified as
level 3 fair values in the falr value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk.

Falr value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial Instruments that are
recognised and measure at fair value. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determing falr value, the
company has classified its financfal instruments Into three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

Level 1 - Level 1 hierarchy includes financial Instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial Instruments that are not traded In an active market (for example, traded bonds, over the counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

Le r ore of the significant Inputs are not based on cbservable market data, the Instrument is included in le-v-gl 3. This is

PSRN
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Financial Risk Management

The Company's princlpal financial liabllities comprises of borrowings, trade and other payables and financlal guarantees contracts. The main purpose of
these financlal liabilides is to manage for the Company's operations. The Company's financial assets comprises of tracle and other receivables, cash and
deposits that arises directly from its operations.

The company's activities expose it to variety of financlal risks including credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's risks management
assessment, management and processes are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company to set up appropriate risks limits and
controls and to monitor such rlsks and compllances with the same, Risks assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the company’s activitles.

+iin -yl

Cash and cash

dlt risk ) Ageing analysis

Cre Regular review of
equivalents, trade cradit limits
recefvables and
Flnanclal assets
measured at amortised
cost.

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other |Rolling cash flow Availability of
liabilities forecasts financial support from

parent company

Market rlsk - interest rate Long-term borrowings |Sensitivity analysis Unhedged
at variable rates

The Company's risk management is carrled out by a corporate finance team under the policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Board provides
written principles for overall risk management as well as palicies covering speclfic areas, such as credit risk, Interest rate risk.

{A) Credit risk
The Company s exposed to credit risk, which is risk that counterparty will default on Its contractual obligation resulting In a financial loss to the
Company, Credit risk arlses from cash and cash equivalents as well as credit exposures to trade customers including outstanding receivables.

Trade recelvables are typlcally unsecured and are derlved from revenue earned from customers located in India. Credit risk has always been managed
by the company through continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the normal course of
business. Outstanding customer receivables are ragularly monltored and any further services to major customers are approved by the senlor
management. Credit rlsk is high as only few customers’ account for majority of the revenue In the year presented. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109,

the company uses expected credlt loss model to assess the impalrment loss or gain. !

(8} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral ebligations without Incurring unacceptabl
losses. The Company’s objective is to, at all times; maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements, The Company limits
its liquidity risk by ensuring funds from trade receivables. The Company relles on operating cash flows and funding from holding company to meet its
needs for funds.

The table below provides undiscounted cash flows towards financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on the remaining pericd at the balance sheet
to the contractual maturity date.
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Contractual maturities of financlal liabilitles

fiemee o

March 31, 2019

Borrowings 11,919.62 32,369.86 -
Trade payables 1,323.21 - .
Other financlal liabillties 16,489.00 - .
Total Finandal llabilities 29,731.83 32,369.96 -
March 31, 2018

Borrowings 11,024.26 34,150.17 .
Trade payables 626,12 - -
Other financlal liabifities 16,276.91 - -
Total Flrancial llabilitles 27,927.29 34,150.17 -
{C) Market risk

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flow of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of volatllity of prices in the financlal
markets. Market risk can be further segregated as: 1) Forelgn currency risk and 2) Interest rate risk

1) Forelgn currency risk
1} Foreign currency risk is the risk that the falr value or future cash flow or an exposure will fluctuate because of changes In foreign exchange rates.
However, the Company does not have any foreign currency exposure.

2} Interest rate risk

\nterest rate risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long term borrowlings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk,
During the 315t March, 2018 the Company's borrowlngs 2t the varlable rate were mainly denominated in Rupees,

The Company's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to Interast rate risk as defined In IND AS- 107, since
neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market Interest rates.

Intevest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the company's borrowing to Interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:-

{Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Variable rate borrowlings €,910.60 8,931.30

Interest sensitivity
Profit or loss Is sensitive to higher/ lower interest expense from borrowlngs asa result of changes In Interest rates.

Particulars Impact cn profit before tax
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2013
Interest sensitivity
50 bps Increase the profit before tax by* (34.55) {44.66}
50 hps decrease the profit before tax by* 34,55 44,66
* Holding all other variable constant
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44 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

o

U]

For the company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the company's ability to continue going concern in order to
provide the return for shareholders and benefit to other stakeholders and to maintain an optional capital structure to reduce the

cost of capital, Capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equlty reserves atiributable to the equity holders
of the company.

The company manages Its capital structure and makes adjustments In light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements
of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or Issue new shares. The company monitors capital using a Debt eguity ratlo.

{Ru,

es in lakhs)

Borrowings 43,822.29 44 498.60
Other Financial Liabilities {Interest accrued) 14,990.64 14,554.19
Total Debt 58,812.93 59,052.79
Equity 4,238.44 4,238.44
Cther equlty {18,197.13) {14,073.62)
Total Equity (13,958.69) (9,835.18)
Notes:-

{i} Debt is defined as long term and short term borrowings Including current maturities and interest.
(i) Total equity (as shown in balance sheet] includes Issued capital and all other equity.

As stated In Notes to accounts, the company s also having scheme of arrangements to reorganise the capital structure.

Deht Covenants

Under the terms of Restructuring Agreement, the company Is required to comply with following financial covenants:-

Without prior approval of lender, the company shall not:

Loans, debenture 8 charge - Issue or subscribe to any debentures, shares, raise any loans, deposit from public, issue equity or
preference capital, change its capital structure or create any charge on Its assets Including its cash flow or glve any guarantees.

Dividend on equity shares - declare/pay dividend on equity shares unless otherwlse approved by the Lender/Business Monitoring
Committee and subject to the payment of recompense amount payable by the borrower to the lender in accordance with the
provisions of RA.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Capital Management, amongst ther thing, aims to ensure that it meets Financlal
covenants attached to the Interest bearing Loans and borrowings that define Capital structure requirements, there have been
breaches in the Financial covenants of interest bearing loans and barrowing in the Current period and previous period.

The Company has not proposed any dividend in last two years in view of losses Incurred.
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45 Taxation

1} in view of loss for the year, no provislen for current tax has been made.

ii} The Company has not recognised any deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses as it is not probable

that the Company will have sufficlent future taxable profit which can be avallable against the available tax losses.

iii) Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets has been recognised

46

{Rupees in lakhs)

2014-2015 14,739.87 2022-2023 6,512.68
2015-2016 - 2023-2024 5,536.76
2016-2017 - 2024-2025 3,192.80
2017-2018 13,093.10 2025-2026 3,717.69
2018-2019 431.07 2026-2027 3,199.58
2019-2020 - 2027-2028 2,104.24

Total 28,264.04 24,263.74

Unused deferred tax assets as at March 31, 2019 Rupees 9,217.76 Lakhs (March 31, 2018 - Rupees 13,250.,59 Lakhs) has not been
recoghised, as there is no canvincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the unadjusted tax losses
will be utillsed by the Company.

Details of Deferred tax assets are mentloned below:- {Rupees in lakhs
Property plant equipment 4,268.76 4,084.31
Unahsorbed depreciation {6,308.57} {5,773.59)
expense allowable on payments under section {166.12) (3,651.00)
Unabsorbed lass (7.348.65) 18,397.44)
Financial Instruments 336.82 447.13
Total Deferred Tax Assets {9,217.76) {13,290.59)

Preparation of financial statements on * Golng Concern” basls
The company has Incurred net loss of Rupeés 4,183.51 Lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2019 and as of that date, the company's
current liabilities exceeded by its current assets by Rupees 29,449.72 lakhs. Accumulated losses have also resulted into more than net
worth of the company. Some of Its landers have recalled their loans and the company Is in the process of negotiating the revised
payment terms with the lenders.
The Company is EBIDTA positive and with the commencement of the two dedicated freight corrldors, the sald company will benefit
immensely. Moreover, a unique contract entered into with one of the largest global shipping lines has already started to improve the
profitabllity. Also, the proposed merger of Fellow subslidiary with the company as mentioned in note ne, 51, would make thelr
operations not anly complementary, but enhance their profitability.

In view of the focussed emphasis of the Government on logistics infrastructure sector, the proposed restructuring and considering the
fact that the facilities are yet to achieve full operational potential besides the strategic locations of the facilities, the management’s
future outlook of its businesses is very promising. Accordingly the financials have been prepared on golng concern basls, based on
financial support from the Parent Company.

The management of the company is in the process of restructuring its business operations and steps are as under :

Focus on long term contracts with corporate clients for stable revenues,

Focus on reduction of empty haulage / return business In different sectors to increase in revenue and margins.
Diversified facus from only Steel industry to Cement, Agro and Tlles also so as to have a balance of preduct mix.
Increased focus gnkhura as a distribution hub post GST implementation
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v Government focus on Multi-modal logistic and transport services to Increase the throughput of the Infrastructure already created by
the company;

vl Government focus on the revamping of the Rallway Boards and Increasing clarlty on regulatory aspects to support resolution of the
regulatory lssues;

vii Two Dedicated Freight Corridor(s) (DFC) along the Western and Eastern part of India to support increase in the business volume.

viii Government announcement of Jewar Alrport and Merut Highway connecting Jewar via Khurja and thereby connecting to Yamuna
Expressway( i.e. Delhl to Agra).

The shove steps shall enable the Company to improve Company’s Net worth and its ability to discharge its debts/liabilities in near
future.

47 As per debt covenant, the Company are required to adhere to repayment schedule and any short payment gives Edelwelss Asset
Reconstructlon Company (EARC) the right to convert whole of the outstanding amount of restructured rupee loan and/or part of the
default amount into fully pald up equity shares of the Company. No such notice of conversion in writing has been given by EARC and the
Company centinues to disclose the amount as current and non-current as per repayment schedule, in the Balance Sheet,

48 The company had entered into one-time settlement (OTS) with a lender during the year. The company had pald partial amount against

0TS and the effect was taken as an exceptional item during the year ended March 31, 2019, However, the Company has defaulted In
payment as per the terms of the OTS. As a result, the Company needs to reverse the exceptional gain recorded during the year and
needs to recognise Interest an the entire liability as per the original terms. The Company is in discussion with the lender for additional
time to repay. Accordingly, the company continues to reflect the outstanding amount of loan as per OTS In the financlal statements,
The Company has not reversed the galn, nor provided for additional interest. Had the Company reversed the gain and provided for
additional interest, exceptional item would have been lower by Rs. 6,604.55 Lakhs and finance cost would have been higher by Rs.
3,500.76 Lakhs having consequential impact on total comprehensive income, liabilities and other Equity for the year ended 31st March,
2019.

49 The Company has procured certain capital goods under EPCG scheme at concesslonal rate of duty. On non fulfiliment of certain
conditions, the company may became liable to pay differential custom duty along with interest thereon such procurement. The
management is hopeful of completing the expected obligation within the stipulated time.

50 The scheme of arrangement ufs 230 to 232 is scheme of merger of the Arshiya Industrial and Distribution Hub Limited and Arshiya
Transport & Handling Limited into the company, which is pending with NCLT. The scheme is conditional on various approval / sanctions
and is effective thereafter; accordingly no effect of the sald Scheme Is given In the financlal statement. The Creditors meeting of the
respective companies was held on 6th May 2013. No accounting impact and disclosures is considered and necessary at this stage
pending requisite regulatory approvals.

51 Inaddition to above, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company at their meeting held on 24th May, 2018, has approved a scheme to
reorganize corporate structure i.e. demerger of “Domestic warehousing business” of the Parent Company into the company. This
proposed scheme of arrangement is conditional upon approval of above scheme {refer note no. 50}. No accounting impact and
disclosures is considered and necessary at this stage pending requisite regulatory approvals.

52 The Company has sent request letters/ emails to various parties for confirmations of balances under borrowings, trade receivables
trade payables etc, loans and advances to which only few parties have responded. Accordingly, the possible adjustment, if any, required
in the financial statements will be accounted as and when the same is determinable.

53 Corporation Bank has flled a suit with Debt Recovery Tribunal, New Delhi, towards recovery against Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited,
Arshiya Limited as a Corporate Guarantor and two premoter directors of the holding company as Guarantors, for Rupees 8,012.60
lakhs. The same is pending before the DRT Delhi. The matter Is sub-Judice.
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The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by type of products and services, geography and timing of revenue
recognition.

Effective Aprll 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, The effect on adoption of Ind AS
115 was insignificant.

Revenue disaggregation by type of goods and services is given note no. 25

Revenue disaggregation by geography is as follows:

— — {Rupees in lakhs)
or the year en For the year ended
Geograph

oeTaPTY 3*March2019 | 31® 018
In India 13,596.16 13,560.32
QOutside india 18.67 38.00

Geographical revenue is allocated based on the location of the customers.
Revenue disaggregation by timing of revenue recognition Is as follows:

{Rupees In lakhs}

Geography For t:e year ended For the year ended

31“ March 2019 31% March 2018
Goods transferred at a point in time - -
Service transferred over time 13,614.83 13,598.32

Based on recent Supreme court judgement on Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019 there are various interpretive Issues including
its applicabllity thus prospective provision w.e.f. March 01, 2019 been consldered of Rs. 0.44 lakhs.

The Company's borrowings have been asslgned by bankers to an ARC/ restructured with banks under CDR Package. Certain lenders had
invoked the CDR package. The ARC/ CDR lenders have charged interest/ penal interest/additional Interest amounting to Rs. 511.89
lakhs upto the year ended March 31, 2018, which was not accepted by the Company ang hence s under negotiation. In light of audit
qualifications In previous year as a matter of prudence, the company has recognised the sald interest/ additional interest/ penal
interest and has accordingly restated the finance cost and other consequentlal impacts in respective year.

Further, during the year ended March 31, 2018 reported figure of finance cost, other Equity and Interest Accrued on borrowings was
Rs. 7,507.05 lakhs, Rs. {13,561.72} lakhs and Rs, 12,671.96 lakhs respectively, Restated figures of finance cost, other equity and Interest
Acerued on Borrowings are Rs. 8,018.94 lakhs, Rs. (14,073.62) lakhs and Rs. 13,183.84 fakhs respectively. Earning Per Share (EPS) also
recalculated based on the restated flgures.

The figures for the previous year have been re-grouped /re-arranged, wherever necessary, to correspond with the current year's
classification/disclosure,

Notes to the flnancial statements 1-57
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ANNEXURE ]

C.A (C.A.A.) 2926/ MB/ 2019

IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,

MUMBAI BENCH

C.A. (CAA)/2926/MB/2019

ARSHIYA LIMITED
302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar
Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road,

Worli, Mumbai 400018 Maharashtra India

ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE
LIMITED

302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar
Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road,

Worli, Mumbai 400018 Maharashtra India

Under Section 230 to 232 read with section 66 and
section 52 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013

In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement between
Avrshiya Limited bearing CIN:
L93000MH1981PLC024747 (Demerged
Company/Applicant Company 1) And Arshiya
Rail Infrastructure Limited bearing CIN:
U93000MH2008PLC180907 (Resulting
Company/Applicant Company 2) And Their

Respective Shareholders.

)

)... Demerged Company/Applicant Company 1

)

)... Resulting Company/Applicant Company 2

(Hereinafter collectively referred to as ‘the Applicant Companies’)
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Order delivered on: 09.12.2019

CORAM: Hon’ble M. K. Shrawat, Member (J)

[

For the Applicants: Adv Gauraj Shah A/W CS Siddharth Doshi i/b. Aabid & Co. Practicing

Company Secretaries

Per:

M. K. Shrawat, Member (J)

ORDER

UPON the application of the Applicant Companies above named by a Company Notice of

Admission AND UPON HEARING Advocate for the Applicant Companies AND UPON

READING the Application along with the Notice of Admission dated 27" July, 2019, of Mr.

Ajay Shankarlal Mittal, Director in the Applicant Companies, in support of Notice of

Admission along with Application and Exhibits therein referred to, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

1. The Counsel for the Applicants states that the present Scheme is a Scheme of Demerger

by Demerger of “Domestic Business Undertaking” of Arshiya Limited into Arshiya
Rail Infrastructure Limited and their respective shareholders under the provisions of
Sections 230 to 232 read with section 66 and section 52 and other applicable provisions

of the Companies Act, 2013 .

The Counsel for the Applicants Companies further submits that the Applicant Company
1 is engaged in the business of developing, operating and maintaining special economic
zones (SEZs)/free trade and warehouse zones (FTWZs), inland container depots (ICDs),
industrial parks, logistic parks, warehouses, infrastructure or infrastructure projects and
the Applicant Company 2 is engaged in the business of setting up of Rail
Infrastructure/Network within India and abroad including operations/movement of
Container/Goods Trains using Indian Railway Network and also to acquire, procure,
obtain on lease/licence or otherwise Container Trains, Rakes, Wagons, Boggies and
Create, Develop or Obtain on lease/licence basis Railway Sidings, Rail Yards,

Warehouses required for the business of the Company.

194



C.A (C.A.A.) 2926/ MB/ 2019

3. BACKGROUND AND RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME
Arshiya, a flagship company of Arshiya Group, is engaged in the business of developing
Free Trade Warehousing Zones (‘FTWZ’) and Domestic Warehousing Areas (‘DWA’)
as mentioned below to improve logistics infrastructure in India.
FTWZ Business - FTWZ at Panvel offers over 800,000 Sq. ft. of warehousing space
with best in class infrastructure which is suitable for clients across industries. The
facility is well connected to the National and State Highways and situated only 24 kms
from the country’s busiest container port and also close to the proposed International
Airport in Navi Mumbai.
Domestic Business - Domestic Business comprises of Domestic Warehousing activities
being carried out by Arshiya at land admeasuring 43.42 acres of land situated at Khurja
(UP) and investments held in the Resulting Company pertaining to Private Freight
Terminal (‘PFT’), Rail Transportation Services (‘RAIL’) businesses being carried in the
Resulting Company and Inland Container Depot (‘1CD’), DWA business being carried
in AIDHL.

Brief description of the above mentioned business :

PFT: ARIL currently under a PFT license operates Indian Railways traffic business for
various customers catering to bulk goods movement and bagged cargo at sidings

specifically earmarked for the same.

RAIL: ARIL holds category-I license to run container trains pan-India and is one of the
largest Private Container Train Operator (PCTO’s) with a rail fleet of 18 rakes and 3,200
owned containers equipped to handle a wide-range of cargo, with a pan India presence.
ARIL’s service is completely equipped to provide efficient movement of cargo between

terminals, hubs and warehouses.

ARIL’s infrastructure consists of rail siding, rail terminal equipped with three loop /
blast rail lines and three non-ballast rail lines with a capacity to handle up to 20 rakes per

day.
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ICD: The Khurja ICD is co-located with a state-of-the-art Rail Terminal and FTWZ.
ICD-Khurja is the only private ICD in the country to have exclusive connectivity with 6-
lane private rail siding offering regular and prompt rail connectivity through owned
rakes to all the major gateway ports that service the northern region of India. ICD Khurja
is located strategically with multiple road approaches from the major 4/6 lane highways

providing a congestion-free movement of cargo and containers.

The Group intends to reorganize its corporate structure and integrate / consolidate its
operations by housing the following businesses into two different entities / separate
verticals:

FTWZ business in Arshiya Domestic business (includes DWA, ICD, Rail and PFT

business) in ARIL

Though the businesses of all the Group companies complement each other, the Group
believes that in the industry, there are other companies who are doing consolidated
business of offering rail infrastructure, cargo/container handling services, providing ICD
and Domestic warehousing services. The demand in the market for the entities providing
consolidated services is higher than the entities providing individual services. In order to
earn higher revenue and to cater to the needs of the market, the management intends to
consolidate the rail infrastructure, transport handling business, DWA and ICD business.
Hence, the management envisages the transfer of Domestic business of Arshiya into
ARIL.

Accordingly, the proposed demerger of the Domestic Business (as defined hereinafter)
envisaged in this Scheme (‘the Demerger’) would be in order to integrate / consolidate
its DWA, RAIL, PFT & ICD business into ARIL, which would enable Arshiya to focus
solely on FTWZ Business. This would provide more flexibility in terms of creating
business synergies in the Resulting Company i.e. ARIL, enable cost savings,
rationalizing capital requirements and optimizing utilization of valuable resources which
will enhance management focus on the different businesses being housed under separate

entities, thereby leading to higher operational efficiency.

196



C.A (C.A.A)) 2926/ MB/ 2019

Further, the Scheme would be in the best interests of the shareholders, creditors and
employees of Arshiya and ARIL, respectively as it would result in enhanced value for
the shareholders and allow focused strategy on expansion/ operation of both the FTWZ
and the Domestic Business independently. Pursuant to this Scheme all the shareholders
of Arshiya will get shares in ARIL and there would be no change in the economic
interest for any of the shareholders of Arshiya pre and post implementation of this

Scheme.

. The Counsel for the Applicant Companies submits that the Board of Directors of the
Applicant Companies at their respective meetings held on 24" May, 2018 have
considered and approved the proposed Composite Scheme of Arrangement for the
reduction of Equity Share Capital of the Resulting Company and transfer of the
“Domestic Business Undertaking” of the Demerged Company to the Resulting
Company subject to necessary statutory approvals, in order to benefit the stakeholders of
the Demerged Company and Resulting Company. The Board Resolutions approving the
Scheme for the Applicant Company 1 and Applicant Company 2 are annexed

respectively as Annexure | and 11 to the Company Scheme Application.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the demerger including the
transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking in the Resulting Company, the
Resulting Company shall, without any further application or deed, for every 2 (two)
fully paid-up equity shares of the Demerged Company, issue and allot to each member
of the Demerged Company whose name appears in the register of members of the
Demerged Company as on the Record Date or to his/her heirs, executors, administrators
or the successors-in-title, as the case may be, subject to the provisions of Clause 7.4
below, 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share of Rs 2 each, of the Resulting Company (‘New

Equity Shares”).

. That the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Company 1 be convened
and held at Nehru Centre, Doctor Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai, Maharashtra

400018 at 11.00 am on Monday, 13" January, 2020 for the purpose of considering and,
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if thought fit, approving with or without modification(s) the proposed arrangement
embodied in the Scheme of Arrangement of “Domestic Business Undertaking” of
Arshiya Limited into Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited and their respective

shareholders.

. That the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Company 2 be convened

and held at 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant
Road, Worli, Mumbai 400018 at 4.00 pm on Monday, 13" January, 2020 for the
purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving with or without modification(s) the
proposed arrangement embodied in the Scheme of Arrangement of “Domestic
Business Undertaking” of Arshiya Limited into Arshiya Rail Infrastructure

Limited and their respective shareholders.

. The Counsel for the Applicant Companies submits that Applicant Companies have both

the Creditors i.e. Secured Creditors and Unsecured Creditors. The Counsel for the
Applicant Companies submits that as on 30" September, 2019, the total number of
Secured Creditors of Demerged Company and Resulting Company are 17 (Seventeen
only) amounting to Rs. 9,98,83,92,045 (Rupees Nine Hundred Ninety Eight Crore
Eighty Three Lakhs Ninety Two Thousand Forty Five Only) and 15 (Fifteen only)
amounting to Rs. 9,96,73,53,168 (Rupees Nine Hundred Ninety Six Crore Seventy
Three Lakhs Fifty Three Thousand One Hundred Sixty Eight Only) respectively and
total number of Unsecured Creditors of Demerged Company and Resulting Company
are 128 (One Hundred and twenty eight only) amounting to Rs. 12,12,96,050 (Rupees
Twelve Crore Twelve Lakhs Ninety Six Thousand Fifty Only) and 77 (Seventy Seven
only) amounting to Rs. 1,90,22,29,065/- (Rupees One Hundred Ninety Crore Twenty
Two Lakhs Twenty Nine Thousand and Sixty Five Only) respectively. List where of is

annexed as Annexure —A, Annexure-B, Annexure-C and Annexure-D.

. That the meeting of the Secured Creditors of the Applicant Company 1 be convened and

held at 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai 400018 at 11:00 am on Tuesday, 14™ January, 2020 for the purpose of
considering and, if thought fit, approving with or without modification(s) the proposed

arrangement embodied in the Scheme of Arrangement of “Domestic Business
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Undertaking” of Arshiya Limited into Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited and their

respective shareholders.

That the meeting of the Secured Creditors of the Applicant Company 2 be convened and
held 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai 400018 at 1:00 pm on Tuesday, 14" January, 2020 for the purpose of
considering and, if thought fit, approving with or without modification(s) the proposed
arrangement embodied in the Scheme of Arrangement of “Domestic Business
Undertaking” of Arshiya Limited into Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited and their

respective shareholders.

That the meeting of the Unsecured Secured Creditors of the Applicant Company 1 be
convened and held at 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr.
Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400018 at 2:00 pm on Tuesday, 14" January, 2020
for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving with or without
modification(s) the proposed arrangement embodied in the Scheme of Arrangement of
“Domestic Business Undertaking” of Arshiya Limited into Arshiya Rail

Infrastructure Limited and their respective shareholders.

That the meeting of the Unsecured Secured Creditors of the Applicant Company 2 be
convened and held 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie
Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400018 at 4:00 pm on Tuesday, 14" January, 2020 for the
purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving with or without modification(s) the
proposed arrangement embodied in the Scheme of Arrangement of “Domestic
Business Undertaking” of Arshiya Limited into Arshiya Rail Infrastructure

Limited and their respective shareholders.

The counsel for the Applicant Companies submits that the Resulting Company being an
Unlisted Public Limited Company, the shares of the same are not listed in any stock
exchange. Further the equity shares of the Demerged Company are listed with BSE
Limited and NSE Limited with around 9323 number of equity shareholders as on date of
the Application. Further as per the requirement of SEBI Circular No.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10th March, 2017, the Demerged Company received No

Objection Certificate for draft Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation from BSE
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Limited on 12" Day of July, 2019 and from NSE Limited on 15" Day of July, 2019 the
same has been disseminated by BSE Limited and NSE Limited on its website and the

acknowledgement is annexed at Exhibit- 17 and Exhibit-18 to the Application.

That at least 30 days clear notice before the said Meetings of the Equity Shareholders,
Secured Creditors and Unsecured Creditors of the Applicant Companies to be held as
aforesaid, a notice convening the said Meeting at the place, day, date and time as
aforesaid, together with a copy of the Scheme, a copy of statement disclosing all
material facts as required under Section 230(3) of the Companies Act 2013 read with
Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rule, 2016
and the prescribed Form of Proxy, shall be sent by Registered Post or by courier or by
speed post or by hand delivery to each of the Equity Shareholders of the Applicant
Companies as aforesaid at their respective registered or last known addresses or by e-
mail to the registered e-mail address of the Equity Shareholders, Secured Creditors and

Unsecured Creditors as per the records of the Applicant Companies.

That at least 30 clear days before the Meetings of the Equity Shareholders, Secured
Creditors and Unsecured Creditors of the Applicant Companies to be held as aforesaid, a
joint notice convening the said meetings indicating the place, date and time aforesaid
and stating that copies of the Scheme and the statement required to be furnished pursuant
to Section 230 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rule, 2016 and that the form of
Proxy can be obtained free of charge at the respective Registered Offices of the
Applicant Companies as aforesaid, be published once each in ‘Active Times’ in English
and "Mumbai Lakshadeep' in Marathi, both circulated in Mumbai not less than thirty(30)

days before the date fixed for the meeting.

The Applicant Companies are directed to:
i. Issue Notice convening meeting of the Equity shareholders, Secured Creditors
and Unsecured Creditors in Form No. CAA.2 as per Rule 6 of the Companies

(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016;
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18.

19.

20.

21.
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ii. Issue Statement containing all the particulars as per Section 230(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013;

iii. Issue Form of Proxy in Form No. MGT-11 as per Rule 19 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014; and

iv. Advertise the Notice convening meeting in Form No. CAA.2 as per Rule 7 of
the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules,

2016.

That the value and number of the shares of each Equity Shareholder shall be in
accordance with the books/ register of the Applicant Companies where the entries in the
books/ register are disputed, the chairman of the Meeting shall determine the value for

the purpose of the aforesaid meeting and his decision in that behalf would be final.

Mr. Ajay Shankarlal Mittal, Director failing whom Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra, Directors
of the Applicant Companies, shall be the Chairman for each of the aforesaid meetings to

be held as aforesaid of the Applicant Companies or any adjournments thereof.

The Scrutinizer for the each of the meetings or any adjournments thereof shall be Mr.
Mohammed Akram, (ACS - 9411) Companies Secretary in practice having its office at R

34, 3" Floor, Shanti Bhawan, 198 Kalbadevi Road, Mumbai — 400002.

The Chairman appointed for the aforesaid Meetings of the Applicant Companies to issue
the notices of the Meeting of the Equity Shareholders, Secured Creditors and Unsecured
Creditors as the case may be, referred to above. The said Chairman shall have all powers
under the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 in
relation to the conduct of the meeting(s), including for deciding procedural questions
that may arise or at any adjournment thereof or any other matter including an
amendment to the Scheme or resolution, if any, proposed at the meeting by any

person(s).

The quorum for the aforesaid meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Applicant

Companies shall be as prescribed under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

201



22.

23.

24.

25.
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That the quorum of the aforesaid meetings of the secured the unsecured creditors of the

Applicant 1 and 2 shall be five present in person or through proxy.

That the voting shall be allowed on the proposed Scheme by voting in person or by
proxy. The voting by proxy or authorised representative in case of body corporate be
permitted, provided that a proxy in the prescribed form / authorization duly signed by
the person entitled to attend and vote at the meeting, is filed with the respective
Applicant Companies at its respective Registered Offices not later than, 48 hours before
the aforesaid meeting as required under Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises,

Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

That the voting shall be allowed on the proposed Scheme in case of the Equity
Shareholders, Secured Creditors and Unsecured Creditors of the Applicant Companies

by voting through electronic means and Postal Ballot also.

The Chairman to file an affidavit not less than seven days before the date fixed for the
holding of the meetings of the Applicant Companies and do report this Tribunal that the
direction regarding the issue of notices and advertisement have been duly complied with
as per Rule 12 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations)

Rules, 2016.

. The Chairman to report to this Tribunal, the result of the aforesaid meeting within ten

days of the conclusion of the meetings of the Applicant Companies and the said report
shall be verified by his Affidavit as per Rule 14 of the Companies (Compromises,

Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

That the Chairman of the meetings to report to this Tribunal, the results of the aforesaid

meetings within thirty days of the conclusion of the meetings.
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That this bench hereby directs the Applicant Companies to issue notices for equity
shareholders meeting, unsecured creditors meeting and secured creditors meeting to all
respective shareholders, unsecured Creditors and secured creditors as on 30t September,
2019 by Registered Post /Speed Post / courier / Airmail / email / hand-delivery as
required under section 230 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 with a direction that they
may submit their representations, if any, to the Tribunal and copy of such
representations shall simultaneously be served upon the Applicant Companies

respectively.

The Applicant Companies are directed to serve the notice upon the Regional Director,
Western Region, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Mumbai Maharashtra, pursuant to
Section 230(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 as per Rule 8 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016. If no response is
received by the Tribunal from Regional Director within 30 days of the date of receipt of
the notice it will be presumed that Regional Director and/ or Central Government has no
objection to the proposed Scheme as per Rule 8 of the Companies (Compromises,

Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

The Applicant Companies are directed to serve the notice upon the concerned Registrar
of Companies, pursuant to Section 230(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 as per Rule 8 of
the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016. If no
response is received by the Tribunal from the Registrar of Companies within 30 days of
the date of receipt of the notice it will be presumed that Registrar of Companies has no
objection to the proposed Scheme as per Rule 8 of the Companies (Compromises,

Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

The Applicant Companies are directed to serve notices along with copy of scheme upon
the concerned Income Tax Authority enlisted below, within whose jurisdiction
respective assessments of the Applicant Companies are made pursuant to Section 230(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 as per Rule 8 of the Companies (Compromises,

Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016:-
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Name of the Company PAN No. Address

ARSHIYA LIMITED AAACI2679A DCIT Central Circle 6(4)
ARSHIYA RAIL | AAACI2679A DCIT Central Circle 6(4)
INFRASTRUCTURE

LIMITED

If no response is received by the Tribunal from the Income Tax Authorities within 30
days of the date of receipt of the notice it will be presumed that Income Tax Authorities
has no objection to the proposed Scheme as per Rule 8 of the Companies (Compromises,

Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

The Demerged Company/ Applicant Company 1 to serve the notice upon the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and BSE Limited and NSE Limited and pursuant to
Section 230(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 as per Rule 8 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016. If no response is
received by the Tribunal from the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and
BSE Limited and NSE Limited within 30 days of the date of receipt of the notice it will
be presumed that the Securities and Exchange Board of India, BSE Limited and the NSE
Limited has no objection to the proposed Scheme as per Rule 8 of the Companies

(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

The Appointed date is 1% April, 2019

Sd/-

M.K. Shrawat, Member (J)

Dated: 09.12.2019

SS
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Annexure K

INFORMATION DOCUMENT OF ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED IN TERMS OF SEBI CIRCULAR NO. CFD/DIL3/
CIR/2017/21 DATED MARCH 10,2017 IN RELATION TO THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN ARSHIYA LIMITED (HERE
IN AFTER REFERRED TO AS THE “DEMERGED COMPANY” OR “AL”) AND ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (HEREIN
AFTER REFERRED TO AS THE “RESULTING COMPANY” OR “ARIL” OR “COMPANY”) AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS
AND CREDITORS (“SCHEME”")

ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
CIN: U93000MH2008PLC180907
Reg Off: 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018
T:+91 22 42305500/02 F: +91 22 4230 5555

E-mail: info@arshiyalimited.com /Website: www.arshiyalimited.com

PROMOTERS OF THE COMPANY
ARSHIYA LIMITED (Refer PartI of this Document i.e Promoters of the Company)
SCHEME DETAILS, LISTING AND PROCEDURE

The Board of Directors of the Company is proposing the Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya Limited (here in after referred to
as the “Demerged Company” or “AL”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (here in after referred to as the “Resulting Company”
or “ARIL” or “Company”) and their Respective Shareholders and Creditors (“Scheme”) under sections 230 to 232 read with Section
66 And Section 52 and other applicable Provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. On the Scheme becoming effective the shareholders
of AL would be allotted equity shares in the Company and would become shareholders of the Company as on the determined record
date. The shares of AL are listed on BSE Limited (“BSE”), National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”). The equity shares so issued
pursuant to the Scheme to the shareholders of AL would be listed on stock exchanges in terms of Rule 19 of the Securities Contract
(Regulation) Rules, 1957. Therefore this Information Document be read accordingly. The shareholders of ARIL may also download
from the website of AL this Information Document, the Scheme as approved by the Board of Directors of AL and ARIL, the valuation
report dated May 24, 2018 issued by ZADN & Associates, Chartered Accountants, the fairness opinion dated May 24, 2018 issued by
Chartered Capital and Investment Limited and other relevant documents related to the Scheme.

Post sanction of the Scheme, the equity shares of the Company are proposed to be listed on BSE and NSE. For the purposes of this
listing, the Designated Stock Exchange is BSE.

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA

There being no initial public offering or rights issue, the eligibility criteria of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended (‘ICDR
Regulations’) does not become applicable.

However, SEBI vide its Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 stated that the listed entity shall include the
applicable information pertaining to unlisted entities involved in the scheme in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as
provided in Part E of Schedule VI of Securities Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018, as amended, and the same has to be annexed with the Notice or explanatory statement or proposal accompanying resolution to
be sent to and passed by the shareholders while seeking approval of the scheme.

Accordingly in compliance with Regulation 37 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 read with
SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 the Company has submitted the relevant information, as and where
applicable to an Unlisted Company, in line with the format for Abridged Prospectus specified in Part E of Schedule VI of Securities
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended.

GENERAL RISKS
Investment in equity and equity related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds unless they can

afford to take the risk of losing their investment. Specific attention of the shareholders is invited to the section titled “Internal
Risk Factors” on page 8 of this Information Document.
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PRICE INFORMATION OF MERCHANT BANKER

Not Applicable (Since there is no invitation to Public for Subscription by way of this Document)

COMPANY’S ABSOLUTE RESPONSIBILTY

The Company, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this Information Document contains
all information with regard to the Company, which is material, that the information contained in this Information Document is true
and correct in all material aspects and is not misleading in any material respect, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein
are honestly held and that there are no other facts, the omission of which makes this Information Document as a whole or any of such
information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading in any material respect.

MERCHANT BANKER STATUTORY AUDITORS

COMPANY SECRETARY

Chartered Capital and Investment Limited |Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Address :418-C, “215 ATRIUM”, Andheri | Chartered Accountants

Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 | Address: 714-715, Tulsiani

093 Chambers, 212, Nariman Point,

Mumbai-400021

Ms. Avani Lakhani

Address: 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv
Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant
Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Sr. | Particulars Page No.
No.
1. [Promoters of the Company 4
2. | Business Model/Business Overview and Strategy 4
3. | Board of Directors of the Company 5
4. | Objects of the Scheme 6
5. |Audited Financial Statements 8
6. |Internal Risk Factors 8
7. | Summary of Outstanding Litigations, Claims and Regulatory Action 9
8. | Other Regulatory And Statutory Disclosures 10
9. |Declaration 11
I.  PROMOTER OF THE COMPANY
ARSHIYA LIMITED
Name of the Company : | Arshiya Limited
Date of Incorporation ¢ [July 03,1981
CIN : |L93000MH1981PLC024747
Registered Office : | 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli,
Mumbai - 400018
Nature of Business : | The Company is engaged in the business of developing, operating and maintaining

infrastructure projects.

special economic zones (SEZs)/free trade and warehouse zones (FTWZs), inland
container depots (ICDs), industrial parks, logistic parks, warehouses, infrastructure or

Names of Stock Exchanges where |: |> BSE Limited

Listed

Equity Shares of the Company are » National Stock Exchange of India Limited

II. BUSINESS MODEL / BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY

Business Overview

. Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited is a Public Limited Company originally incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 on April 07, 2008 as Public Company Limited by Shares. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of Arshiya
Limited. The registered office of Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited is located at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv

Sagar Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018, Maharashtra.
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The main objects of the Company as set out in its Memorandum of Association inter alia include:

1.

To carry on the business of setting up of Rail Infrastructure/Network within India and abroad including operations/
movement of Container/Goods Trains using Indian Railway Network and also to acquire, procure, obtain on lease/
licence or otherwise Container Trains, Rakes, Wagons, Boggies and Create, Develop or Obtain on lease/licence basis
Railway Sidings, Rail Yards, Warehouses required for the business of the Company.

To carry on the business predominantly in the Northern Region of India, of container freight stations which, inter-alia
includes setting up of bonded warehousing infrastructure and services, facilities for customs examination, EDI, empty
container yard for storage of shipping containers, repairs and refurbishment of containers, truck, cargo and material
handling equipments, transportation, non-bonded warehousing, IT & ITES infrastructure and services, warehousing,
cold storage and other cargo related activities.

To carry on the business of Transport & Handling of Containers/ Goods/ Network within India and abroad including
operations/movement of Container/Cargo/Goods Trains using India Railway Network and also to acquire, procure,
obtain on lease/licence or otherwise Container Trains, Rakes, Wagons, Boggies and Create, Develop or obtain on lease/
licence basis Railway Sidings, Rail Yards, Warehouses required for the business of the Company.

The Company is engaged in the business of setting up of Rail Infrastructure/Network within India and abroad including
operations/movement of Container/Goods Trains using Indian Railway Network and also to acquire, procure, obtain on
lease/licence or otherwise Container Trains, Rakes, Wagons, Boggies and Create, Develop or Obtain on lease/licence basis
Railway Sidings, Rail Yards, Warehouses required for the business of the Company.

Business Strategy

Sharpening focus on railway business combined with Inland Container Depot (ICD) and Domestic Warehousing Business to
provide excellent logistic facility. The company’s ICD at Khurja is co-located with a state-of-the-art Rail Terminal. ICD-Khurja is
the only private ICD in the country to have exclusive connectivity with 6-lane private rail siding offering regular and prompt rail
connectivity through owned rakes to all the major gateway ports that service the northern region of India. ICD Khurja is located
strategically with multiple road approaches from the major 4/6 lane highways providing a congestion-free movement of cargo
and containers.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

Sr.
No.

Name of the Director Designation Experience including current/past position held in

(Independent / Whole other firms
time / Executive /
Nominee)

Mr. Ajay Shankarlal Mittal Director Mr. Mittal is the key driving force behind Arshiya’s growth

as an integrated supply chain management and logistics
infrastructure solutions company. With over three decades of
experience, Mr. Mittal has successfully scaled Arshiya Limited
by developing Free Trade Warehousing Zones (FTWZs),
Rail & Rail Infrastructure, Industrial & Domestic Hub, and
Transport & Handling to its unified business portfolio.

Mr. Navnit Jugal Kishore Director Mr. Navnit Choudhary, a Chartered Accountant, looks after
Choudhary the Commercial and Taxation aspects of the company. He

is associated with the Arshiya group since last 10 years.
During his 20 years of career, he was associated with many
organisations like KK Birla group. RPG Group, Future Group.

Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra Independent Director [Mr. Ashishkumar Bairagra has extensive experience in

handling internal audits, statutory audits, management
audits, tax advisory and business advisory assignments.
He is a Partner of M. L. Bhuwania & Co LLP, Chartered
Accountants, which is an independent member of Geneva
Group International (GGI).

Mr. Rishabh Pankaj Shah Independent Director  [Mr. Rishabh Shah is a practicing legal counsel and a legal

consultant who advises on several areas of Civil Law. He has
over 20 years of experience representing major corporations
as legal counsel.
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IV. OBJECTS OF THE SCHEME

(A) General Objects of the Scheme

The Board of Directors of the Company is proposing the Scheme of Arrangement between Arshiya Limited (here in after
referred to as the “Demerged Company” or “AL”) and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited (here in after referred to as
the “Resulting Company” or “ARIL” or “Company”) and their Respective Shareholders and Creditors (“Scheme”) under
sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 And Section 52 and other applicable Provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The proposed demerger of the Domestic Business Undertaking of Arshiya Limited into Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
as envisaged in the Scheme would be:

To integrate / consolidate its DWA, RAIL, PFT & ICD business into ARIL, which would enable Arshiya to focus solely on
FTWZ Business ;

To provide more flexibility in terms of creating business synergies in the Resulting Company i.e. ARIL, enable cost
savings, rationalizing capital requirements and optimizing utilization of valuable resources which will enhance
management focus on the different businesses being housed under separate entities, thereby leading to higher
operational efficiency;

To enhance value for the shareholders and allow focused strategy on expansion/ operation of both the FTWZ and the
Domestic Business independently;

To achieve and fulfill their objectives more efficiently and economically and the same is also in the interest of all the
stakeholders.

On the Scheme becoming effective the shareholders of AL would be allotted equity shares in the Company and would
become shareholders of the Company as on the determined record date. The shares of AL are listed on BSE Limited
(“BSE”), National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”). The equity shares so issued pursuant to the Scheme to the
shareholders of AL would be listed on stock exchanges in terms of Rule 19 of the Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules,
1957. Post sanction of the Scheme, the equity shares of the Company are proposed to be listed on BSE and NSE.

(B) Means of financing: Not Applicable

(C) Schedule of Deployment of Issue Proceeds: Not Applicable

(D) Name of Monitoring Agency: Not Applicable

(E) Terms of Issuance of convertible security: Not Applicable

(F) Shareholding Pattern as on December 10,2019

Sr. | Particulars Pre - Issue % Holding of Pre
no. Number of equity Issue
shares
1. |Promoter & Promoter Group* 4,23,84,417 100.00
2. |Public 0 0.00
Total 4,23,84,417 100.00

*Note: Promoter and Promoter Group Shareholding include shares being held jointly or through nominee.

(G) Number/amount of equity shares proposed to be sold by Selling Shareholders, if any - Not Applicable
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V. AUDITED FINANCIALS STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

(Rs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS FY 2018-19* FY 2017-18* FY 2016-17* FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15
Total income from operations (net) 13,614.83 13,598.32 15,539.26 19,758.55 23,823.90
Net Profit / (Loss) before tax and (4,159.12) (10,745.75) (8,275.22) (6,819.48) (10,328.81)
extraordinary items

Net Profit / (Loss) after tax and (4,159.12) (10,745.75) (9,233.34) (8,330.30) (10,409.61)
extraordinary items

Equity Share Capital 4,238.44 4,238.44 4,238.44 4,088.92 4,088.92
Reserves and Surplus / Other Equity (18,197.13) (14,073.62) (3,330.44) (9,573.12) (1,066.62)
Net worth (13,958.69) (9,835.18) 908.00 (5484.20) 3,022.29
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) (9.81) (25.35) (22.58) (20.37) (25.46)
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) (9.81) (25.35) (22.58) (20.37) (25.46)
Return on net worth (%) (29.80) (109.26) (1016.89) (151.90) (344.43)
Net asset value per share (Rs.) (32.93) (23.20) 2.14 (13.41) 7.39

*Figures are based on the statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the Ind AS as prescribed u/s 133 of the Companies

Act, 2013.

VI. INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

The below mentioned risks are the top 6 risk factors:

The Resulting Company is party to certain litigations which if determined against it could adversely affects its financial

The Resulting Company is required to obtain certain approvals, licenses and permits in the ordinary course of business and
is required to comply with certain rules and regulations to operate the business and failure to obtain any such approvals,
licenses and permits or to comply with the rules and regulations in a timely manner may adversely affect the operations.

The success of the Resulting Company is largely dependent upon the knowledge and experience of its Promoters and Key
Management Personnel. Any loss of Key Management Personnel could adversely affect the business, operation and financial

The Resulting Company is exposed to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations which may impact its cash flow and

If the Resulting Company is unable to identify expansion opportunities or if the Resulting Company experiences delays
or other problems in implementing such projects, the Company’s growth, financial condition, cash flows and results of

" position and business operation.
2.
3.

conditions of the Resulting Company.
4.

operating and financial results.
5.

operations may be adversely affected.
6.

The Resulting Company has certain contingent liabilities which if materializes may adversely affect the financial position of
the Resulting Company.

VII. SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND REGULATORY ACTION

A.

Total number of outstanding litigations against the Company and amount involved

ARIL is involved in 3 litigations against them. Total Amount involved in all the litigations, wherever quantifiable is Rs. 204.10
Crores.
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Brief Details of top 5 material outstanding litigation against the Company and amount involved

Sr. | Particulars Litigation Filed Current Status Amount Involved
No by (Rs. In Crores)
1. |Default in Repayment of loans Corporation Bank | The next date of the 81.24

matter is scheduled dated
19.12.2019 in National
Company Law Tribunal,

Mumbai.
2. |Non-Payment of service charges and Kalindee Rail The next date of the 5.86
Dishonour of Cheques for the services availed Nirman matter is scheduled dated
by the Company. 18.12.2019 in National
Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai.
3. |Default in Repayment of loans Bank of India The next date of the 117

matter is scheduled
dated 13.01.2020 in Debt
Recovery Tribunal, Delhi.

Regulatory Action, if any - disciplinary action taken by SEBI or stock exchanges against the Promoters / Group
companies in last 5 financial years including outstanding action, if any

Nil
Brief details of outstanding criminal proceedings against Promoters

Nil

VIII. OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

Authority for the Scheme:

The Scheme has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on May 24, 2018. The samg
is subject to the approval from the SEBI, Shareholders, Stock Exchanges, National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Branch
Regional Director, Registrar of Companies, Official Liquidator and such other regulatory authorities, as may be applicable.

E inion obtained. if anv:

Valuation Report and Fairness Opinion
Documents for Inspection:

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company

Audited Financial Statement for the last five Financial Years
Shareholding Pattern of the Company as on December 10, 2019

Draft Scheme of Amalgamation

Valuation Report issued by ZADN & Associates, Chartered Accountants
Fairness Opinion on Valuation Report issued by Chartered Capital and Investment Limited, SEBI registered Category |
Merchant Banker, having SEBI Permanent Registration No. INM000004018
7. Networth Certificate Pre and Post Scheme

oUW e

Ti 1Pl f1 ‘tion of Documents:

Copies of the above mentioned Documents may be inspected at the Registered Office of our Company situated at 302, Ceejay
House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400018 between 10.00 a.m. and 2.00 p.m
from Monday to Friday, except public holidays from the date of this Information Document until the Listing Approval.
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IX. DECLARATION

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Companies Act, 2013 and the guidelines/
regulations issued by the Government of India or the guidelines/regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India,
established under Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act 1992, as the case may be, have been complied with
and no statement made in this disclosure document is contrary to the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Companies Act,
2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, or rules made or guidelines or regulations issued there under, as the
case may be. We further certify that all statements in this disclosure document are true and correct.

For Arshiya Limited

Sd/-

Ajay Shankarlal Mittal
Managing Director
DIN: 00226355

Date : 10" December, 2019
Place : Mumbai
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ANNEXURE L

Following additional documents are required to be submitted for Demerger cases wherein a division of a listed company is
hived off into an unlisted company or where listed company is getting merged with an unlisted company:

1.

Clarification as to what will be listing status of the Resulting/Transferee Company/ies.

The New Equity Shares to be issued in terms of Scheme of Arrangement shall be listed and / or admitted to trading on the BSE
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited where the equity shares of the Demerged Company are listed.

Also Attached as an Annexure - XIII-A

Details of Assets and Liabilities of the Demerged division that are being transferred.
(In Crores)

Demerged division FY 2017-18
Assets:
a. Land 74.99
b. Trade Receivable: 00.24
Sundry Debtors
Total Assets 75.23
Liabilities:
a. GST Liabilities 00.04
b. Inter Division Loans 74.99
c. Profit & Loss retained earnings 00.20
Total Liabilities 75.23

Also Attached as an Annexure - XIII-B
Confirmation from the Managing Director/ Company Secretary, that:

a) There will be no change in Share Capital of the resulting/transferee company till the listing of the equity shares of the
company on BSE Limited.

b) The shares allotted by the resulting company pursuant to the Scheme shall remain frozen in the depositories system till
listing/trading permission is given by the designated stock exchange.

Attached as an Annexure - XIII-C

Confirmation by the Managing Director/ Company Secretary of the resulting/transferee company on the letter head of resulting
company that:

a) Equity shares issued by the company pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation/ arrangement shall be listed on the BSE
Limited, subject to SEBI granting relaxation from applicability under Rule 19(2) (b) of the Securities Contract (Regulation)
Rules, 1957.

b) The company shall comply with all the provisions contained in SEBI circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10,
2017.

c¢) The company shall also fulfill the Exchange’s criteria for listing and shall also comply with Rules, Byelaws, and Regulations
of the Exchange and other applicable statutory requirements.

Attached as an Annexure - XIII-D

212



5. Percentage of Net Worth of the company, that is being transferred in the form of demerged undertaking and percentage wise
contribution of the Demerged division to the total turnover and income of the company in the last two years as per the following

format:
(Rs. in crores)
Particulars Financial Net worth % to total Turnover % to total Profit after % to total
Year Tax

Demerged 2017-18 75.19 6.41% 0.20 0.23% 0.20 0.38%
division 2016-17 - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
FTWZ 2017-18 1,097.71 93.59% 85.22 99.77% 51.79 99.62%
divisions 2016-17 (102.50) 100.00% 75.81 100.00% (105.35) 100.00%
Total 2017-18 1,172.91 100.00% 85.42 100.00% 51.99 100.00%

2016-17 (102.50) 100.00% 75.81 100.00% (105.35) 100.00%

FOR ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Navnit Choudhary

Director
DIN: 00613576

Date: 4" February, 2019
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Pre De-merger Shareholding Pattern of Resulting Company
(Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited)

Annexure M

Sr. | Name of the Shareholders Address Number of % of Amount per
No. Shares Holding share
(InRs.)
1 |[Arshiya Limited 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar 4,23,83,817 100.00 10
Estate, F-Block, Dr. A. B. Road, Worli,
Mumbai- 400 018
2 | Mr. Ajay S Mittal Mittal Bhavan, 62-A ,Pedder Road, 100 - 10
(Nominee of Arshiya Limited) Mumbai-400 026
3 |Mrs. Archana A Mittal Mittal Bhavan, 62-A ,Pedder Road, 100 - 10
(Nominee of Arshiya Limited) Mumbai-400 026
4 | Arshiya Limited jointly with Mr. Navnit | 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar 100 - 10
Choudhary Estate, F-Block, Dr. A. B. Road, Worli,
Mumbai- 400 018
5 |Arshiya Limited jointly with Mr. Navin | 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar 100 - 10
Saraf Estate, F-Block, Dr. A. B. Road, Worlj,
Mumbai- 400 018
6 | Arshiya Limited jointly with Mrs. Joyce | 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar 100 - 10
Collaco Estate, F-Block, Dr. A. B. Road, Worli,
Mumbai- 400 018
7 | Arshiya Limited jointly with Mrs. Mini | 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar 100 - 10
Suresh Estate, F-Block, Dr. A. B. Road, Worli,
Mumbai- 400 018
Total 4,23,84,417 100.00

For ARSHIYA RAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Navnit Choudhary
Director
DIN: 00613576
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Post De-merger Shareholding Pattern of Resulting Company
(Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited)
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ARSHIYA LIMITED
CIN: L93000MH1981PLC024747
Registered Office: 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-block,
Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai-400018

FORM NO. MGT-11 (PROXY FORM)
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Meeting of all the Secured Creditors (including Debenture Holders) of Arshiya Limited (“the Company”)

(Convened Pursuant to The Order Dated 9th Day Of December, 2019 Passed By The Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench)

Time & Date: 11:00 a.m.(1100 Hrs), Tuesday, 14th January, 2020

Venue: 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-block,
Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai-400018

Name of the Secured Creditor (s):

Registered Address:

E-mail Id:

1/We, being the Secured Creditor (s) for Rs of the above-named company, hereby appoint
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) 123 0T L TSSOSO P PPN , Or failing him/her
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) 123 0 =T L TSSO P PR Or failing him/her
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o o LTSRS
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as my/our proxy to attend and vote, in case of a poll, for me/us and on my/our behalf at the said Meeting of the Company, to be held on
Tuesday, the 14th January, 2020 at 11.00 a.m. (1100 Hrs) at Hall of Culture (Nehru Centre), Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400
018 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of resolutions are indicated below:

Item |Resolutions Outstanding I assent to the I dissent from the
No. Amount owed resolution resolution
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

1 Approval of Composite Scheme of Arrangement Between
Arshiya Limited And Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
And Their Respective Shareholders And Creditors.

**This is only optional Please put a Vin the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. Alternatively you may
mention the Outstanding amount owed to you in the appropriate column in respect of which you would like your proxy to vote, if
you leave all the columns blank against any or all the resolutions your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks
appropriate.

Affix
Revenue

Stamp
Rs.1/-

Signed this day of 2020

Signature of Secured Creditor:

Signature of Proxy holder(s):

Notes:

1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the said meeting
A proxy need not be a Secured Creditor of the company.

2) In case the appointer is a body corporate the proxy form should be signed under its seal or be signed by an office or an attorney
duly authorized by it and an authenticated copy of such authorization should be attached to the proxy form.
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ARSHIYA LIMITED
CIN: L93000MH1981PLC024747
Registered Office: 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-block,
Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai-400018

FORM NO. MGT-11 (PROXY FORM)
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Meeting of all the Unsecured Creditors of Arshiya Limited (“the Company”)

(Convened Pursuant to The Order Dated 9th Day Of December, 2019 Passed By The Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench)

Time & Date: 02:00 a.m.(1400 Hrs), Tuesday, 14th January, 2020

Venue: 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-block,
Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai-400018

Name of the Unsecured Creditor (s):

Registered Address:

E-mail Id:

I/We, being the Unsecured Creditor (s) for Rs of the above-named company, hereby appoint
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as my/our proxy to attend and vote, in case of a poll, for me/us and on my/our behalf at the said Meeting of the Company, to be held on
Tuesday, the 14" January, 2020 at 02.00 p.m. (1400 Hrs) at Hall of Culture (Nehru Centre), Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400
018 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of resolutions are indicated below:

Item |Resolutions Outstanding I assent to the I dissent from the
No. Amount owed resolution resolution
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

1 | Approval of Composite Scheme of Arrangement Between
Arshiya Limited And Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
And Their Respective Shareholders And Creditors.

**This is only optional Please put a Vin the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. Alternatively you may
mention the Outstanding amount owed to you in the appropriate column in respect of which you would like your proxy to vote, if
you leave all the columns blank against any or all the resolutions your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks
appropriate.

Affix
Revenue

Stamp
Rs.1/-

Signed this day of 2020

Signature of Unsecured Creditor:
Signature of Proxy holder(s):
Notes:

1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the said meeting
A proxy need not be a Unsecured Creditor of the company.

2) In case the appointer is a body corporate the proxy form should be signed under its seal or be signed by an office or an attorney
duly authorized by it and an authenticated copy of such authorization should be attached to the proxy form.
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ARSHIYA LIMITED
CIN: L93000MH1981PLC024747
Reg. Off: 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018
T: +91 22 42305500/02 F: +91 22 4230 5555

E-mail: info@arshiyalimited.com [ Website: www.arshiyalimited.com

Attendance Slip for Meeting of all the Secured Creditors (including Debenture holders) of Arshiya Limited (“the Company”).

(Convened Pursuant to The Order Dated 9th Day Of December, 2019 Passed By The Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench)

I, a Secured Creditor/ proxy / authorised representative for a such Creditor of the Company, hereby record my presence at the said
Meeting of the Company on Tuesday, the 14th January, 2020 at 11:00 a.m.(1100 Hrs) at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar
Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018, Maharashtra.

Name and Address of the Secured Creditor

If Secured Creditor(s) please sign here If Proxy, please mention name and sign here
Name of Proxy Signature

Notes:

(1) Secured Creditors / Proxy holders as the case may be are requested to produce the attendance slip duly signed at the Meeting
entrance.

(2) Said creditors holding slip in physical form, are requested to advise change in their address, if any, to the Registered address of
the Company as mentioned above.

227



ARSHIYA LIMITED
CIN: L93000MH1981PLC024747
Reg. Off: 302, Ceejay House, Level-3, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018
T: +91 22 42305500/02 F: +91 22 4230 5555

E-mail: info@arshiyalimited.com [ Website: www.arshiyalimited.com

Attendance Slip for Meeting of all the Unsecured Creditors of Arshiya Limited (“the Company”).

(Convened Pursuant to The Order Dated 9th Day Of December, 2019 Passed By The Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench)

I, a Unsecured Creditor/ proxy / authorised representative for a such Creditor of the Company, hereby record my presence at the said
Meeting of the Company on Tuesday, the 14th January, 2020 at 02:00 p.m.(1400 Hrs) at 302, Level 3, Ceejay House, F- Block, Shiv Sagar
Estate, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai- 400018, Maharashtra.

Name and Address of the Unsecured Creditor

If Unsecured Creditor(s) please sign here | If Proxy, please mention name and sign here

Name of Proxy Signature

Notes:

(1) Unsecured Creditors / Proxy holders as the case may be are requested to produce the attendance slip duly signed at the Meeting
entrance.

(2) Said creditors holding slip in physical form, are requested to advise change in their address, if any, to the Registered address of
the Company as mentioned above.
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ARSHIYA LIMITED
CIN: L93000MH1981PLC024747
Regd Off: - 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai- 400 018 Tel: 022 4230 5500 Fax: 022 4230 5555
E-mail: info@arshiyalimited.com Website: www.arshiyalimited.com

Meeting of all the Secured (including Debenture holders) /Unsecured Creditors of Arshiya Limited (“the Company”)
(Convened Pursuant to The Order Dated 9th Day Of December, 2019 Passed By The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai Bench)

Time & Date for Secured Creditors: 11:00 a.m (1100 Hrs)., Tuesday, 14th January, 2020
Time & Date for Unsecured Creditors: 02:00 p.m (1400 Hrs)., Tuesday, 14th January, 2020

Venue: 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worlj,
Mumbai- 400 018.

BALLOT PAPER
[Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1) (c) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Company: Arshiya Limited
Registered office: 302, Level-3, Ceejay House, Shiv Sagar Estate, F-Block, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli,
Mumbai- 400 018

S 1 .| Particulars Details
No.
1. Name of the Secured/unsecured Creditor
(In block letters)
2. Postal address
3. Class of Creditor

(Please tick appropriate box)

Secured Unsecured

[ hereby exercise my vote in respect of Special resolutions enumerated below by recording my assent or dissent to the said resolution
in the following manner:

Item | Resolutions Outstanding I assent to the I dissent from the
No. Amount owed resolution resolution
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

1 Approval of Composite Scheme of Arrangement Between

Arshiya Limited and Arshiya Rail Infrastructure Limited
and Their Respective Shareholders And Creditors.

Date:
Place:

(Signature of the Secured/Unsecured Creditor)
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